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Beginning on January 1, 2021, as permitted by regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, paper copies
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copies of the reports. Instead, the reports will be made available on the Fund's website (www.tortoiseadvisors.com), and you
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your financial intermediary to request that you continue to receive paper copies of your shareholder reports. If you invest directly
with the Fund, you can call 1-855-822-3863 or send an email request to info@tortoiseadvisors.com to let the Fund know you
wish to continue receiving paper copies of your shareholder reports. Your election to receive reports in paper will apply to all
funds held in your account if you invest through your financial intermediary or all Funds held with the fund complex if you
invest directly with the Fund.
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or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
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The Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund is referred to herein as the “Fund.”

Fund Summary
Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund
Investment Objective
The investment objective of Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”) is to generate long-term total
return derived principally from a combination of capital appreciation and income over time.
Fees and Expenses of the Fund
This table describes the fees and expenses that you may pay if you buy and hold shares of the Fund. You may be required
to pay brokerage commissions on your purchases and sales of Institutional Class shares of the Fund from a financial
intermediary, which are not reflected in this table. You may qualify for sales charge discounts if you and your family invest,
or agree to invest in the future, at least $50,000 in the Fund. Sales loads and waivers may vary by financial intermediary.
For more information on specific financial intermediary sales loads and waivers, see Appendix A to the statutory Prospectus.
More information about these and other discounts is available from your financial professional and in the “Shareholder
Information - Class Descriptions” section of the Fund’s Statutory Prospectus on page 29.
Shareholder Fees
(fees paid directly from your investment)
Maximum Front-End Sales Charge (Load) Imposed on
Purchases (as a percentage of the offering price)
Maximum Deferred Sales Charge (Load)
(as a percentage of initial investment or the value of the
investment at redemption, whichever is lower)
Redemption Fee
Annual Fund Operating Expenses
(expenses that you pay each year as a percentage of the value
of your investment)
Management Fees
Distribution and Service (Rule 12b-1) Fees
Other Expenses(2)
Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses
Less: Expense Reimbursement
Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses After
Expenses Reimbursement
(1)

(2)
(3)

A Class

Institutional Class

5.50%

None

None (1)

None

None

None

A Class
0.75%
0.25%
0.31%
1.31%
(0.06)%

Institutional Class
0.75%
None
0.31%
1.06%
(0.06)%

1.25%

1.00%

No sales charge is payable at the time of purchase on investments of $1 million or more, although the Fund may impose a Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (“CDSC”)
of 1.00% on certain redemptions. If imposed, the CDSC applies to redemptions made within 12 months of purchase and will be assessed on an amount equal to the
lesser of the initial value of the shares redeemed and the value of shares redeemed at the time of redemption.
Other Expenses are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year.
Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., doing business as TCA Advisors (the “Adviser” or “TCA Advisors”) has contractually agreed to reimburse the Fund for its operating
expenses, in order to ensure that Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses (excluding Rule 12b-1 fees, front-end or contingent deferred loads, taxes, leverage/borrowing
interest, interest expense, brokerage commissions, acquired fund fees and expenses, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization, or extraordinary
expenses) do not exceed 1.00% of the average daily net assets of the Fund. Expenses reimbursed by the Adviser may be recouped by the Adviser for a period of 36
months following the month during which such reimbursement was made if such recoupment can be achieved without exceeding the expense limit in effect at the
time the expense reimbursement occurred and at the time of the recoupment. The Operating Expenses Limitation Agreement will be in effect and cannot be terminated
through at least August 7, 2021.

Example
This Example is intended to help you compare the costs of investing in the Fund with the cost of investing in other mutual
funds. The Example assumes that you invest $10,000 in the Fund for the time periods indicated and then redeem all of your
shares at the end of those periods. The Example also assumes that your investment has a 5% return each year and that the
Fund’s operating expenses remain the same. You may be required to pay brokerage commissions on your purchases and sales
of Institutional Class shares of the Fund from a financial intermediary, which are not reflected in the example. Although your
actual costs may be higher or lower, based on these assumptions, your costs would be:
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A Class
Institutional Class

One Year
$670
$102

Three Years
$937
$331

Portfolio Turnover
The Fund pays transaction costs, such as commissions, when it buys and sells securities (or “turns over” its portfolio). A
higher portfolio turnover rate may indicate higher transaction costs and may result in higher taxes when Fund shares are held
in a taxable account. These costs, which are not reflected in the annual fund operating expenses or in the Example, affect
the Fund’s performance.

Principal Investment Strategies
Under normal circumstances, the Fund will principally focus its investment activities in equity securities of companies who
are developers, owners and operators, in full or in part, of renewable electricity technology plants and systems, and related
infrastructure investments. The Fund will typically emphasize those companies achieving measurable improvements in overall
emissions, as defined as those gases and particles that are exhausted into the air as a result of fuel combustion-related activities
(“Emissions”), relative to their market peers. The Fund’s investments in equity securities may include investments in other
investment companies, real estate investment trusts (“REITs”), foreign investment funds, preferred stocks, rights, warrants,
convertible securities, and initial public offerings. The Fund will be invested in a range of both developed and non-developed
markets, commensurate with its investment criteria. The Fund considers non-developed market countries to be those countries
defined as such by the MSCI Market Classification Framework.
The Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in equity securities of renewable infrastructure companies, which consist
of companies deriving at least 50% of revenues from activities in power generation, transmission, distribution, storage and
ancillary or related services (“Renewable Infrastructure Universe”). Such companies invest in renewable generation or other
net-zero carbon and related services, and/or contribute to reducing Emissions. These include, but are not limited to, those
companies involved with owning solar, wind, hydro-electric, biomass, waste-to-energy and large-scale battery storage assets,
as well as transmission and distribution assets related to delivering electricity, including renewable energy.
The Renewable Infrastructure Universe is a global investment universe that includes companies mainly based in North
America, Europe and Asia, but also includes companies in other regions to a lesser extent. Under normal market conditions,
the Fund will invest at least 40% of its total assets in foreign securities, which Ecofin Advisors Limited, the investment subadviser to the Fund (the "Sub-Adviser" or "Ecofin"), considers to be companies organized outside of the United States,
whose principal listing exchange is outside the United States, or who derive a significant portion of their revenue or profits
outside the United States.
The Fund’s investments in foreign securities may also include American Depositary Receipts (“ADR”s) and investments in
non-developed market securities. The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in securities of companies located in nondeveloped markets. The Renewable Infrastructure Universe includes a broad range of companies, ranging from small market
capitalization companies to large market capitalization companies, with assets located throughout the world. The Fund may
invest in companies of all market capitalizations. The Fund’s investment in securities of companies in the Renewable
Infrastructure Universe may include illiquid securities. The Fund will concentrate in industries represented by infrastructure
companies. The Fund is a non-diversified fund.
The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in debt securities, including but not limited to debt securities issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government or government-related entities. The Fund may also invest in derivatives which are financial
contracts whose values depend on, or are derived from, the values of underlying assets, reference rates, or indices. To manage
risk, seek particular portfolio exposure as a substitute for a comparable market position in the underlying exposure, and/or
to enhance return (including through the use of leverage), the Fund may invest in derivatives including options, futures, swap
contracts and combinations of these instruments. The Fund may invest in futures, options and swap contracts on equity and
debt securities, equity and debt indices and commodities (“Commodity Interests”) (i) with aggregate net notional value of
up to 100% of the Fund’s net assets, or (ii) for which the initial margin and premiums do not exceed 5% of its net assets, in
each case excluding bona fide hedging transactions.
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The Sub-Adviser will seek to utilize a combined investment approach, incorporating a relatively broad exposure to the
Renewable Infrastructure Universe, with targeted active weights towards those investments that the Sub-Adviser believes
offer attractive risk-adjusted intrinsic value. These active weights can change over time, relative to changes in corporate
strategy, share prices, regulatory changes or other factors such as, but not limited to, balance sheet and liquidity considerations,
ESG risk considerations, project success or jurisdictional policy issues. The Sub-Adviser incorporates environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") risk factors into its security selection and portfolio construction. ESG risk considerations include,
but are not limited to, the Sub-Adviser evaluating specific environmental factors of a company’s policy towards carbon and
potentially other emissions. From a social perspective, the Sub-Adviser analyzes potential portfolio companies’ metrics such
as, but not limited to, the percent of women employed by the company, the existence of an equal opportunity policy, whether
the company is a signatory to the UN Global Compact and also seeks to measure and create a positive improvement regarding
abatement of other harmful emissions including PM2.5 which disproportionately affects some impoverished communities.
In terms of governance, the Sub-Adviser incorporates an analysis of the company’s board composition such as the percent
of independent directors and may also assess protection of minority interests. The Sub-Adviser analyzes these factors with
a preference for positive and improving trends when considering individual stocks for purchase in the portfolio.

Principal Investment Risks
As with any mutual fund, there are risks to investing. An investment in the Fund is not a deposit of a bank and is not insured
or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) or any other governmental agency. Remember, in
addition to possibly not achieving your investment goals, you could lose all or a portion of your investment in the Fund
over short or even long periods of time. The principal risks of investing in the Fund are:
General Market Risk. The Fund is subject to all of the business risks and uncertainties associated with any mutual fund,
including the risk that it will not achieve its investment objective and that the value of an investment in its securities could
decline substantially and cause you to lose some or all of your investment. The Fund’s net asset value (“NAV”) and investment
return will fluctuate based upon changes in the value of its portfolio securities. Certain securities in the Fund’s portfolio may
be worth less than the price originally paid for them, or less than they were worth at an earlier time.
Renewable Energy Company Risk. Because the Fund invests in renewable energy companies, the value of Fund shares may
be affected by events that adversely affect that industry, such as technology shifts, short product lifecycles, falling prices and
profits, competition and general economic conditions, and may fluctuate more than that of a fund that does not concentrate
in sustainable energy solutions companies.
Adviser and Sub-Adviser Risk. The Fund may not meet its investment objective or may underperform the market or other
mutual funds with similar strategies if the Adviser and Sub-Adviser cannot successfully implement the Fund’s investment
strategies.
Concentration Risk. The Fund’s strategy of focusing its investments in Renewable Infrastructure companies means that the
performance of the Fund will be closely tied to the performance of the renewable electricity and utility infrastructure industry.
The Fund’s focus in this industry presents more risk than if it were broadly diversified over numerous industries and sectors
of the economy. An inherent risk associated with any investment focus is that the Fund may be adversely affected if one or
two of its investments perform poorly.
Energy Infrastructure Industry Risk. Companies in the energy infrastructure industry are subject to many risks that can
negatively impact the revenues and viability of companies in this industry, including, but not limited to risks associated with
companies owning power infrastructure, propane assets, as well as capital markets, terrorism, natural disasters, climate
change, operating, regulatory, environmental, supply and demand, and price volatility risks.
Renewable Energy Infrastructure Industry Risk. Companies in the renewable energy infrastructure industry are subject to
many business, economic, environmental, and regulatory risks that can adversely affect the costs, revenues, profits, and
viability of companies in the industry. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following: volatility in competing
commodity prices and changes in supply and demand, which may affect the volume of energy commodities transported,
processed, stored and or distributed; specific risks associated with companies owning and/or operating renewable energy or
utility transmission systems; operating risks including outages, structural and maintenance, impairment and safety problems;
changes in the regulatory environment at federal, state and local levels, and in foreign markets; environmental regulation
and liability risk; terrorism risk; extreme weather and other natural disasters; and capital markets risk, resulting in a higher
capital costs or impacting growth and access to capital.
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New Technology Risk. New technologies used in renewable energy have a shorter commercial experience vs traditional energy
production technologies. Also, advancements in renewable energy may create disruptive competitive threats to both
incumbent technologies, such as centralized electric transmission and distribution networks; in progressively more efficient
or lower cost versions of existing renewable technology, or possibly advancements or innovations in competing renewable
technology.
ESG Risk. Applying ESG criteria to the investment process may exclude securities of certain issuers for non-investment
reasons and therefore the Fund may forgo some market opportunities available to funds that do not use ESG criteria.
Non-Diversified Fund Risk. Because the Fund is “non-diversified” and may invest a greater percentage of its assets in the
securities of a single issuer, a decline in the value of an investment in a single issuer could cause the Fund’s overall value to
decline to a greater degree than if the Fund held a more diversified portfolio.
Equity Securities Risk. Equity securities are susceptible to general stock market fluctuations and to volatile increases and
decreases in value. The equity securities held by the Fund may experience sudden, unpredictable drops in value or long
periods of decline in value. This may occur because of factors that affect securities markets generally or factors affecting
specific industries, sectors, geographic markets, the equity securities of energy infrastructure companies in particular, or a
particular company in which the Fund invests.
Foreign Securities Risk. Investments in securities of foreign companies involve risks not ordinarily associated with
investments in securities and instruments of U.S. issuers, including risks relating to political, social and economic
developments abroad, differences between U.S. and foreign regulatory and accounting requirements, tax risks, and market
practices, as well as fluctuations in foreign currencies.
Non-Developed Markets Risk. Non-developed market countries are in the initial stages of industrialization and generally
have low per capita income. In addition to the risks of foreign investing generally, investments in emerging market countries
have additional and heightened risks due to less stable legal, political, and business frameworks to support securities markets.
These risks include smaller securities markets with low or nonexistent trading volume and greater illiquidity and price
volatility; more restrictive national policies on foreign investment; less transparent and established taxation policies; higher
rates and volatility of inflation; increased volatility in currency exchange rates; and more delays in settling portfolio
transactions. Because of these risk factors, the Fund’s investments in non-developed market countries are subject to greater
price volatility and illiquidity than investments in developed foreign markets.
Large Cap Company Risk. The Fund’s investments in larger, more established companies are subject to the risk that larger
companies are sometimes unable to attain the high growth rates of successful, smaller companies, especially during extended
periods of economic expansion. Larger, more established companies may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive
challenges such as changes in consumer tastes or innovative smaller competitors potentially resulting in lower markets for
their common stock.
Mid Cap and Small Cap Companies Risk. The mid cap and small cap companies may not have the management experience,
financial resources, product or business diversification and competitive strengths of large cap companies. Therefore, these
securities may have more price volatility and be less liquid than the securities of larger, more established companies.
Debt Securities Risks. Investments in fixed income securities will be subject to credit risk, interest rate risk and prepayment
risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer will default or fail to pay principal and interest when due. Interest rate risk is the
risk that the value of fixed income securities fluctuates with changes in interest rates (e.g. increases in interest rates result in
a decrease in value of fixed income securities). The Fund will be exposed to heightened interest rate risk as interest rates
rise from historically low levels. Pre-payment risk is the risk that the principal on fixed income securities will be paid off
prior to maturity causing the Fund to invest in fixed income securities with lower interest rates. Duration risk is the risk that
holding long duration and long maturity investments will magnify certain other risks, including interest rate risk and credit
risk.
Government-Sponsored Entities Risk. The Fund may invest in securities issued or guaranteed by government-sponsored
entities. However, these securities may not be guaranteed or insured by the U.S. government and may only be supported by
the credit of the issuing agency.
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REIT Risk. The real estate industry has been subject to substantial fluctuations and declines on a local, regional and national
basis in the past and may continue to be in the future. The value REITs fluctuates as real estate values change. Real estate
values and incomes from real estate may decline due to economic downturns, changes in real estate market conditions, zoning
laws and regulations, and increases in property taxes, operating expenses and interest rates.
Investment Company and RIC Compliance Risk. The Fund may be subject to increased expenses and reduced performance
as a result of its investments in other investment companies. When investing in other investment companies, the Fund bears
its pro rata share of the other investment company’s fees and expenses including the duplication of advisory and other fees
and expenses. If for any taxable year the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC, the Fund’s taxable income will be subject to federal
income tax at regular corporate rates. The resulting increase to the Fund’s expenses will reduce its performance and its
income available for distribution to shareholders.
Rights and Warrants Risk. The price, performance and liquidity of warrants and rights to purchase equity securities are
typically linked to the underlying stock. These instruments have many characteristics of convertible securities and, similarly,
will react to variations in the general market for equity securities. Rights are similar to warrants, but normally have a short
duration and are distributed directly by the issuer to its shareholders. Rights and warrants have no voting rights, receive no
dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer.
Cybersecurity Risk. Investment advisers, including the Adviser, must rely in part on digital and network technologies
(collectively “cyber networks”) to conduct their businesses. Such cyber networks might in some circumstances be at risk of
cyber attacks that could potentially seek unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes such as misappropriating sensitive
information, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption.
Illiquid Investments Risk. The Fund may be exposed to liquidity risk when trading volume, lack of a market maker, or legal
restrictions impair the Fund’s ability to sell particular securities or close call option positions at an advantageous price or in
a timely manner. Illiquid investments may include restricted securities that cannot be sold immediately because of statutory
and contractual restrictions on resale.
Convertible Securities Risk. Convertible securities are hybrid securities that have characteristics of both bonds and common
stocks and are therefore subject to both debt security risks and equity risk. Convertible securities are subject to equity risk
especially when their conversion value is greater than the interest and principal value of the bond. The prices of equity
securities may rise or fall because of economic or political changes and may decline over short or extended periods of time.
Preferred Stock Risk. A preferred stock is a blend of the characteristics of a bond and common stock. It may offer a higher
yield than common stock and has priority over common stock in equity ownership, but it does not have the seniority of a
bond and, unlike common stock, its participation in the issuer’s growth may be limited. Although the dividend on a preferred
stock may be set at a fixed annual rate, in some circumstances it may be changed or passed by the issuer. Preferred stock
generally does not confer voting rights.
Epidemic Risk. Widespread disease, including pandemics and epidemics have been and can be highly disruptive to economies
and markets, adversely impacting individual companies, sectors, industries, markets, currencies, interest and inflation rates,
credit ratings, investor sentiment, and other factors affecting the value of the Fund’s investments. Given the increasing
interdependence among global economies and markets, conditions in one country, market, or region are increasingly likely
to adversely affect markets, issuers, and/or foreign exchange rates in other countries, including the U.S. These disruptions
could prevent the Fund from executing advantageous investment decisions in a timely manner and negatively impact the
Fund’s ability to achieve its investment objectives. Any such event(s) could have a significant adverse impact on the value
and risk profile of the Fund.
Derivatives Risk. Derivatives can be highly volatile, illiquid and difficult to value, and changes in the value of a derivative
held by the Fund may not correlate with the underlying instrument or the Fund’s other investments. Many of the risks
applicable to trading the instruments underlying derivatives are also applicable to derivatives trading. However, there are
additional risks associated with derivatives trading that are possibly greater than the risks associated with investing directly
in the underlying instruments. These additional risks include, but are not limited to liquidity risk, leverage risk and counterparty
credit risk.
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New Fund Risk. The Fund has no operating history and there can be no assurance that the Fund will grow to, or maintain, an
economically viable size, in which case the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Managed Portfolio Series (the “Trust”) may
determine to liquidate the Fund.

Who Should Invest
Before investing in the Fund, investors should consider their investment goals, time horizons and risk tolerance. The Fund
may be an appropriate investment for investors who are seeking:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

An investment vehicle for accessing a portfolio of growth and income related to renewable infrastructure and related
services;
A traditional flow-through mutual fund structure with daily liquidity at NAV;
Simplified tax reporting through a Form 1099;
A portfolio offering a diversified geographic exposure to companies that possess a variety of project asset
locations, including investing in currencies other than USD, typically on an unhedged basis;
A fund offering the potential for total return through capital appreciation and current income;
A fund that may be suitable for retirement and other tax exempt accounts;
Potential diversification of their overall investment portfolio; and
Professional securities selection and active management by an experienced adviser.

The Fund is designed for long-term investors and is not designed for investors who are seeking short-term gains. The Fund
will take reasonable steps to identify and reject orders from market timers. See “Shareholder Information – Buying Shares”
and “– Redeeming Shares” of the Fund’s Statutory Prospectus.

Performance
The Fund is a newly registered mutual fund and does not have a full calendar year of performance as a mutual fund. Prior
performance shown below is for the Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited, established in November 2015
(which later changed its name to the Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited in May 2019), (the “Predecessor
Fund”), an unregistered Cayman Islands limited liability company. The Predecessor Fund was reorganized into the Fund by
transferring substantially all of the Predecessor Fund’s assets to the Fund in exchange for Institutional Class shares of the
Fund on August 7, 2020, the date that the Fund commenced operations (the “Reorganization”). The Predecessor Fund has
been managed in the same style as the Fund. The Sub-Adviser served as the investment adviser to the Predecessor Fund for
the entire performance period shown and will be responsible for the portfolio management and trading for the Fund. Each
of the Fund’s portfolio managers was a portfolio manager of the Predecessor Fund at the time of the Reorganization. The
Fund’s investment objective, policies, guidelines and restrictions are, in all material respects, the same as those of the
Predecessor Fund.
The following information shows the returns of the Early Investor Shares of the Predecessor Fund since its inception in
November 2015. The Early Investor Shares are similar to the Fund’s Institutional class but, at a point in time, were subject
to performance and other fees. The expenses of the Predecessor Fund's Early Investor Shares were greater than the expenses
of the Fund's Institutional Class shares. From its inception through the date of the Reorganization, the Predecessor Fund was
not subject to certain investment restrictions, diversification requirements and other restrictions of the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”) or Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”),
which, if they had been applicable, might have adversely affected the Predecessor Fund’s performance. The Predecessor
Fund's performance was calculated using a methodology of time-weighted total returns from official net asset values. After
the Reorganization, the Fund’s performance will be calculated using the standard formula set forth in rules promulgated by
the SEC, which differs in certain respects from the methods used to compute total return for the Predecessor Fund.
The information below provides some indications of the risks of investing in the Fund. The bar chart shows how the
performance for the Predecessor Fund varied from year to year. The Predecessor Fund’s past performance shown below is
not necessarily an indication of how the Fund will perform in the future. Past performance (before and after taxes) will not
necessarily continue in the future. Updated performance is available at www.tortoiseadvisors.com or by calling 855-TCAFUND (855-822-3863).
Calendar Year Total Returns as of December 31
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Best Quarter
Q1 2017 8.55%

Worst Quarter
Q3 Q4 2016 -4.96%

Year To Date as of June 30, 2020
1.45%
Average Annual Total Returns for the periods ended December 31, 2019
Institutional Class
Return Before Taxes
Return After Taxes on Distributions
Return After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares
A Class Shares
Returns Before Taxes
S&P Global Infrastructure Index Net Total Return Index (reflects no deduction for
fees, expenses, or taxes)

One Year

Since Inception
(November 2, 2015)

23.99%
N/A
N/A

11.53%
N/A
N/A

16.89%
25.75%

9.76%
8.34%

After tax returns are calculated using the historical highest individual federal marginal income tax rates and do not reflect
the impact of state and local taxes. Prior to the Reorganization, the Fund was an unregistered fund that did not qualify as a
regulated investment company for federal income tax purposes and did not pay dividends and distributions. As a result of
the different tax treatment, the Fund is unable to show after-tax returns for periods prior to August 7, 2020. Actual after-tax
returns depend on your situation and may differ from those shown. Furthermore, the after-tax returns shown are not relevant
to those investors who hold their shares through tax-advantaged arrangements such as 401(k) plans or individual retirement
accounts (“IRAs”).
Investment Adviser, Sub-Adviser, and Portfolio Managers
TCA Advisors is the Fund’s investment adviser. Ecofin Advisors Limited is the Fund’s sub-adviser. Primary responsibility
for the day-to-day management of the Fund’s portfolio is the joint responsibility of Matthew Breidert and Michel Sznajer,
both of the Sub-Adviser. Mr. Breidert is a Senior Portfolio Manager of the Sub-Adviser. Mr. Sznajer is a Portfolio Manager
of the Sub-Adviser. Each portfolio manager has managed the Fund since its inception in August 2020. Mr. Breidert and Mr.
Sznajer were portfolio managers of the Predecessor Fund since its inception in 2015 and since joining the firm in 2016,
respectively.

Purchase and Sale of Fund Shares
You may purchase, exchange, or redeem Fund shares on any day that the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) is open for
business by written request via mail (Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund, c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services,
P.O. Box 701, Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701), by contacting the Fund by telephone at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863) or
through a financial intermediary. You may also purchase or redeem Fund shares by wire transfer. The minimum initial and
subsequent investment amounts are shown below. The Adviser may reduce or waive the minimums.
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Minimum Initial Investment
Subsequent Minimum Investment

A Class
$2,500
$100

Institutional Class
$1,000,000
$100

Tax Information
The Fund’s distributions are generally taxable, and will be taxed as ordinary income or capital gains, unless you are a taxexempt organization or are investing through a tax-advantaged arrangement such as a 401(k) plan or an IRA. For more
information, please see “Tax Consequences” of the Fund’s Statutory Prospectus. Distributions on investments made through
tax-advantaged arrangements may be taxed as ordinary income when withdrawn from those accounts.
Payments to Broker-Dealers and Other Financial Intermediaries
If you purchase Fund shares through a broker-dealer or other financial intermediary (such as a bank or financial adviser, and
including affiliates of the Adviser), the Fund and/or its Adviser may pay the intermediary for the sale of Fund shares and
related services. These payments may create conflicts of interest by influencing the broker-dealer or other intermediary and
your salesperson to recommend the Fund over another investment. Ask your salesperson or visit your financial intermediary’s
website for more information.

8

Additional Fund Information
Investment Objective
The investment objective of the Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”) is to generate long-term total
return derived principally from a combination of capital appreciation and income payments over time. The Fund’s investment
objective is not fundamental and may be changed by the Board of Trustees without the approval of the Fund’s shareholders
upon 60 days’ prior written notice to shareholders.

Principal Investment Strategies
Under normal circumstances, the Fund will principally focus its investment activities in equity securities of companies who
are developers, owners and operators, in full or in part, of renewable electricity technology plants and systems, and related
infrastructure investments. The Fund will typically emphasize those companies achieving measurable improvements in overall
emissions, as defined as those gases and particles that are exhausted into the air as a result of fuel combustion-related activities
(“Emissions”), relative to their market peers The Fund’s investments in equity securities may include investments in other
investment companies, real estate investment trusts (“REITs”), foreign investment funds, preferred stocks, rights, warrants,
convertible securities, and initial public offerings. The Fund will be invested in a range of both developed and non-developed
markets, commensurate with its investment criteria. The Fund considers non-developed market countries to be those countries
defined as such by the MSCI Market Classification Framework.
The Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in equity securities of renewable infrastructure companies, which consist
of companies deriving at least 50% of revenues from activities in power generation, transmission, distribution, storage and
ancillary or related services (“Renewable Infrastructure Universe”). Such companies invest in renewable generation or other
net-zero carbon and related services, and/or contribute to reducing Emissions. These include, but are not limited to, those
companies involved with owning solar, wind, hydro-electric, biomass, waste-to-energy and large-scale battery storage assets,
as well as transmission and distribution assets related to delivering electricity, including renewable energy.
The Renewable Infrastructure Universe is a global investment universe that includes companies mainly based in North

America, Europe and Asia, but also includes companies in other regions to a lesser extent. Under normal market conditions,
the Fund will invest at least 40% of its total assets in foreign securities, which the Sub-Adviser considers to be companies
organized outside of the United States, whose principal listing exchange is outside the United States, or who derive a significant
portion of their revenue or profits outside the United States.
The Fund’s investments in foreign securities may also include American Depositary Receipts (“ADR”s) and investments in
non-developed market securities. The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in securities of companies located in nondeveloped markets countries. The Renewable Infrastructure Universe includes a broad range of companies, ranging from
small market capitalization companies to large market capitalization companies, with assets located throughout the world.
The fund may invest in companies of all market capitalizations. The Fund’s investment in securities of companies in the
Renewable Infrastructure Universe may include illiquid securities. The Fund will concentrate in industries represented by
Renewable Infrastructure companies. The Fund is a non-diversified fund.
The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in debt securities, including but not limited to debt securities issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government or government-related entities. The Fund may also invest in derivatives which are financial
contracts whose values depend on, or are derived from, the values of underlying assets, reference rates, or indices. To manage
risk, seek particular portfolio exposure as a substitute for a comparable market position in the underlying exposure, and/or
to enhance return (including through the use of leverage), the Fund may invest in derivatives including options, futures, swap
contracts and combinations of these instruments. The Fund may invest in futures, options and swap contracts on equity and
debt securities, equity and debt indices and commodities (“Commodity Interests”) (i) with aggregate net notional value of
up to 100% of the Fund’s net assets, or (ii) for which the initial margin and premiums do not exceed 5% of its net assets, in
each case excluding bona fide hedging transactions.
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The Sub-Adviser will seek to utilize a combined investment approach, incorporating a relatively broad exposure to the
Renewable Infrastructure Universe, with targeted active weights towards those investments that the Sub-Adviser believes
offer attractive risk-adjusted intrinsic value. These active weights can change over time, relative to changes in corporate
strategy, share prices, regulatory changes or other factors such as, but not limited to, balance sheet and liquidity considerations,
ESG risk considerations, project success or jurisdictional policy issues. The Sub-Adviser incorporates ESG risk factors into
its security selection and portfolio construction. ESG risk considerations include, but are not limited to, the Sub-Adviser
evaluating specific environmental factors of a company’s policy towards carbon and potentially other emissions. From a
social perspective, the Sub-Adviser analyzes potential portfolio companies’ metrics such as, but not limited to, the percent
of women employed by the company, the existence of an equal opportunity policy, whether the company is a signatory to
the UN Global Compact and also seeks to measure and create a positive improvement regarding abatement of other harmful
emissions including PM2.5 which disproportionately affects some impoverished communities. In terms of governance, the
Sub-Adviser incorporates an analysis of the company’s board composition such as the percent of independent directors and
may also assess protection of minority interests. The Sub-Adviser analyzes these factors with a preference for positive and
improving trends when considering individual stocks for purchase in the portfolio.

Investment Process
The Sub-Adviser seeks to invest in companies engaged in the development, operation and ownership of renewable
infrastructure assets, associated with the production of electricity. Such companies will utilize a variety of well-established
commercial technologies, such as solar photovoltaics, solar thermal, wind turbines, hydro-electric generation, biomass, wasteto-energy and battery storage. In general, while the Fund will be exposed to several commercially operating technologies, it
will take limited ‘new’ technology risk, inasmuch as the technologies into which it will invest have generally already been
employed for a number of years, have well defined operating parameters, and are generally long-term financeable (bank
debt, project, finance, etc.).
The Sub-Adviser will seek to utilize a combined investment approach, incorporating a relatively broad exposure to the
Renewable Infrastructure Universe, with targeted active weights towards those investments offering attractive risk-adjusted
intrinsic value. These active weights can change over time, relative to changes in corporate strategy, share prices, regulatory
changes or other factors such as, but not limited to, balance sheet and liquidity considerations, ESG risk considerations,
project success or jurisdictional policy issues.
The Fund is seeking a long-term approach, whereby these shorter-cycle impacts may create performance variables that result
in both positive and negative outcomes. Importantly, the Investment Manager believes that general asset returns should likely
normalize over time (for each new development period), adopting changes in cost of debt and equity against expected project
returns, such that project return spreads should be somewhat consistent within an expected range.
The Sub-Adviser will conduct extensive research into the federal and localized regulatory structures and contractual mechanics
involved in revenue generation underpinning the renewable infrastructure investments. These regulations are critical for
underpinning an intrinsic value approach.
Hedging and Risk Management. The Sub-Adviser will monitor the Fund’s risk profile using risk models which analyze
market risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and credit risk.
The market risk will be analyzed by monitoring the Fund’s exposure to market movements and other relevant factors such
as sub-sectors and commodity prices. In general, the Fund will adhere to the general principle of risk diversification in respect
of its investments, including its investments in derivatives and money market instruments.
The Sub-Adviser may, but does not currently intend to, hedge the Fund's net currency exposure back into its base currency.
As a consequence, the Fund may purchase and sell spot and forward currency contracts, currency options and currency futures
contracts. The Fund will not take speculative long positions in currencies or currency derivatives.
The Sub-Adviser will monitor the credit exposure of the Fund to its counterparties arising from the use of over-the-counter
derivatives transactions. The credit risk will be mitigated contractually by negotiating the terms with external counterparties
as well as operationally by resetting over-the-counter transactions on a regular basis when practicable.
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Non-Diversification
The Fund is classified as “non-diversified” under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which means that it
may focus its investments in the securities of relatively few issuers. The Fund intends, however, to diversify its assets to the
extent necessary to qualify for tax treatment as a regulated investment company under the Code. This requires, among other
things, that at the end of each quarter of the Fund’s taxable year no more than 25% of the Fund’s assets be invested in the
securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. Government securities or securities of other regulated investment companies) ,
and at least 50% of the Fund’s assets be represented by (i) cash, (ii) securities of other regulated investment companies, (iii)
U.S. Government securities, and (iv) other securities limited, with respect to any single issuer, to an amount not greater than
5% of the Fund’s assets and not greater than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer.
The Fund is “non-diversified” under the 1940 Act, which means that it may invest more of its assets in fewer issuers than
“diversified” mutual funds.

The Fund's Targeted Portfolio Securities
The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in publicly traded equity securities. Securities in
which the Fund may invest include, but are not limited to, the following types of securities:
Common Stock. Common stock generally represents an equity ownership interest in the profits and losses of a corporation,
after payment of amounts owed to bondholders, other debt holders, and holders of preferred stock. Holders of common stock
generally have voting rights, but the Fund does not expect to have voting control in any of the companies in which the Fund
invests.
Foreign Securities. The Fund may invest in securities (including ADRs) issued by foreign issuers. These securities may be
issued by companies organized and/or having securities traded on an exchange outside the U.S. or may be securities of U.S.
companies that are denominated in the currency of a different country.
Investment Companies. The Fund may invest in other investment companies to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. Generally,
the provisions of the 1940 Act preclude the Fund from acquiring: (i) more than 3% of the total outstanding shares of another
investment company; (ii) shares of another investment company having an aggregate value in excess of 5% of the value of
the total assets of the Fund; or (iii) shares of another registered investment company and all other investment companies
having an aggregate value in excess of 10% of the value of the total assets of the Fund.
Other Equity Securities. The Fund may also invest in other types of publicly traded equity securities, including but not
limited to, preferred equity and convertible securities of companies that are organized as corporations, limited partnerships,
limited liability companies and energy REITs.
Debt Securities. The Fund may invest in debt securities, including but not limited to debt securities issued or guaranteed by
the U.S. government or government-related entities.
Illiquid Investments. The Fund may invest in illiquid investments, which will primarily include direct placements in the
securities of listed companies or 144A debt securities. The Fund will not invest in private companies. A listed energy company
may be willing to offer the purchaser more attractive features with respect to securities issued in direct placements because
it has avoided the expense and delay involved in a public offering of securities. Illiquid investments may include restricted
securities that cannot be offered for public resale unless registered under the applicable securities laws or that have a contractual
restriction that prohibits or limits their resale, and are, therefore, unlike securities that are traded in the open market.
Derivatives. The Fund may invest in derivatives which are financial contracts whose values depend on, or are derived from,
the values of underlying assets, reference rates, or indices. To manage risk, seek particular portfolio exposure as a substitute
for a comparable market position in the underlying exposure, and/or to enhance return (including through the use of leverage),
the Fund may invest in derivatives including options, futures, swap contracts and combinations of these instruments. The
Fund may invest in futures, options and swap contracts on equity and debt securities, equity and debt indices and commodities
(“Commodity Interests”) (i) with aggregate net notional value of up to 100% of the Fund’s net assets, or (ii) for which the
initial margin and premiums do not exceed 5% of its net assets, in each case excluding bona fide hedging transactions.
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Temporary Strategies; Cash or Similar Investments
At the Adviser’s discretion, the Fund may invest in high-quality, short-term debt securities and money market instruments
for (i) temporary defensive purposes in amounts up to 100% of the Fund’s assets in response to adverse market, economic,
or political conditions and (ii) retaining flexibility in meeting redemptions, paying expenses, and identifying and assessing
investment opportunities. These short-term debt securities and money market instruments include cash, shares of other
mutual funds, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, U.S. government securities, discount notes
and repurchase agreements. To the extent that the Fund invests in money market mutual funds for its cash position, there will
be some duplication of expenses because the Fund will bear its pro rata portion of such money market fund's management
fees and operational expenses. When investing for temporary defensive purposes, the Adviser or Sub-Adviser may invest up
to 100% of the Fund’s total assets in such instruments. Taking a temporary defensive position may result in the Fund not
achieving its investment objective.

Principal Risks of Investing in the Fund
Before investing in the Fund, you should carefully consider your own investment goals, the amount of time you are willing
to leave your money invested, and the amount of risk you are willing to take. An investment in the Fund is not a deposit of
a bank and is not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any other governmental agency. There can be no assurance that the
Fund will achieve its investment objective. Remember, in addition to possibly not achieving your investment goals, you
could lose all or a portion of your investment in the Fund over short or even long periods of time. The principal risks
of investing in the Fund are:
General Risks:
General Market Risk. The Fund is subject to all of the business risks and uncertainties associated with any business, including
the risk that it will not achieve its investment objective and that the value of an investment in its securities could decline
substantially and cause you to lose some or all of your investment. The NAV and investment return of the Fund will fluctuate
based upon changes in the value of the Fund's portfolio securities. Changes in the value of the Fund’s portfolio securities
may be rapid or unpredictable and cause the NAV of that Fund and its investment return to fluctuate. These fluctuations may
cause a security to be worth less than the price originally paid for it, or less than it was worth at an earlier time. Market risk
may affect a single issuer, industry, sector of the economy or the market as a whole. U.S. and international markets have,
and may continue to, experience volatility, which may increase risks associated with an investment in the Fund. Certain
social, political, economic, environmental and other conditions and events (such as natural disasters and weather-related
phenomena generally, epidemics and pandemics, terrorism, conflicts and social unrest) may adversely interrupt the global
economy or the market as a whole. The market value of securities in which the Fund invests is based upon the market’s
perception of value and is not necessarily an objective measure of the securities’ value. In some cases, for example, the stock
prices of individual companies have been negatively impacted even though there may be little or no apparent degradation in
the financial condition or prospects of the issuers. Similarly, the debt markets have experienced substantially lower valuations,
reduced liquidity, price volatility, credit downgrades, increased likelihood of default, and valuation difficulties. As a result
of this significant volatility, many of the following risks associated with an investment in the Fund may be increased.
Continuing market volatility may have adverse effects on the Fund.
Renewable Energy Company Risk. Because the Fund invests in renewable energy companies, the value of Fund shares may
be affected by events that adversely affect that industry, such as technology shifts, short product lifecycles, falling prices and
profits, competition and general economic conditions, and may fluctuate more than that of a fund that does not concentrate
in renewable energy solution companies. Renewable energy companies are dependent upon factors such as available solar
resource, wind conditions, weather conditions and power generating equipment performance that may significantly impact
the performance of such companies. Solar, wind and weather conditions generally have natural variations from season to
season and from year to year and may also change permanently because of climate change or other factors. Solar and wind
energy is highly dependent on weather conditions and, in particular, on available solar and wind conditions. Moreover, power
generating equipment used generally by renewable energy companies is accompanied by the attendant costs of maintaining
such equipment while in use and subject to risks of obsolescence associated with emerging and disruptive new technologies.
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Adviser and Sub-Adviser Risk. The ability of the Fund to meet its investment objective is directly related to the Adviser’s
or Sub-Adviser's investment strategies for that Fund. The value of your investment in the Fund may vary with the effectiveness
of the Adviser’s research, analysis and asset allocation among portfolio securities. If the Adviser’s or Sub-Advisor's investment
strategies do not produce the expected results, the value of your investment could be diminished or even lost entirely and
the Fund could underperform the market or other mutual funds with similar investment objectives.
Concentration Risk. The Fund’s strategy of focusing on companies in the Renewable Infrastructure industry means that the
performance of that Fund will be closely tied to the performance of the renewable electricity and utility infrastructure industry.
The Fund’s focus in these investments may present more risk than if it were broadly diversified over numerous industries
and sectors of the economy. A downturn in these investments would have a greater impact on the Fund than on the fund that
does not focus in such investments. At times, the performance of these investments may lag the performance of other industries
or the market as a whole. An inherent risk associated with any investment focus is that the Fund may be adversely affected
if a small number of its investments perform poorly.
New Technology Risk. New technologies used in renewable energy have a shorter commercial experience vs traditional energy
production technologies. Also, advancements in renewable energy may create disruptive competitive threat to both incumbent
technologies, such as centralized electric transmission and distribution networks; in progressively more efficient or lower
cost versions of existing renewable technology; or possibly advancements or innovations in competing renewable technology.
ESG Risk. Applying ESG criteria to the investment process may exclude securities of certain issuers for non-investment
reasons and therefore the Fund may forgo some market opportunities available to funds that do not use ESG criteria. Securities
of companies with ESG practices may shift into and out of favor depending on market and economic conditions, and the
Fund's performance may at times be better or worse than the performance of funds that do not use ESG criteria.
Non-Diversified Fund Risk. The Fund is “non-diversified” and therefore is not required to meet certain diversification
requirements under federal laws. The Fund may invest a greater percentage of its assets in the securities of a single issuer
and may have fewer holdings than other mutual funds. As a result, a decline in the value of an investment in a single issuer
could cause the Fund's overall value to decline to a greater degree than if the Fund held a more diversified portfolio.
Equity Securities Risk. Equity securities can be affected by macroeconomic and other factors affecting the stock market in
general, expectations about changes in interest rates, investor sentiment towards such entities, changes in a particular issuer’s
or industry’s financial condition, or unfavorable or unanticipated poor performance of a particular issuer or industry. Prices
of equity securities of individual entities also can be affected by fundamentals unique to the company or partnership, including
earnings power and coverage ratios. An adverse event, such as an unfavorable earnings report, may depress the value of a
particular common stock held by the Fund. In addition, prices of common stocks are sensitive to general movements in the
stock market and a drop in the stock market may depress the price of common stocks to which the Fund has exposure.
Common stock prices fluctuate for several reasons including changes in investors’ perceptions of the financial condition of
an issuer or the general condition of the relevant stock market, or the occurrence of political or economic events which affect
the issuers. In addition, common stock prices may be particularly sensitive to rising interest rates, which increases borrowing
costs and the costs of capital. Renewable Infrastructure companies’ equity prices may be influenced by regulatory or
government policy decisions and companies' dividend and distribution policies. Any of the foregoing risks could substantially
impact the ability of such an entity to maintain or grow its dividends or distributions.
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Foreign Securities Risk. Investments in securities (including ADRs) of foreign issuers involve risks not ordinarily associated
with investments in securities and instruments of U.S. issuers. For example, foreign companies are not generally subject to
uniform accounting, auditing and financial standards and requirements comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies.
Foreign securities exchanges, brokers and companies may be subject to less government supervision and regulation than
exists in the U.S. Dividend and interest income may be subject to withholding and other foreign taxes, which may adversely
affect the net return on such investments. The Fund may not be able to pass through to its shareholders any foreign income
tax credits as a result of any foreign income taxes it pays. There may be difficulty in obtaining or enforcing a court judgment
abroad. In addition, it may be difficult to effect repatriation of capital invested in certain countries. In addition, with respect
to certain countries, there are risks of expropriation, confiscatory taxation, political or social instability or diplomatic
developments that could affect the Fund's assets held in foreign countries. There may be less publicly available information
about a foreign company than there is regarding a U.S. company, and many foreign companies are not subject to accounting,
auditing, and financial reporting standards, regulatory framework and practices comparable to those in the U.S. Foreign
securities markets may have substantially less volume than U.S. securities markets and some foreign company securities are
less liquid than securities of otherwise comparable U.S. companies. Foreign markets also have different clearance and
settlement procedures that could cause the Fund to encounter difficulties in purchasing and selling securities on such markets
and may result in the Fund missing attractive investment opportunities or experiencing a loss. In addition, a portfolio that
includes securities issued by foreign issuers can expect to have a higher expense ratio because of the increased transaction
costs in foreign markets and the increased costs of maintaining the custody of such foreign securities. When investing in
securities issued by foreign issuers, there is also the risk that the value of such an investment, measured in U.S. dollars, will
decrease because of unfavorable changes in currency exchange rates. The Fund may, but does not currently intend to, hedge
its exposure to foreign currencies.
Non-Developed Markets Risk. The Fund’s investments in non-developed market countries are subject to all of the risks of
foreign investing generally, and have additional heightened risks due to a lack of established legal, political, business and
social frameworks to support securities markets. These risks include less social, political and economic stability; smaller
securities markets with low or nonexistent trading volume and greater illiquidity and price volatility; more restrictive national
policies on foreign investment, including restrictions on investment in issuers or industries deemed sensitive to national
interests; less transparent and established taxation policies; less developed regulatory or legal structures governing private
and foreign investment; less financial sophistication, creditworthiness and/or resources possessed by, and less government
regulation of, the financial institutions and issuers with which the Fund transacts; less government supervision and regulation
of business and industry practices, stock exchanges, brokers and listed companies than in the U.S.; greater concentration in
a few industries resulting in greater vulnerability to regional and global trade conditions; higher rates of inflation and more
rapid and extreme fluctuations in inflation rates; greater sensitivity to interest rate changes; increased volatility in currency
exchange rates and potential for currency devaluations and/or currency controls; greater debt burdens relative to the size of
the economy; more delays in settling portfolio transactions and heightened risk of loss from share registration and custody
practices; and less assurance that recent favorable economic developments will not be slowed or reversed by unanticipated
economic, political or social events in such countries. Because of these risk factors, the Fund’s investments in non-developed
market countries are subject to greater price volatility and illiquidity than investments in developed markets.
Large-Cap Company Risk. Investments in larger, more established companies are subject to the risk that larger companies
are sometimes unable to attain the high growth rates of successful, smaller companies, especially during extended periods
of economic expansion. Larger, more established companies may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges
such as changes in consumer tastes or innovative smaller competitors potentially resulting in lower markets for their common
stock.
Mid-Cap and Small-Cap Companies Risk. Mid-cap and small-cap companies may not have the management experience,
financial resources, product diversification and competitive strengths of large-cap companies. Therefore, their securities
may be more volatile and less liquid than the securities of larger, more established companies. Mid-cap and small-cap
company stocks may also be bought and sold less often and in smaller amounts than larger company stocks. Because of this,
if the Adviser or Sub-Adviser wants to sell a large quantity of a mid-cap or small-cap company stock, it may have to sell at
a lower price than it might prefer, or it may have to sell in smaller than desired quantities over a period of time. Analysts
and other investors may follow these companies less actively and therefore information about these companies may not be
as readily available as that for large-cap companies.
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REIT Risk. The real estate industry has been subject to substantial fluctuations and declines on a local, regional and national
basis in the past and may continue to be in the future. The value REITs fluctuates as real estate values change. Real estate
values and incomes from real estate may decline due to economic downturns, changes in real estate market conditions, zoning
laws and regulations, and increases in property taxes, operating expenses and interest rates.
Debt Securities Risks. The value of debt securities may decline for a number of reasons, such as management performance,
financial leverage and reduced demand of the issuer’s products and services. Debt securities are subject to the following
risks:
•

Call Risk. During periods of declining interest rates, a bond issuer may “call,” or repay, its high yielding bonds before
their maturity dates. In this event the Fund would then be forced to invest in the unanticipated proceeds at lower
interest rates, resulting in a decline in its income.

•

Credit Risk. Issuers of debt securities may be unable to make principal and interest payments when they are due.
There is also the risk that the securities could lose value because of a loss of confidence in the ability of the issuer
to pay back debt. The degree of credit risk for a particular security may be reflected it its credit rating. Lower rated
debt securities involve greater credit risk, including the possibility of default or bankruptcy.
• Interest Rate Risk. Debt securities could lose value because of interest rate changes. For example, bonds tend to
decrease in value if interest rates rise. Debt securities with longer maturities sometimes offer higher yields, but are
subject to greater price shifts as a result of interest rate changes than debt securities with shorter maturities. The Fund
will be exposed to heightened interest rate risk as interest rates rise from historically low levels. Substantial
redemptions from bond and other income funds may worsen that impact. Other types of securities also may be
adversely affected from an increase in interest rates.
• Reinvestment Risk. If the Fund reinvests the proceeds of matured or sold securities at market interest rates that are
below its portfolio earnings rate, its income will decline.
• Prepayment and Extension Risk. Prepayment occurs when the issuer of a debt security exercises its option to call
or repays principal prior to the security’s maturity. During periods of declining interest rates, issuers may increase
pre-payments of principal causing the Fund to invest in debt securities with lower yields thus reducing income
generation. Similarly, during periods of increasing interest rates, issuers may decrease pre-payments of principal
extending the duration of debt securities potentially to maturity. This is known as extension risk and may increase
the Fund's sensitivity to rising rates and the potential for price declines. Debt securities with longer maturities are
subject to greater price shifts as a result of interest rate changes. Also, if the Fund is unable to liquidate lower yielding
securities to take advantage of a higher interest rate environment, its ability to generate income may be adversely
affected. The potential impact of prepayment features on the price of a debt security can be difficult to predict and
result in greater volatility.
• Duration Risk. The Fund does not have a set policy regarding the maturity or duration of any or all of its securities.
Holding long duration and long maturity investments will magnify certain risks, including interest rate risk and credit
risk.
Government-Sponsored Entities Risk. The Fund may invest in securities issued or guaranteed by government-sponsored
entities. However, these securities may not be guaranteed or insured by the U.S. government and may only be supported by
the credit of the issuing agency.
Cybersecurity Risk. Investment advisers, including the Adviser, must rely in part on digital and network technologies
(collectively “cyber networks”) to conduct their businesses. Such cyber networks might in some circumstances be at risk of
cyber attacks that could potentially seek unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes such as misappropriating sensitive
information, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption. Cyber attacks might potentially be carried out by persons
using techniques that could range from efforts to electronically circumvent network security or overwhelm websites to
intelligence gathering and social engineering functions aimed at obtaining information necessary to gain access. Nevertheless,
cyber incidents could potentially occur, and might in some circumstances result in unauthorized access to sensitive information
about the Adviser, Sub-Adviser or their clients.

15

Derivatives Risk. The Fund may utilize derivatives. Many of the risks applicable to trading the instruments underlying
derivatives are also applicable to derivatives trading. However, there are additional risks associated with derivatives trading
that may be greater than the risks associated with investing directly in the underlying instruments. Investing in derivatives
may involve the use of highly specialized instruments that require investment techniques and risk analyses different from
those associated with other investments. Derivatives can be highly volatile, illiquid and difficult to value, and changes in
the value of a derivative held by the Fund may not correlate with the underlying instrument or other investments. Additional
risks include, but are not limited to the possible default of the counterparty to the transaction, illiquidity of the derivative
investments or leverage risk. Furthermore, the ability to successfully use these techniques depends on the Adviser’s ability
to predict pertinent market movements, which cannot be assured. Additionally, amounts paid by the Fund as premiums and
cash, or other assets segregated as collateral with respect to derivatives, are not otherwise freely available for investment
purposes. There can be no assurance that regulation of derivative instruments and markets will not have a material adverse
effect on the Fund or will not impair the ability of the Fund to implement certain derivative strategies or to achieve its
investment objective. In addition, changes in government regulation of derivatives could affect the character, timing and
amount of the Fund’s taxable income or gains. The Fund’s use of derivatives may be limited by the requirements for taxation
of the Fund as a regulated investment company. A more complete discussion of derivatives and their risks is included in the
Fund's Statement of Additional Information (“SAI”) under the heading “Options, Futures and Other Strategies.”
Hedging Risk. It is not possible to hedge fully or perfectly against any risk. While hedging can reduce losses, it can also
reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in a different manner than anticipated by the Fund or if the
cost of the derivative outweighs the benefit of the hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the
derivative will not match those of the holdings being hedged as expected by the Fund, in which case any losses on the holdings
being hedged may not be reduced or may be increased. There can be no assurance that the Fund’s hedging strategies will be
effective or that hedging transactions will be available to the Fund. The Fund is not required to engage in hedging transactions
at any given time or from time to time, even under volatile market environment and each Fund may choose not to do so from
time to time.
Illiquid/Restricted Securities Risk. The Fund may invest in securities of any market capitalization and may be exposed to
liquidity risk when trading volume, lack of a market maker, or legal restrictions impair the Fund’s ability to sell particular
securities or close call option positions at an advantageous price or a timely manner. In the event certain securities experience
limited trading volumes, the prices of such securities may display abrupt or erratic movements at times. In addition, it may
be more difficult for the Fund to buy and sell significant amounts of such securities without an unfavorable impact on
prevailing market prices. As a result, these securities may be difficult to sell at a favorable price at the times when the Adviser
or Sub-Adviser believes it is desirable to do so. Investment in securities that are less actively traded (or over time experience
decreased trading volume) may restrict the Fund’s ability to take advantage of other market opportunities.
Restricted securities are less liquid than securities traded in the open market because of statutory and contractual restrictions
on resale. Such securities are, therefore, unlike securities that are traded in the open market, which can be expected to be
sold immediately if the market is adequate. This reduced liquidity creates special risks for the Fund. However, the Fund
could sell such securities in private transactions with a limited number of purchasers or in public offerings under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”). Adverse conditions in the public securities markets may preclude a public offering
of securities. When the Fund must arrange registration because that Fund wishes to sell the security, a considerable period
may elapse between the time the decision is made to sell the security and the time the security is registered so that the Fund
can sell it. The Fund would bear the risks of any downward price fluctuation during that period.
Investment Company and RIC Compliance Risk. The Fund may be subject to increased expenses and reduced performance
as a result of its contemplated investments in other investment companies. If the Fund invests in investment companies
(including other closed-end, open-end funds, and ETFs), it will bear additional expenses based on its pro rata share of the
investment company’s operating expenses, including the duplication of advisory and other fees and expenses. Additional
risks of owning an investment company generally includes the risks of owning the underlying securities the investment
company holds. In addition, the Fund intends to elect to be treated, and to qualify each year, as a RIC under the Internal
Revenue Code. To maintain the Fund’s qualification for federal income tax purposes as a RIC, the Fund must meet certain
source-of-income, asset diversification and annual distribution requirements. If for any taxable year the Fund fails to qualify
for the special federal income tax treatment afforded to RICs, all of such Fund’s taxable income will be subject to federal
income tax at regular corporate rates (without any deduction for distributions to its shareholders). The resulting increase to
the Fund’s expenses will reduce its performance and its income available for distribution.
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Rights and Warrants Risk. The price, performance and liquidity of warrants and rights to purchase equity securities are
typically linked to the underlying stock. These instruments have many characteristics of convertible securities and, similarly,
will react to variations in the general market for equity securities. Rights are similar to warrants, but normally have a short
duration and are distributed directly by the issuer to its shareholders. Rights and warrants have no voting rights, receive no
dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer.
IPO Risk. The market value of IPO shares will fluctuate considerably due to factors such as the absence of a prior public
market, unseasoned trading, the small number of shares available for trading and limited information about the issuer. The
purchase of IPO shares may involve high transaction costs. IPO shares are subject to market risk and liquidity risk.
Convertible Securities Risk. The Fund may be subject to convertible securities risk. Convertible securities are hybrid securities
that have characteristics of both bonds and common stocks and are therefore subject to both debt security risks and equity
risk. Convertible securities are subject to equity risk especially when their conversion value is greater than the interest and
principal value of the bond. The prices of equity securities may rise or fall because of economic or political changes and
may decline over short or extended periods of time.
Preferred Stock Risk. The Fund may be subject to preferred stock risk. A preferred stock is a blend of the characteristics of
a bond and common stock. It may offer a higher yield than common stock and has priority over common stock in equity
ownership, but it does not have the seniority of a bond and, unlike common stock, its participation in the issuer’s growth
may be limited. Although the dividend on a preferred stock may be set at a fixed annual rate, in some circumstances it may
be changed or passed by the issuer. Preferred stock generally does not confer voting rights.
Epidemic Risk. Widespread disease, including pandemics and epidemics have been and can be highly disruptive to
economies and markets, adversely impacting individual companies, sectors, industries, markets, currencies, interest and
inflation rates, credit ratings, investor sentiment, and other factors affecting the value of the Fund’s investments. Given the
increasing interdependence among global economies and markets, conditions in one country, market, or region are
increasingly likely to adversely affect markets, issuers, and/or foreign exchange rates in other countries, including the U.S.
These disruptions could prevent the Fund from executing advantageous investment decisions in a timely manner and
negatively impact the Fund’s ability to achieve its investment objectives. Any such event(s) could have a significant
adverse impact on the value and risk profile of the Fund.
New Fund Risk. The Fund has no operating history and there can be no assurance that the Fund will grow to, or maintain, an
economically viable size, in which case the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Managed Portfolio Series (the “Trust”) may
determine to liquidate the Fund.

Risks Related to Investing in the Renewable Infrastructure Industry:
Laws, Regulations and Governmental Policies. Companies are subject to extensive international, federal, state, local laws,
regulations, rules and ordinances relating to pollution, protection of the environment and human health. Actual or alleged
violations of environmental health and safety laws or permit requirements could result in restrictions or prohibitions on plant
operations and substantial civil or criminal sanctions. Changes in regulations could inhibit or interrupt operations, or require
modifications to facilities or operations. Accordingly, environmental or regulatory matters may cause companies to incur
significant unanticipated losses, costs or liabilities, which could reduce profitability. Companies could incur significant
expenditures in order to comply with existing or future laws. Capital expenditures and costs relating to regulatory matters
will be subject to evolving regulatory requirements and will depend on the timing of the promulgation and enforcement of
specific standards which impose requirements on operations. Capital expenditures and costs beyond those currently
anticipated may therefore be required under existing or future laws. Furthermore, companies may be liable for the costs of
investigating and cleaning up environmental contamination on or from their properties or at off-site locations or from disposal
activities that pre-dated the purchase of acquired businesses. Companies may therefore incur additional costs and expenditures
beyond those currently anticipated to address all such known and unknown situations under existing and future laws.
Global Economic and Political Risks. Companies operate and serve customers in many parts of the world, and encounter a
variety of political and legal risks unique to those jurisdictions. Local economic conditions may vary and may have a
meaningful influence on the outcome of business activities. Some of these risks are impacted by regional inflation, economic
cycles, currency volatility, sovereign debt markets, local economic environments, and regional trade patterns.
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High Research and Development Costs. To compete successfully, companies must maintain a successful R&D effort, develop
new production processes, and improve their existing processes ahead of competitors. R&D efforts are critical to success
and are aimed at solving complex problems. As such, companies do not expect that all of their projects will be successful.
Companies may be unable to develop and market new projects successfully, and products and technologies offered by others
may affect demand for their projects. These types of events could negatively affect their competitive position and may reduce
revenue, increase costs, lower gross margin percentage, or require the companies to impair their assets
Price Volatility or Interruptions in Supply of Materials and Components. The prices of the materials and components
purchased from third-parties may be cyclical and volatile. The cost of these materials and components may represent a
substantial portion of operating expenses. Companies frequently enter into supply agreements with particular suppliers, but
disruptions of existing supply arrangements or expiration of favorable supply contracts could substantially impact profitability.
If certain suppliers are unable to meet their obligations under present supply agreements, this may force them to pay higher
prices to obtain adequate supplies. In addition, if materials and components become unavailable within a geographic area
from which they are now sourced, companies may not be able to obtain suitable or cost effective substitutes. Any interruption
in the supply of materials and components could increase costs or decrease revenues, which could reduce cash flow.
Intellectual Property Protection and Infringement. Companies’ ability to enforce their patents, copyrights, software licenses,
and other intellectual property is subject to general litigation risks, as well as uncertainty as to the enforceability of their
intellectual property in various countries. When companies seek to enforce their rights, they are often subject to claims that
the intellectual property is invalid, not enforceable, or licensed to the opposing party.
Companies may face intellectual property infringement claims from individuals and companies, including those who have
acquired patent portfolios to assert claims against other companies. Most companies are engaged in a number of litigation
matters involving intellectual property. Claims that their products or processes infringe the intellectual property of others
could cause them to incur large costs to respond to, defend, and resolve the claims, and may divert the efforts and attention
of management and technical personnel.
Finally, the theft or unauthorized use or publication of trade secrets and other confidential business information could harm
competitive position and reduce acceptance of products; the value of investment in R&D, product development, and marketing
could be reduced; and third-parties might make claims related to losses of confidential or proprietary information or enduser data, or system reliability. These incidents and claims could severely disrupt business, and companies could suffer losses,
including the cost of product recalls and returns and reputational harm.
Changes in Domestic and International Policies in Support of Renewable Energy Sources. Development and profitability
of renewable energy projects are significantly dependent on the existence of regulatory frameworks and policies in support
of such development. Some countries by regulation have provided various incentives for electricity production from renewable
sources. In particular, the European Union and its principal Member States, the United Kingdom, the People’s Republic of
China, Japan and the United States of America have adopted policies actively supporting renewable energy. These policies
include measures such as: (i) obligations to acquire the electricity produced from renewable energy sources, or the imposition
of mandatory quotas for acquisition of renewable energy on producers or distributors, preferential rights of access to the
network and the right to distribute electricity through the network; (ii) tax incentives such as the Production Tax Credit system
in the United States of America, which grants tax credits in proportion to the amount of wind or certain other types of
renewable energy produced and sold during each tax year; or (iii) green certificate programs (such as the Renewable Obligation
Certificates in the United Kingdom and the Renewable Energy Certificates in certain states in the United States of America)
that are negotiable on both organized and unorganized markets. Although the support for renewable energy sources has been
strong in prior years, and both the European Union and the United States of America periodically reaffirm their desire to
sustain and strengthen that support, the possibility that these policies may be modified or the measures supporting renewable
energy sources may be repealed in the future cannot be discarded, particularly those that may benefit the companies’ renewable
energy plants.
Utility and Industry Related Risks. The risks associated with investments in electric utility companies include those involving
the construction, operation and licensing of nuclear power plants (as further described below), including the risk of nuclear
accident. The market value of the stock of electric utility companies also may be adversely affected by inadequate rate
increases from regulatory agencies. Other risks of electric utilities include their market sensitivity to changes in long-term
interest rates, their continuing requirements for raising additional capital and their obligation to comply with environmental
and other governmental mandates.
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The Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Nuclear Generation Facilities. Nuclear generation facilities are subject
to environmental, health and financial risks, such as risks relating to site storage of spent nuclear fuel, the disposition of spent
nuclear fuel, leakage and emissions of tritium and other radioactive elements in the event of a nuclear accident or otherwise,
the threat of a terrorist attack and other potential liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of the facilities.
In the event of an incident at an owned or operated nuclear facility, significant retrospective assessments, retrospective
insurance premium charges and a variety of other expense could be incurred. Regulatory bodies that oversee nuclear facilities
have broad authority to impose licensing and safety-related requirements on the construction and operation of such facilities,
and these are subject to change. Incidents that occur at other non-owned facilities may result in substantial changes to
regulation, compliance and operating expenses which may negatively impact financial results.
Weather Conditions. Wind and solar energy are highly dependent on climatic conditions. The profitability of a renewable
energy plant depends, among other factors, on the wind and solar conditions experienced at the site, which are inherently
variable. During the development phase of wind and solar projects, prior to construction, a study is conducted at each proposed
site. The principal starting assumption upon which investment decisions of the companies are based is the conclusions of
this study. Companies cannot guarantee that the climatic conditions of a wind or solar farm will correspond to the assumptions
made by the companies nor, therefore, can it guarantee that its wind or solar farms will achieve the initially contemplated
production levels. If wind or solar conditions diminish at all, it could result in a reduction of operating efficiency, production
of energy and profitability.
Dependence on Electricity Transmission Services. Power companies depend on high voltage and other transmission facilities
to transmit the electricity it sells. Such facilities are owned and managed by third-parties. Typically, the power companies
are not the owner of, nor do they control, the transmission facilities except those needed to interconnect their farms to the
electricity network. In this respect, the transport network is owned by and is the responsibility of the transport companies
and the distribution networks of the distributor companies. The companies are not the owner of these networks, but they need
to have these in order to be able to connect their generation assets. In the event of failure of the transmission facilities utilized
by the companies to sell the electricity they produce, apart from suffering economic losses, the companies could be liable
for damages suffered by their customers, such as the cost arising from the need to acquire additional energy at market prices.
Volatility of Market Price of Electricity. In addition to the regulated incentives, in certain countries the compensation received
has a component tied to the market price. Market prices may be volatile and are affected by multiple factors including, inter
alia: (i) the cost of the raw materials used as the primary source of energy; (ii) the demand of the end user; (iii) the average
rainfall for the period and (iv) the price of greenhouse gas emission allowances. In such countries there exists the risk that
the regulated component might not fully compensate for fluctuations in the market price and, therefore, there is the risk that
the total compensation may be volatile.
Capital Intensive Business. Power companies must make significant investments in their business and the investments made
in a power plant are only recovered long term. The investment required for development and construction of power plants
may vary based on the cost of the fixed assets. The cost of this equipment may increase if demand therefore rises or if the
prices of key components and raw materials used to build that equipment rise. There also are other factors affecting the
amount of the investment, such as the price of the construction work on the facilities. A material increase in the costs of
development and construction of a power plant could have a material adverse effect on companies’ objectives, business,
financial status and results of operations.
Risks Deriving From Public Opposition. There are certain persons, associations and groups that may oppose renewable
energy projects and other electricity generation plants, using arguments such as degradation of the landscape, noise pollution,
injury of birds and generalized environmental damage. Although the development of renewable energy projects generally
requires an environmental impact study and public hearing prior to grant of the corresponding governmental permits, the
companies cannot guarantee that a given facility will be accepted by the affected population. Furthermore, in those areas
where plants or other facilities are near residential areas the opposition of the local population may result in adoption of
restrictive regulations or measures regarding the farms after they become operational.
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Exclusion of Adviser from Commodity Pool Operator Definition
An exclusion from the definition of “commodity pool operator” (“CPO”) under the Commodity Exchange Act (“CEA”) and
the rules of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) has been claimed with respect to the Fund, and, therefore,
the Adviser is not subject to CFTC registration or regulation as a CPO with respect to the Fund.
Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings
A description of the Fund's policies and procedures with respect to the disclosure of the Fund's portfolio holdings is available
in the SAI.

Investment Management
Investment Adviser
The Fund has entered into an investment advisory agreement (the “Advisory Agreement”) with TCA Advisors, a SEC
registered investment adviser (the “Adviser”). The principal business address of the Adviser is 5100 W. 115th Place, Leawood,
Kansas 66211. The telephone number for the Adviser is (913) 981-1020 and the Adviser’s website is
www.tortoiseadvisors.com.
The Adviser specializes in investing in essential asset companies across the energy value chain, including energy infrastructure.
As of June 30, 2020, the Adviser managed investments of approximately $7.53 billion, including the assets of publicly traded
closed-end funds, these open-end funds and other accounts. The Adviser is under common control with the Sub-Adviser and
Tortoise Index Solutions, LLC, a registered adviser that manages three series of the Trust.
Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser provides the Fund with investment research and advice and furnishes the
Fund with an investment program consistent with the Fund’s investment objective and policies, subject to the supervision
of the Board of Trustees. The Advisory Agreement allows the Adviser to carry out any of its obligations under the Advisory
Agreement, including portfolio management by employing a sub-adviser. The Adviser maintains books and records with
respect to the securities transactions and reports to the Board of Trustees on the Fund's investments and performance. The
Board of Trustees has sole responsibility for selecting, evaluating the performance of, and replacing as necessary, any of the
service providers to the Fund, including the Adviser.
For its services, on a monthly basis, the Fund pays the Adviser a management fee of 0.75% of the average daily net assets
of the Fund.
A discussion regarding the basis of the Board’s approval of the Advisory Agreement, with respect to the Fund will be available
in the Fund's annual report to shareholders for the period ended November 30, 2020.
Conflicts of interest may arise because the Adviser and its affiliates generally will be carrying on substantial investment
activities for other clients in which the Fund will have no interest. The Adviser or its affiliates may have financial incentives
to favor certain of such accounts over the Fund. Any of the Adviser’s proprietary accounts or other customer accounts may
compete with the Fund for specific trades. The Adviser or its affiliates may give advice and recommend securities to, or buy
or sell securities for, other accounts and customers, which advice or securities recommended may differ from the advice
given to, or securities recommended or bought or sold for the Fund, even though their investment objectives may be the same
as, or similar to, those of the Fund.
Situations may occur in which the Fund could be disadvantaged because of the investment activities conducted by the Adviser
and its affiliates for their other accounts. Certain of the Adviser’s managed funds and accounts may invest in the equity
securities of a particular company, while other funds and accounts managed by the Adviser may invest in the debt securities
of the same company. Such situations may be based on, among other things, the following: (1) legal or internal restrictions
on the combined size of positions that may be taken for the Fund or the other accounts, thereby limiting the size of the Fund’s
position; (2) the difficulty of liquidating an investment for the Fund or the other accounts where the market cannot absorb
the sale of the combined position; or (3) limits on co-investing in direct placement securities under the 1940 Act. The Fund’s
investment opportunities may be limited by affiliations of the Adviser or its affiliates with energy companies. Please see the
“Statement of Additional Information”.
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Fund Expenses. The Fund is responsible for its own operating expenses. Pursuant to an Operating Expenses Limitation
Agreement between the Adviser and the Trust, on behalf of the Fund, the Adviser has agreed to reimburse the Fund for its
operating expenses, in order to ensure that the Fund’s Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses (excluding Rule 12b-1 fees,
front-end or contingent deferred loads, taxes, leverage/borrowing interest, interest expense, dividends paid on short sales,
brokerage commissions, acquired fund fees and expenses, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization,
or extraordinary expenses) do not exceed 1.00% of the daily net assets of the Fund. The Operating Expenses Limitation
Agreement will be in effect and cannot be terminated through at least August 7, 2021. Expenses reimbursed by the Adviser
may be recouped by the Adviser for a period of 36 months following the month during which such reimbursement was made,
if such recoupment can be achieved without exceeding the expense limit in effect at the time the expense reimbursement
occurred and at the time of the recoupment.

Investment Sub-Adviser
The Adviser has entered into an investment sub-advisory agreement (the “Sub-Advisory Agreement”) with Ecofin Advisors
Limited. Prior to July 9, 2020, the Sub-Adviser was named Tortoise Advisors UK Limited. The principal business address
of the Sub-Adviser is 15 Buckingham Street, London, WC2N 6DU United Kingdom. Pursuant to the Sub-Advisory
Agreement, the Sub-Adviser and their portfolio managers identified below are entirely responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Fund’s, including the purchase, retention, and sale of securities, subject to the supervision of the Adviser.
The Sub-Adviser specializes in the global utility, infrastructure, alternative energy and environmental sectors. As of June 30,
2020, the Adviser managed investments of approximately $462.7 million, including the assets of a publicly traded UK
investment trust, an open-end fund, UCITS and other accounts. The Sub-Adviser is under common control with the Adviser
and Tortoise Index Solutions, LLC.

Portfolio Managers
Primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Fund's portfolio is the joint responsibility of Matthew Breidert
and Michel Sznajer.
Matthew Breidert, Senior Portfolio Manager
Mr. Matthew Breidert joined Ecofin in 2006. He is a senior portfolio manager, overseeing sustainable, impact and ESG
strategies, both long only and long/short. Prior to joining Ecofin, Mr. Breidert was an assistant portfolio manager at Millennium
Partners, based in New York. Previously, he was an investment banker with SG Barr Devlin, a division of Société Générale,
where he focused on mergers and acquisitions and financial advisory to global utilities and power companies. Prior to that,
he worked at Cornerstone Energy Advisers and FT Energy/RDI in Boulder, Colorado, where he focused on energy and utilityfocused economic policy. Mr. Breidert earned a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Illinois-Urbana Champaign
and a Master of Business Administration from Washington University in St. Louis.
Michel Sznajer, CFA, Portfolio Manager/Investment Analyst
Mr. Sznajer joined Ecofin in 2016 and is a portfolio manager/analyst focused on sustainable products. Before joining Ecofin,
he was a partner and portfolio manager at Silvaris Capital Management. Previously Mr. Sznajer was employed at Wellington
Management Co. as an industrial/Infrastructure analyst and portfolio manager. Prior to this, he worked at Goldman Sachs
and Indosuez W.I. CARR covering the telecom sectors in Asia. Mr. Sznajer started his career as a management consultant at
Bain & Company, covering technology, media and telecom and financial sectors in Asia and Europe. He earned an MSc in
business and engineering from Brussels University and is a CFA® charterholder.

Multi-Manager Strategies
As part of its services to the Funds, the Adviser researches, evaluates, and may recommend professional investment managers
to serve as sub-advisers. The Fund, the Trust, and an affiliate of the Adviser have applied to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) for an exemptive order that would permit the Adviser, subject to approval of the Board of Trustees
of Managed Portfolio Series, to enter into new or modified sub-advisory agreements with existing or new sub-advisers for
the Fund, without approval of the Fund's shareholders (“Exemptive Relief”). There is no guarantee that such an order will
be issued. If the proposed Exemptive Relief is granted by the SEC, the Fund will be required to notify shareholders of the
retention of a new sub-adviser within 90 days of the hiring of the new sub-adviser. In the future, the Adviser may propose
to appoint or replace one or more sub-advisers, subject to Board approval and applicable shareholder notice requirements.
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Shareholder Information
Pricing of Shares
The price of each class of the Fund’s shares is based on its NAV. The NAV of each class of shares is calculated by dividing
the total assets of each class, less the liabilities of each class, by the number of shares outstanding of each class. The Fund’s
NAVs are calculated at the close of regular trading of the NYSE, which is generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time. The NAVs
will not be calculated nor may investors purchase or redeem Fund shares on days that the NYSE is closed for trading, even
though certain Fund securities (i.e., foreign or debt securities) may trade on days the NYSE is closed, and such trading may
materially affect the NAV of each class of the Fund’s shares.
The Fund’s assets are generally valued at their market price using valuations provided by independent pricing services. Fixed
income securities with remaining maturities of 60 days or less are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
When market quotations are not readily available, a security or other asset is valued at its fair value as determined under fair
value pricing procedures approved by the Board of Trustees. These fair value pricing procedures will also be used to price
a security when corporate events, events in the securities market and/or world events cause the Adviser to believe that a
security’s last sale price may not reflect its actual market value. The intended effect of using fair value pricing procedures
is to ensure that the Fund is accurately priced. The Board of Trustees will regularly evaluate whether the Trust’s fair value
pricing procedures continue to be appropriate in light of the specific circumstances of the Fund and the quality of prices
obtained through the application of such procedures by the Trust’s valuation committee.
When fair value pricing is employed, security prices that the Fund uses to calculate its NAV may differ from quoted or
published prices for the same securities. Due to the subjective and variable nature of fair value pricing, it is possible that the
fair value determined for a particular security may be materially different (higher or lower) than the price of the security
quoted or published by others, the value when trading resumes, and/or the value realized upon the security’s sale. Therefore,
if a shareholder purchases or redeems Fund shares when the Fund holds securities priced at a fair value, the number of shares
purchased or redeemed may be higher or lower than it would be if the Fund were using market value pricing.
Certain foreign securities may be valued at intraday market values in such foreign markets. Additionally, in the case of foreign
securities, the occurrence of certain events (such as a significant surge or decline in the U.S. or other markets) after the close
of foreign markets, but prior to the time the Fund’s NAV is calculated will often result in an adjustment to the trading prices
of foreign securities when foreign markets open on the following business day. If such events occur, the Fund will value
foreign securities at fair value, taking into account such events, in calculating the NAV. In such cases, use of fair value pricing
can reduce an investor’s ability to profit by estimating the Fund’s NAV in advance of the time the NAV is calculated. In
addition, the Fund’s investments in smaller or medium capitalization companies and certain debt securities are more likely
to require a fair value determination because they may be more thinly traded and less liquid than securities of larger companies.
It is anticipated that the Fund's portfolio holdings will be fair valued only if market quotations for those holdings are unavailable
or considered unreliable.

Buying Shares
Shares of the Fund are purchased at the next NAV per share calculated plus any applicable sales charge after your purchase
order is received in good order by the Fund (as defined below). Shares may be purchased directly from the Fund or through
a financial intermediary, including but not limited to, certain brokers, financial planners, financial advisors, banks, insurance
companies, retirement, benefit and pension plans or certain packaged investment products. Institutional Class shares may
also be available on certain brokerage platforms. An investor transacting in Institutional Class shares through a broker acting
as an agent for the investor may be required to pay a commission and/or other forms of compensation to the broker.
Shares of the Fund have not been registered and are not offered for sale outside of the United States. The Fund generally
does not sell shares to investors residing outside the United States, even if they are United States citizens or lawful permanent
residents, except to investors with United States military APO or FPO addresses or in certain other circumstances where the
Chief Compliance Officer and Anti-Money Laundering Officer for the Trust conclude that such sale is appropriate and is not
in contravention of United States law.
A service fee, currently $25, as well as any loss sustained by the Fund, will be deducted from a shareholder’s account for
any purchases that do not clear. The Fund and U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, the Fund's transfer agent (the “Transfer
Agent”), will not be responsible for any losses, liability, cost or expense resulting from rejecting any purchase order.
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Minimum Investments
The minimum initial investment amount is $2,500 for the A Class and $1,000,000 for the Institutional Class. The minimum
subsequent investment amount is $100 for all classes. The Adviser reserves the right to waive the minimum initial or
subsequent investment amounts. Shareholders will be given at least 30 days’ written notice of any increase in the minimum
dollar amount of initial or subsequent investments.
Purchases through Financial Intermediaries
For share purchases through a financial intermediary, you must follow the procedures established by your financial
intermediary. Your financial intermediary is responsible for sending your purchase order and payment to the Transfer Agent.
Your financial intermediary holds the shares in your name and receives all confirmations of purchases and sales from the
Fund. Your financial intermediary may charge for the services that it provides to you in connection with processing your
transaction order or maintaining an account with them.
If you place an order for the Fund’s shares through a financial intermediary that is authorized by the Fund to receive purchase
and redemption orders on its behalf (an “Authorized Intermediary”), your order will be processed at the applicable price next
calculated after receipt by the Authorized Intermediary, consistent with applicable laws and regulations. Authorized
Intermediaries are authorized to designate other Authorized Intermediaries to receive purchase and redemption orders on the
Fund’s behalf.
If your financial intermediary is not an Authorized Intermediary, your order will be processed at the applicable price next
calculated after the Transfer Agent receives your order from your financial intermediary. Your financial intermediary must
agree to send immediately available funds to the Transfer Agent in the amount of the purchase price in accordance with the
Transfer Agent’s procedures. If payment is not received in a timely manner, the Transfer Agent may rescind the transaction
and your financial intermediary will be held liable for any resulting fees or losses. Financial intermediaries that are not
Authorized Intermediaries may set cut-off times for the receipt of orders that are earlier than the cut-off times established by
the Fund.
For more information about your financial intermediary’s rules and procedures, and whether your financial intermediary is
an Authorized Intermediary, you should contact your financial intermediary directly.

Purchase Requests Must be Received in Good Order
Your share price will be based on the next NAV per share, plus any applicable sales charge, calculated after the Transfer
Agent or an Authorized Intermediary receives your purchase request in good order. “Good order” means that your purchase
request includes:
•
•
•
•
•

The name of the Fund;
The class of shares to be purchased;
The dollar amount of shares to be purchased;
Your Account Application or Invest By Mail form that is attached to your confirmation statement; and
A check payable to the name of the Fund or a wire transfer received by the Fund.

An Account Application to purchase Fund shares is subject to acceptance by the Fund and is not binding until so accepted.
The Fund reserves the right to reject any Account Application or to reject any purchase order if, in its discretion, it is in the
Fund's best interest to do so. For example, a purchase order may be refused if it appears so large that it would disrupt the
management of the Fund. Purchases may also be rejected from persons believed to be “market-timers,” as described under
“Short Term Trading Policy,” below. Accounts opened by entities, such as corporations, limited liability companies,
partnerships or trusts, will require additional documentation. Please note that if any information listed above is missing,
your Account Application will be returned and your account will not be opened.
Upon acceptance by the Fund, all purchase requests received in good order before the close of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m.,
Eastern Time) will be processed at the applicable price next calculated after receipt. Purchase requests received after the
close of the NYSE will be processed on the following business day and receive the next business day’s applicable price per
share.
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Purchase by Mail. To purchase Fund shares by mail, simply complete and sign the Account Application or investment stub
and mail it, along with a check made payable to the Fund:

Regular Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
P.O. Box 701
Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701

Overnight or Express Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
615 East Michigan Street, 3rd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202

The Fund does not consider the U.S. Postal Service or other independent delivery services to be their agents. Therefore,
deposit in the mail or with such services, or receipt at the U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC’s post office box, of purchase
or redemption requests does not constitute receipt by the Transfer Agent. Receipt of purchase or redemption requests is
determined at the time the order is received at the Transfer Agent’s offices. All purchase checks must be in U.S. dollars
drawn on a domestic financial institution. The Fund will not accept payment in cash or money orders. To prevent check
fraud, the Fund will not accept third party checks, Treasury checks, credit card checks, traveler’s checks or starter checks
for the purchase of shares. The Fund is unable to accept post-dated checks or any conditional order or payment.
Purchase by Wire. If you are making your first investment in the Fund, the Transfer Agent must have a completed Account
Application before you wire the funds. You can mail or use an overnight service to deliver your Account Application to the
Transfer Agent at the above address. Upon receipt of your completed Account Application, the Transfer Agent will establish
an account for you. Once your account has been established, you may instruct your bank to send the wire. Prior to sending
the wire, please call the Transfer Agent at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863) to advise them of the wire and to ensure proper
credit upon receipt. Your bank must include the name of the Fund, the class of shares, your name and your account number
so that your wire can be correctly applied. Your bank should transmit immediately available funds by wire to:
Wire to:
ABA Number:
Credit:
Account:
Further Credit:

U.S. Bank, N.A.
075000022
U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC
112-952-137
Name of the Fund(s)
[Class of shares to be purchased]
[Shareholder Name/Account Registration)]
[Shareholder Account Number]

Wired funds must be received prior to the close of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) to be eligible for same day
pricing. The Fund and U.S. Bank, N.A., the Fund's custodian, are not responsible for the consequences of delays resulting
from the banking or Federal Reserve wire system, or from incomplete wiring instructions.
Investing by Telephone. You may not make initial purchases of Fund shares by telephone. If you accepted telephone
transactions on your Account Application or have been authorized to perform telephone transactions by subsequent
arrangement in writing with the Fund and your account has been open for at least 7 business days, you may purchase additional
shares by telephoning the Fund toll free at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863). This option allows investors to move money
from their bank account to their Fund account upon request. Only bank accounts held at domestic financial institutions that
are Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) members may be used for telephone transactions. The minimum telephone purchase
amount is $100. If your order is received prior to the close of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time), shares will be
purchased in your account at the applicable price determined on the day your order is placed. Shareholders may encounter
higher than usual call waiting times during periods of high market activity. Please allow sufficient time to place your telephone
transaction. The Fund is not responsible for delays due to communications or transmission outages or failure. Once a telephone
transaction has been placed, it cannot be canceled or modified after the close of regular trading on the NYSE (generally 4:00
p.m., Eastern Time).
Subsequent Investments. Subject to the minimum investment amounts described above, you may add to your account at any
time by purchasing shares by mail, telephone or wire. You must call to notify the Fund at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863)
before wiring. An Invest by Mail form, which is attached to your confirmation statement, should accompany any investments
made through the mail. All subsequent purchase requests must include the Fund's name and your shareholder account number.
If you do not have the Invest by Mail form from your confirmation statement, include your name, address, Fund's name and
account number on a separate piece of paper.
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Automatic Investment Plan. For your convenience, the Fund offers an Automatic Investment Plan (“AIP”). Under the AIP,
after your initial investment, you may authorize the Fund to withdraw any amount of at least $100 that you wish to invest in
the Fund, on a monthly or quarterly basis, from your personal checking or savings account. In order to participate in the
AIP, your bank must be a member of the ACH network. If you wish to enroll in the AIP, the appropriate section in the Account
Application must be completed. The Fund may terminate or modify this privilege at any time. You may terminate your
participation in the AIP at any time by notifying the Transfer Agent five days prior to the next scheduled investment. A fee
will be charged if your bank does not honor the AIP draft for any reason.
Anti-Money Laundering Program. The Trust has established an Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program (the
“Program”) as required by the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA PATRIOT Act”) and related anti-money laundering laws and regulations. To
ensure compliance with these laws and regulations, the Account Application asks for, among other things, the following
information for all “customers” seeking to open an “account” (as those terms are defined in rules adopted pursuant to the
USA PATRIOT Act):
•
•
•
•

Full name;
Date of birth (individuals only);
Social Security or taxpayer identification number; and
Permanent street address (a P.O. Box number alone is not acceptable).

In compliance with the USA PATRIOT Act and other applicable anti-money laundering laws and regulations, the Transfer
Agent will verify certain information on your account application as part of the Program. As requested on the account
application, you must supply your full name, date of birth, social security number and permanent street address. If you are
opening the account in the name of a legal entity (e.g., partnership, limited liability company, business trust, corporation,
etc.), you must also supply the identity of the beneficial owners. Mailing addresses containing only a P. O. Box will not be
accepted. The Fund reserves the right to request additional clarifying information and may close your account if such clarifying
information is not received by the Fund within a reasonable time of the request or if the Fund cannot form a reasonable belief
as to the true identity of a customer. If you require additional assistance when completing your application, please contact
the Transfer Agent at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863).
Cancellations and Modifications. The Fund will not accept a request to cancel or modify a written transaction once processing
has begun. Please exercise care when placing a transaction request.

Redeeming Shares
In general, orders to sell or “redeem” shares may be placed directly with the Fund or through a financial intermediary. You
may redeem all or part of your investment in the Fund’s shares on any business day that the Fund calculates its NAV.
However, if you originally purchased your shares through a financial intermediary, your redemption order must be placed
with the same financial intermediary in accordance with their established procedures. Your financial intermediary is
responsible for sending your order to the Transfer Agent and for crediting your account with the proceeds. Your financial
intermediary may charge for the services that they provide to you in connection with processing your transaction order or
maintaining an account with them.
Shareholders who have an IRA or other retirement plan must indicate on their written redemption request whether to withhold
federal income tax. Redemption requests failing to indicate an election not to have tax withheld will generally be subject to
10% withholding.
Shares held in IRA or other retirement plan accounts may be redeemed by telephone at 1-855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863).
Investors will be asked whether or not to withhold taxes from any distribution.
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Payment of Redemption Proceeds. You may redeem your Fund shares at the NAV per share next determined after the Transfer
Agent or an Authorized Intermediary receives your redemption request in good order. Your redemption request cannot be
processed on days the NYSE is closed. All requests received by the Fund in good order after the close of the regular trading
session of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) will generally be processed on the next business day. Under normal
circumstances, the Fund expects to meet redemption requests through the sale of investments held in cash or cash equivalents.
In situations in which investment holdings in cash or cash equivalents are not sufficient to meet redemption requests, the
Fund will typically borrow money through the Fund's bank line-of-credit. The Fund may also choose to sell portfolio assets
for the purpose of meeting such requests. The Fund further reserve the right to distribute “in-kind” securities from the Fund's
portfolio in lieu (in whole or in part) of cash under certain circumstances, including under stressed market conditions.
Redemptions-in-kind are discussed in greater detail below.
A redemption request will be deemed in “good order” if it includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The shareholder’s name;
The name of the Fund;
The class of shares to be redeemed;
The account number;
The share or dollar amount to be redeemed; and
Signatures by all shareholders on the account and signature guarantee(s), if applicable.

Additional documents are required for certain types of redemptions, such as redemptions from accounts held by credit unions,
corporations, limited liability companies, or partnerships, or from accounts with executors, trustees, administrators or
guardians. Please contact the Transfer Agent to confirm the requirements applicable to your specific redemption request.
Redemption requests that do not have the required documentation will be rejected.
While redemption proceeds may be paid by check sent to the address of record, the Fund is not responsible for interest lost
on such amounts due to lost or misdirected mail. Redemption proceeds may be wired to your pre-established bank account
or proceeds may be sent via electronic funds transfer through the ACH network using the bank instructions previously
established for your account. The Fund typically sends the redemption proceeds on the next business day (a day when the
NYSE is open for normal business) after the redemption request is received in good order and prior to market close, regardless
of whether the redemption proceeds are sent via check, wire, or automated clearing house (ACH) transfer. Wires are subject
to a $15 fee. There is no charge to have proceeds sent via ACH; however, funds are typically credited to your bank within
two to three days after redemption. Except as set forth below, proceeds will be paid within seven calendar days after the
Fund receives your redemption request. Under unusual circumstances, the Fund may suspend redemptions, or postpone
payment for up to seven days, as permitted by federal securities law.
Please note that if the Transfer Agent has not yet collected payment for the shares you are redeeming, it may delay sending
the proceeds until the payment is collected, which may take up to 12 calendar days from the purchase date. Shareholders can
avoid this delay by utilizing the wire purchase option. Furthermore, there are certain times when you may be unable to sell
Fund shares or receive proceeds. Specifically, the Fund may suspend the right to redeem shares or postpone the date of
payment upon redemption for more than seven calendar days: (1) for any period during which the NYSE is closed (other
than customary weekend or holiday closings) or trading on the NYSE is restricted; (2) for any period during which an
emergency exists as a result of which disposal by the Fund of its securities is not reasonably practicable or it is not reasonably
practicable for the Fund to fairly determine the value of its net assets; or (3) for such other periods as the SEC may, by order,
permit for the protection of shareholders. Your ability to redeem shares by telephone will be restricted for 15 calendar days
after you change your address. You may change your address at any time by telephone or written request, addressed to the
Transfer Agent. Confirmations of an address change will be sent to both your old and new address.
Signature Guarantee. Redemption proceeds will be sent to the address of record. The Transfer Agent may require a signature
guarantee for certain requests. A signature guarantee assures that your signature is genuine and protects you from unauthorized
account redemptions. Signature guarantees can be obtained from domestic banks, brokers, dealers, credit unions, national
securities exchanges, registered securities associations, clearing agencies and savings associations, as well as from participants
in the New York Stock Exchange Medallion Signature Program and the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program
(“STAMP”), but not from a notary public. A signature guarantee, from either a Medallion program member or a non-Medallion
program member, is required of each owner in the following situations:
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•
•
•
•

If ownership is being changed on your account;
When redemption proceeds are payable or sent to any person, address or bank account not on record;
When a redemption is received by the Transfer Agent and the account address has changed within the last 15 calendar
days; and
For all redemptions in excess of $100,000 from any shareholder account where the proceeds are requested to be sent
by check.

Non-financial transactions, including establishing or modifying the ability to purchase and redeem Fund shares by telephone
and certain other services on an account, may require a signature guarantee, signature verification from a Signature Validation
Program member, or other acceptable form of authentication from a financial institution source.
In addition to the situations described above, the Fund and/or the Transfer Agent reserve(s) the right to require a signature
guarantee or other acceptable signature verification in other instances based on the circumstances relative to the particular
situation.
Redemption by Mail. You may execute most redemptions by furnishing an unconditional written request to the Fund to
redeem your shares at the next calculated NAV per share upon receipt by the Fund of such request. Written redemption
requests should be sent to the Transfer Agent at:

Regular Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
P.O. Box 701
Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701

Overnight or Express Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
615 East Michigan Street, 3rd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202

The Fund does not consider the U.S. Postal Service or other independent delivery services to be their agents. Therefore,
deposit in the mail or with such services, or receipt at the U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC’s post office box, of purchase
or redemption requests does not constitute receipt by the Transfer Agent of the Fund. Receipt of purchase orders or
redemption requests is based on when the order is received at the Transfer Agent’s offices
Wire Redemption. Redemption proceeds may be sent via wire transfer. However, the Transfer Agent charges a fee,
currently $15, per wire redemption against your account on dollar specific trades, and from proceeds on complete
redemptions and share-specific trades.
Telephone Redemption. If you have accepted telephone transactions on your Account Application or have been authorized
to perform telephone transactions by subsequent arrangement in writing with the Fund, you may redeem shares, in amounts
of $100,000 or less, by instructing the Fund by telephone at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863). Investors in an IRA or other
retirement plan will be asked whether or not to withhold federal income tax.
In order to qualify for, or to change, telephone redemption privileges on an existing account, a signature guarantee, signature
verification from a Signature Validation Program member, or other acceptable form of authentication from a financial
institution source may be required of all shareholders in order to qualify for, or to change, telephone redemption privileges
on an existing account. Telephone redemptions will not be made if you have notified the Transfer Agent of a change of
address within 15 days before the redemption request. Shareholders may encounter higher than usual call waiting times
during periods of high market activity. Please allow sufficient time to place your telephone transaction. The Fund is not
responsible for delays due to communication or transmission outages or failures.
Note: Neither the Fund nor any of their service providers will be liable for any loss or expense in acting upon instructions
that are reasonably believed to be genuine. To confirm that all telephone instructions are genuine, the Fund will use reasonable
procedures, such as requesting that you correctly state:
•
•
•

Your Fund account number;
The name in which your account is registered; or
The Social Security or taxpayer identification number under which the account is registered.

If an account has more than one owner or authorized person, the Fund will accept telephone instructions from any one owner
or authorized person.
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Systematic Withdrawal Program. The Fund offers a systematic withdrawal plan (“SWP”) whereby shareholders or their
representatives may request a redemption in a specific dollar amount of at least $100 be sent to them each month, calendar
quarter or annually. Investors may choose to have a check sent to the address of record, or proceeds may be sent to a predesignated bank account via the ACH network. To start this program, your account must have Fund shares with a value of
at least $10,000. This program may be terminated or modified by the Fund at any time. Any request to change or terminate
your SWP should be communicated in writing or by telephone to the Transfer Agent no later than five days before the next
scheduled withdrawal. A withdrawal under the SWP involves redemption of Fund shares, and may result in a gain or loss
for federal income tax purposes. In addition, if the amount requested to be withdrawn exceeds the rate of growth of assets
in your account, including any dividends credited to your account, the account will ultimately be depleted. To establish the
SWP, shareholders must complete the SWP section of the Account Application, or contact the Fund for instructions. Please
call 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863) for additional information regarding the SWP.
The Fund's Right to Redeem an Account. The Fund reserves the right to redeem the shares of any shareholder whose account
balance is less than $2,500, other than as a result of a decline in the NAV of the Fund. The Fund will provide a shareholder
with written notice 30 days prior to redeeming the shareholder’s account.
Redemption-in-Kind. The Fund generally pays redemption proceeds in cash. However, under unusual conditions that make
the payment of cash unwise (and for the protection of the Fund’s remaining shareholders), the Fund may pay all or part of a
shareholder’s redemption proceeds in portfolio securities with a market value equal to the redemption price (redemption-inkind).
Specifically, if the amount you are redeeming from the Fund during any 90-day period is in excess of the lesser of $250,000
or 1% of the Fund’s net assets, valued at the beginning of such period, the Fund has the right to redeem your shares by giving
you the amount that exceeds this threshold in securities instead of cash. If the Fund pays your redemption proceeds by a
distribution of securities, you may incur a taxable capital gain or loss as a result of the distribution. In addition, you may
incur brokerage commissions or other charges in converting the securities to cash, and you will bear any market risks associated
with such securities until they are converted into cash.
Cancellations and Modifications. The Fund will not accept a request to cancel or modify a written transaction once processing
has begun. Please exercise care when placing a transaction request.

Exchanging Shares
You may exchange all or a portion of your investment from the Fund to the other funds in the Trust that the Adviser, or an
affiliate of the Adviser, manages within the same class provided those funds are accepting purchases. The Fund available
for exchange may not be available for purchase in your state. Be sure to confirm with the Transfer Agent that the Fund into
which you wish to exchange is available for purchase in your state. Any new account established through an exchange will
be subject to the minimum investment requirements described above under “Buying Shares,” unless the account qualifies
for a waiver of the initial investment requirement. Exchanges will be executed on the basis of the relative NAV of the shares
exchanged. An exchange is considered to be a redemption of shares for federal income tax purposes on which you may
realize a taxable capital gain or loss.
You may make exchanges only between identically registered accounts (name(s), address, and taxpayer ID number). There
is currently no limit on exchanges, but the Fund reserve the right to limit exchanges (See “Short Term Trading Policy”).
Exchanges By Mail. To exchange Fund shares by mail, simply complete a written request and mail it to the Fund:

Regular Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
P.O. Box 701
Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701

Overnight or Express Mail
Name of the Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
615 East Michigan Street, 3rd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202
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The written request must contain the following information:
•
•
•
•

Your account number;
The name of the Fund and Share Class(es) you are exchanging;
The dollar amount or number of shares you want to sell (and exchange); and
A completed Account Application for the other funds in the Trust that the Adviser manages into which you want to
exchange if you desire different account privileges than those currently associated with your Fund account.

The Fund does not consider the U.S. Postal Service or other independent delivery services to be their agents. Therefore,
deposit in the mail or with such services, or receipt at U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC’s post office box, of purchase orders
or redemption requests does not constitute receipt by the Transfer Agent of the Fund. Receipt of purchase orders or redemption
requests is based on when the order is received at the Transfer Agent’s offices.
Exchanges by Telephone. If you accepted telephone transactions on your Account Application or have been authorized to
perform telephone transactions by subsequent arrangement in writing with the Fund, you may exchange your Fund shares
by telephone at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863). Shareholders may encounter higher than usual call waiting times during
periods of high market activity. Please allow sufficient time to place your telephone transaction. The Fund is not responsible
for delays due to communications or transmission outages or failure.
Note: Neither the Fund nor any of their service providers will be liable for any loss or expense in acting upon instructions
that are reasonably believed to be genuine. To confirm that all telephone instructions are genuine, the Fund will use reasonable
procedures, such as requesting that you correctly state:
•
•
•

Your Fund account number;
The name in which your account is registered; or
The social security or taxpayer identification number under which the account is registered.

Class Descriptions
The Fund offers two different share classes — A Class and Institutional Class shares. Sales charges and fees vary considerably
between the Fund's classes. Each of the Fund's share classes are available direct through the Fund's Transfer Agent and
certain share classes may be available through select financial intermediaries. You should carefully consider the differences
in the fee and sales charge structures as well as the length of time you wish to invest in the Fund before choosing which class
to purchase. Please review the “Fees and Expenses of the Fund” section of this prospectus and the information below before
investing. Consult with your financial intermediary to help you determine which class is most appropriate for you, subject
to platform availability.
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The following table lists the key features of each of the Fund's share classes.
A Class

Institutional Class

Minimum Initial
Investment
Subsequent Minimum
Investment
Waiver/Reduction of
Investment Minimums

$2,500

$1,000,000

$100

$100

At the Adviser's discretion

Although not limited to the list below, the Adviser
may waive or reduce the initial or subsequent
minimum investment amounts in any of following
circumstances:
• Certain retirement, defined benefit and pension
plans;
• Bank or trust companies investing for their own
accounts or acting in a fiduciary or similar
capacity;
• Institutional clients of the Adviser;
• Trustees and Officers of the Trust; and
• Employee retirement plans sponsored by,
affiliates of, or employees (including their
immediate families) of, the Adviser or its
affiliates.

Initial Sales Charge

5.50% or less, with lower sales charges available None
for larger investments in the Fund. Additionally,
A Class shares may be purchased at NAV by
certain investors. See “A Class – Elimination of
Initial Sales Load” below for additional
information.

Contingent Deferred
Sales Charge

No sales charge is payable at the time of
None
purchase on investments of $1 million or more,
although the Fund may impose a CDSC of 1.00%
on certain redemptions of those investments
made within 12 months of the purchase (18
months in the case of the Fund). If imposed, the
CDSC applies to redemptions made within 12
months (18 months for the Fund) of purchase and
will be assessed on an amount equal to the lesser
of the initial value of the shares redeemed and
the value of shares redeemed at the time of
redemption.

Ongoing Distribution/
Rule 12b-1 fee of 0.25%
Shareholder Service Fees
Annual Expenses
Higher than Institutional Class.

None
Lower than A Class.
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Additionally, you may be able to convert your shares to a different share class of the Fund that has a lower expense ratio
provided certain conditions are met. For shares held directly with the Transfer Agent, any shares that did not pay a sales load
may be converted to Institutional Class shares of the Fund, upon request to the Transfer Agent and provided you meet the
requirements for investing in Institutional Class shares. An exchange between share classes of the Fund is not expected to
be a taxable transaction. For financial intermediaries, this conversion feature is intended for shares held through a fee-based
or wrap fee program and applies only where there is an agreement in place between the financial intermediary and the Advisor
and/or the Distributor or their affiliates specifically for this purpose; in such instances, your shares may be converted under
certain circumstances. Shareholders who hold Institutional Class shares of the Fund through a fee-based program, but who
subsequently become ineligible to participate in the program or withdraw from the program, may not purchase additional
Institutional Class shares (except through dividend reinvestments) unless they otherwise meet the eligibility requirements
of the share class. Also shareholders no longer participating in a fee-based program may be subject to conversion of their
Institutional Class shares by their financial intermediary to another class of shares of the Fund having expenses (including
Rule 12b-1 fees) that may be higher than the expenses of the Institutional Class shares. Please contact your financial
intermediary or the Transfer Agent for additional information. Not all share classes are available through all intermediaries.
If your shares of the Fund are converted to a different share class of the Fund, the transaction will be based on the respective
NAV of each class as of the trade date of the conversion. Consequently, you may receive fewer shares or more shares than
originally owned, depending on that day’s NAVs. Your total value of the initially held shares, however, will equal the total
value of the converted shares. Please contact your financial intermediary regarding the tax consequences of any conversion.

A Class
Sales Charges. Your purchase of A Class shares may be subject to a front-end sales charge (“sales load”) or in certain
circumstances a CDSC. If applicable, a sales load will be charged on purchases of less than $1 million of A Class shares.
The table below shows the percentage sales load that you will pay on purchases of A Class shares, which decreases as the
amount of your current purchase reaches certain breakpoints. Sales load amounts are based on a percentage of the public
offering price of your purchase. Because the sales load reduces the NAV of your resulting investment, the sales load expressed
as a percentage of NAV is higher. You may be eligible under certain circumstances to aggregate existing and future investments
in the Fund with your current purchase in order to achieve a more favorable sales load on your current purchase (see “Reduced
Sales Load” below). No sales load is imposed on the reinvestment of distributions. A Class shares may be available for
purchase by clients of certain financial intermediaries without the application of a front-end sales load as described in Appendix
A to this Prospectus.

Amount of Investment
$0 but less than $50,000
$50,000 but less than $100,000
$100,000 but less than $250,000
$250,000 but less than $500,000
$500,000 but less than $1 million
$1 million(2)
(1)
(2)

Sales Load as % of:
Public
Offering Price
5.50%
4.50%
3.50%
2.50%
2.00%
0.00%

Net Asset
Value(1)
5.82%
4.71%
3.63%
2.56%
2.04%
0.00%

Dealer
Reallowance %
5.00%
3.75%
2.75%
2.00%
1.50%
0.00%

Percentages may vary slightly for particular investors as a result of rounding.
No sales load is payable at the time of purchase on investments of A Class shares of $1 million or more, although for such investments the Fund
may impose a CDSC of 1.00% on certain redemptions. If imposed, the CDSC applies to redemptions made within 12 months of purchase and will
be assessed on an amount equal to the lesser of the initial value of the shares redeemed and the value of shares redeemed at the time of redemption.
Accordingly, no sales load is imposed on increases in NAV above the initial purchase price.

The commission or underwriter concessions paid to the Fund’s distributor (the “Distributor”) is the sales load less the dealer
reallowance paid to certain financial intermediaries purchasing shares. In addition, the Distributor will receive all sales loads
on accounts without a dealer of record and may, at its discretion, offset the compensation owed to the Distributor for its
services with the sales load or underwriter concessions it receives. The Distributor may, at its discretion, reimburse the
Adviser, the Adviser’s affiliates, or other dealers for distribution-related expenses they incur from the sales loads and
underwriter concessions. The Distributor may pay broker-dealers up to 1.00% on investments made in the A Class with no
sales load. This up-front sales commission is solely financed by the Adviser and not by investors or the Fund.
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Reduced Sales Load. You may qualify for a reduced sales load on purchases of A Class shares under rights of accumulation
(“ROA”) or a letter of intent (“LOI”). To receive a sales load reduction, you must, at the time of purchase, inform your
financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent (for purchases made directly from the Fund) that you believe you qualify for a
reduced sales load. You will also need to provide your financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent with the information
necessary to verify your eligibility for a reduced sales load. Failure to provide such notification may result in you not receiving
the sales load reduction to which you are otherwise entitled.
ROA. Upon your request, your financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent will determine the applicable reduced sales load
under ROA by combining the value of your current A Class purchase with the collective value of the A Class and C Class
shares of the Fund (as of the Fund’s current day public offering price) that were purchased previously for accounts (1) in
your name, (2) in the name of your spouse, (3) in the name of you and your spouse, (4) in the name of your minor child under
the age of 21, and (5) sharing the same mailing address (“Accounts”). You must, at the time of purchase, provide your
financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent with your account number(s) and, if applicable, the account numbers for your
spouse, children (provide the children’s ages), or other household members. Certain financial intermediaries may permit
aggregation of all Fund holdings regardless of share class for purposes of calculating sales load reductions under ROA as
described in Appendix A.
The Fund may amend or terminate this right of accumulation at any time.
LOI. You may also enter into an LOI, which expresses your intent to invest $50,000 or more in the Fund's A Class within
the next thirteen months. Under an LOI, your individual purchases will be assessed the sales load applicable to the amount
you intend to invest over a thirteen month period. Any shares purchased within 90 days prior to the date you sign the LOI
may be used as credit toward your commitment, but the reduced sales load will only apply to new purchases made on or after
the date you sign your LOI. Purchases resulting from the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains do not apply toward
fulfillment of the LOI. Shares equal to 5.50% of the amount of the LOI will be held in escrow during the thirteen-month
period. If, at the end of that time the total amount of purchases made is less than the amount intended, you will be required
to pay the difference between the reduced sales load and the sales load applicable to the individual purchases had the LOI
not been in effect. This amount will be obtained from redemption of the escrow shares. Any remaining escrow shares will
be released to you.
If you establish an LOI, you can aggregate your accounts as well as the accounts of your immediate family members. You
will need to submit to your financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent from which you established your LOI (1) written
instruction with respect to the other accounts whose purchases should be considered in fulfillment of the LOI and (2) all
subsequent purchases.
Elimination of Initial Sales Load. Certain investors are eligible to purchase or redeem A Class shares without a sales load.
You must notify your financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent from which you make your purchase of your eligibility.
Failure to provide such notification may result in you paying a sales load. No sales load is assessed on purchases or redemptions
made for investment purposes by:
•

A qualified retirement plan under Section 401(a) of the Code or a plan operating consistent with Section 403(b) of
the Code, or certain qualified plans offered through a recordkeeping platform (financial intermediaries need to have
an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or its affiliates in order for its clients to
qualify);

•

Any bank, trust company, savings institution, registered investment adviser, financial planner or securities dealer on
behalf of an account for which it provides advisory or fiduciary services pursuant to an account management fee
(financial intermediaries need to have an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or
its affiliates in order for its clients to qualify);

•

The Adviser and its affiliates;

•

Shareholders buying through select platforms and fund supermarkets where the broker/dealers, that have an agreement
in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or its affiliates, customarily sell mutual funds without
sales charges (check with your broker/dealer for availability and transaction charges and other fees that may be
charged by the broker/dealer sponsoring the fund supermarket);
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•

Financial intermediaries who have an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or its
affiliates to offer shares to self-directed investment brokerage accounts that may or may not charge a transaction fee
to its customers; and

•

Reinvestment of all or part of the proceeds of redemption of your A Class shares into the Fund and account from
which it had been redeemed, if the reinvestment is made within 60 calendar days of the receipt of your redemption
request.

Fund shares so purchased may not be resold except to the Fund. Sales load information is not separately posted on the
Adviser’s website (www.tortoiseadvisors.com) because a copy of this Prospectus containing such information is already
available for review, free of charge, on the website.
Purchases of $1 Million or More. No sales load is payable at the time of purchase on investments of $1 million or more of
the Fund’s A Class, although the Distributor may pay broker-dealers 1.00% on investments with no initial sales load.
Accordingly, the Fund may impose a CDSC of 1.00% on certain redemptions of those investments made within 12 months
of the purchase. The CDSC is assessed on an amount equal to the lesser of the initial value of the shares redeemed and the
value of shares redeemed at the time of redemption. No CDSC is imposed on increases in NAV above the initial purchase
price or Fund shares acquired as reinvested Fund distributions. The CDSC will be waived in the event of the last surviving
account holder’s death, provided the financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent through which the account is held is notified.
Rule 12b-1 Distribution Fees and Shareholder Service Plan Fees. The Trust has adopted a Rule 12b-1 plan under which the
Fund is authorized to pay to the Distributor or such other entities as approved by the Board of Trustees, as compensation for
the distribution-related and/or shareholder services provided by such entities, an aggregate fee of up to 0.25% of the average
daily net assets of the A Class. The Distributor may pay any or all amounts received under the Rule 12b-1 Plan to other
persons, including the Adviser or its affiliates, for any distribution service or activity designed to retain Fund shareholders.
Because these fees are paid out of the Fund's assets on an ongoing basis, over time these fees will increase the cost of your
investment and may cost you more than paying other types of sales charges.

Institutional Class
The Institutional Class is generally limited to institutional investors and/or certain other designated individuals or programs,
including the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial intermediaries that have an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or its affiliates,
who charge clients an ongoing fee for advisory, investment, consulting or similar services;
Financial intermediaries that have an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor or its affiliates,
who charge their clients transaction fees with respect to their investments in the Fund;
Financial intermediaries with clients of a registered investment adviser (“RIA”) purchasing Fund shares in fee based
advisory accounts, through certain broker-dealers utilizing omnibus accounts;
Individuals and institutional investors such as defined benefit plans, foundations or endowments, that meet the minimum
initial investment set by the Fund;
Institutions and individuals that use trust departments or family/multi-family offices that exercise investment discretion;
Certain retirement and benefit plans, including pension plans and employer sponsored retirement plans established under
Section 403(b) or Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code, or qualified under Section 401, of the Internal Revenue
Code;
Certain qualified plans under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended;
Certain insurance related products that have an agreement in place with respect to such purchases with the Distributor
or its affiliates;
Certain advisory accounts of the Adviser or its affiliates;
Trustees and officers of the Trust; directors, officers and employees of the Adviser and its affiliates (including the spouse,
life partner, or minor children under 21 of any such person); any trust or individual retirement account or self-employed
retirement plan for the benefit of any such person; or the estate of any such person; and
Employee retirement plans sponsored by, affiliates of, or employees (including their immediate families) of, the Adviser
or its affiliates.
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At the time you purchase shares of the Fund, you must inform your financial intermediary or the Transfer Agent of your
qualifications to invest in Institutional Class shares. Institutional Class shares may also be offered through financial
intermediaries that charge their customers transaction or other distribution or service fees with respect to their customers’
investments in the Fund. An investor transacting in Institutional Class shares through a broker acting as an agent may be
required to pay a commission and/or other forms of compensation to the broker. As indicated in the table above, the minimum
initial investment for Institutional Class shares may be waived or reduced by the Fund at any time. In addition, the Fund
may, in its sole discretion, accept investment in Institutional Class shares from purchasers not listed above.

Distributions
The Fund will distribute net investment income, if any, at least semi-annually. The Fund will also distribute net capital gains,
if any, at least annually, typically during the fourth calendar quarter. The Fund may make additional distributions if deemed
to be desirable at other times during the year.
All distributions will be reinvested in Fund shares unless you choose to receive distributions in cash. If you wish to change
your distribution option, notify the Transfer Agent in writing or by telephone at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863) in advance
of the payment date of the distribution. However, any such change will be effective only as to distributions for which the
record date is five or more calendar days after the Transfer Agent has received the written request.
If you elect to receive distributions in cash and the U.S. Postal Service is unable to deliver your check, or if a check remains
un-cashed for six months, the Fund reserves the right to reinvest the distribution check in your account at that Fund’s then
current NAV per share and to reinvest all subsequent distributions.

Short Term Trading Policy
The Fund is intended for long-term investors and is not designed for investors who are seeking short-term gains. Short-term
“market-timers” who engage in frequent purchases and redemptions may disrupt the Fund's investment program and create
additional transaction costs that are borne by all of the Fund's shareholders. The Board of Trustees has adopted policies and
procedures that are designed to discourage excessive, short-term trading and other abusive trading practices that may disrupt
portfolio management strategies and harm performance. The Fund takes additional steps to reduce the frequency and effect
of these activities in the Fund. These steps include, among other things, monitoring trading activity and using fair value
pricing. Although these efforts are designed to discourage abusive trading practices, these tools cannot eliminate the possibility
that such activity will occur. The Fund implements these tools to the best of its ability, and in a manner that it believes is
consistent with shareholder interests. Except as noted herein, the Fund applies all restrictions uniformly in all applicable
cases.
Monitoring Trading Practices. The Fund monitors selected trades in an effort to detect excessive short-term trading activities.
If, as a result of this monitoring, the Fund believes that a shareholder has engaged in excessive short-term trading, it may, in
its discretion, ask the shareholder to stop such activities or refuse to process purchases in the shareholder’s accounts. In
making such judgments, the Fund seeks to act in a manner that it believes is consistent with the best interests of its shareholders.
The Fund uses a variety of techniques to monitor for and detect abusive trading practices. These techniques may change
from time to time as determined by the Fund in their sole discretion. To minimize harm to the Fund and its shareholders,
the Fund reserves the right to reject any purchase order (but not a redemption request), in whole or in part, for any reason
and without prior notice. The Fund may decide to restrict purchase and sale activity in its shares based on various factors,
including whether frequent purchase and sale activity will disrupt portfolio management strategies and adversely affect Fund
performance.
Fair Value Pricing. The Fund employs fair value pricing selectively to ensure greater accuracy in its daily NAVs and to
prevent dilution by frequent traders or market timers who seek to take advantage of temporary market anomalies. The Board
of Trustees has developed procedures which utilize fair value pricing when reliable market quotations are not readily available
or when corporate events, events in the securities market and/or world events cause the Adviser to believe that a security’s
last sale price may not reflect its actual market value. Valuing securities at fair value involves reliance on judgment. Fair
value determinations are made in good faith in accordance with procedures adopted by the Board of Trustees. There can be
no assurance that the Fund will obtain the fair value assigned to a security if it were to sell the security at approximately the
time at which the Fund determines its NAV per share. More detailed information regarding fair value pricing can be found
in this Prospectus under the heading entitled “Shareholder Information – Pricing of Shares.”
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Due to the complexity and subjectivity involved in identifying abusive trading activity and the volume of shareholder
transactions the Fund handles, there can be no assurance that the Fund's efforts will identify all trades or trading practices
that may be considered abusive. In particular, since the Fund receives purchase and sale orders through Authorized
Intermediaries that use group or omnibus accounts, the Fund cannot always detect frequent trading. However, the Fund will
work with Authorized Intermediaries as necessary to discourage shareholders from engaging in abusive trading practices and
to impose restrictions on excessive trades. In this regard, the Fund may enter into information sharing agreements with
Authorized Intermediaries pursuant to which these intermediaries are required to provide to the Fund, at the Fund's request,
certain information relating to their customers investing in the Fund through non-disclosed or omnibus accounts. The Fund
will use this information to attempt to identify abusive trading practices. Authorized Intermediaries are contractually required
to follow any instructions from the Fund to restrict or prohibit future purchases from shareholders that are found to have
engaged in abusive trading in violation of the Fund's policies. However, the Fund cannot guarantee the accuracy of the
information provided to them from Authorized Intermediaries and cannot ensure that it will always be able to detect abusive
trading practices that occur through non-disclosed and omnibus accounts. As a result, the Fund's ability to monitor and
discourage abusive trading practices in non-disclosed and omnibus accounts may be limited.

Tax Consequences
Distributions of the Fund’s investment company taxable income (which includes, but is not limited to, interest, dividends,
return of capital, and net short-term capital gains), if any, are generally taxable to the Fund’s shareholders as ordinary income.
To the extent that the Fund's distributions of net investment company taxable income are designated as attributable to “qualified
dividend” income, such income may be subject to tax at the reduced rate of federal income tax applicable to non-corporate
shareholders for net long-term capital gains, if certain holding period requirements have been satisfied by the shareholder.
To the extent that the Fund’s distributions of investment company taxable income are attributable to net short-term capital
gains, such distributions will be treated as ordinary dividend income for the purposes of income tax reporting and will not
be available to offset a shareholder’s capital losses from other investments.
Distributions of net capital gains (net long-term capital gains less net short-term capital losses) are generally taxable as longterm capital gains (currently at a maximum federal rate of 20% for shareholders) regardless of the length of time that a
shareholder has owned Fund shares, unless you are a tax-exempt organization or are investing through a tax-advantaged
arrangement such as a 401(k) plan or individual retirement account. Any distributions to you in excess of the Fund’s investment
company taxable income and net capital gains will be treated by you, first, as a tax-advantaged return of capital, which is
applied against and will reduce the adjusted tax basis of your shares and, after such adjusted tax basis is reduced to zero, will
generally constitute capital gains.
The Fund may derive “excess inclusion income” from certain equity interests in mortgage pooling vehicles either directly
or through an investment in a U.S. REIT. Please see the SAI for a discussion of the risks and special tax consequences to
shareholders in the event the Fund realizes excess inclusion income in excess of certain threshold amounts.
Under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA”), “qualified REIT dividends” (i.e., ordinary REIT dividends other than capital
gain dividends and portions of REIT dividends designated as qualified dividend income) are treated as eligible for a 20%
deduction by noncorporate taxpayers. This deduction, if allowed in full, equates to a maximum effective tax rate of 29.6%
(37% top rate applied to income after 20% deduction). The Fund may choose to report the special character of “qualified
REIT dividends” to a shareholder, provided both the Fund and the shareholder meet certain holding period requirements with
respect to their shares. Neither the TCJA nor the proposed regulations permit conduit treatment of income from qualified
publicly traded partnerships (income from MLPs) for purposes of the 20% deduction by noncorporate taxpayers. The IRS
continues to study whether such treatment for RICs is appropriate in the context of publicly traded partnerships.
A 3.8% Medicare tax on net investment income (including capital gains and dividends) will also be imposed on individuals,
estates and trusts, subject to certain income thresholds.
The Fund’s distributions, whether received in cash or reinvested in additional shares of the Fund, may be subject to federal
income tax. You will be taxed in the same manner whether you receive your distributions (whether of net investment company
taxable income or net capital gains) in cash or reinvest them in additional Fund shares. Distributions are generally taxable
when received. However, distributions declared in October, November or December to shareholders of record on a date in
such a month and paid the following January are taxable as if received on December 31.

35

Shareholders who sell, or redeem, shares generally will have a capital gain or loss from the sale or redemption. An exchange
of the Fund’s shares for shares of another fund will be treated as a sale of the Fund's shares and any gain on the transaction
may be subject to federal income tax. The amount of the gain or loss and the applicable rate of federal income tax will depend
generally upon the amount paid for the shares, the amount of reinvested taxable distributions, if any, the amount received
from the sale or redemption and how long the shares were held by a shareholder. Any loss arising from the sale or redemption
of shares held for six months or less, however, is treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any amounts treated as
distributions of net capital gain received on such shares. In determining the holding period of such shares for this purpose,
any period during which your risk of loss is offset by means of options, short sales or similar transactions is not counted. If
you purchase Fund shares within 30 days before or after redeeming other Fund shares at a loss, all or part of that loss will
not be deductible and will instead increase the basis of the newly purchased shares.
Shareholders will be advised annually as to the federal tax status of all distributions made by the Fund for the preceding
year. Distributions by the Fund and gains from the sale of Fund shares may also be subject to state and local taxes.
Additional tax information may be found in the SAI.
This section assumes you are a U.S. shareholder and is also not intended to be a full discussion of federal tax laws and the
effect of such laws on you. There may be other federal, state, foreign or local tax considerations applicable to a particular
investor. You are urged to consult your own tax adviser.

Other Fund Policies
Telephone Transactions. You may be responsible for fraudulent telephone orders made to your account as long as the Fund
has taken reasonable precautions to verify your identity, unless you did not accept telephone transactions on your Account
Application or by subsequent arrangement in writing with the Fund. In addition, once you place a telephone transaction
request, it cannot be canceled or modified after the close of regular trading on the NYSE (generally, 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time).
Telephone transactions may be difficult to complete during periods of significant economic or market change. If you are
unable to contact the Fund by telephone, you may also mail the requests to the Fund at the address listed previously in the
“Shareholder Information – Buying Shares” section.
Telephone trades must be received by or prior to the close of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time). During periods
of high market activity, shareholders may encounter higher than usual call waiting times. Please allow sufficient time to
ensure that you will be able to complete your telephone transaction prior to the close of the NYSE.
Policies of Other Financial Intermediaries. Financial intermediaries may establish policies that differ from those of the
Fund. For example, the institution may charge transaction fees, set higher minimum investments or impose certain limitations
or fees on buying or selling shares in addition to those identified in this Prospectus. The sales loads and waiver variations
of certain financial intermediaries are described in Appendix A to this Prospectus. Please contact your financial intermediary
for details.
Closing the Fund. The Board of Trustees retains the right to close (or partially close) the Fund to new purchases if it is
determined to be in the best interest of the Fund’s shareholders. Based on market and Fund conditions, and in consultation
with the Adviser, the Board of Trustees may decide to close the Fund to new investors, all investors or certain classes of
investors (such as fund supermarkets) at any time. If the Fund is closed to new purchases it will continue to honor redemption
requests, unless the right to redeem shares has been temporarily suspended as permitted by federal law.
Householding. In an effort to decrease costs, the Fund intends to reduce the number of duplicate prospectuses and annual
and semi-annual reports you receive by sending only one copy of each to those addresses shared by two or more accounts
and to shareholders the Fund reasonably believes are from the same family or household. If you would like to discontinue
householding for your accounts, please call toll-free at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863) to request individual copies of these
documents. Once the Fund receives notice to stop householding, the Fund will begin sending individual copies 30 days after
receiving your request. This householding policy does not apply to account statements.
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Lost Shareholders, Inactive Accounts and Unclaimed Property. It is important that the Fund maintain a correct address for
each shareholder. An incorrect address may cause a shareholder’s account statements and other mailings to be returned to
the Fund. Based upon statutory requirements for returned mail, the Fund will attempt to locate the shareholder or rightful
owner of the account. If the Fund is unable to locate the shareholder, then it will determine whether the shareholder’s account
can legally be considered abandoned. Your mutual fund account may be transferred to the state government of your state of
residence if no activity occurs within your account during the “inactivity period” specified in your state’s abandoned property
laws. The Fund is legally obligated to escheat (or transfer) abandoned property to the appropriate state’s unclaimed property
administrator in accordance with statutory requirements. The shareholder’s last known address of record determines which
state has jurisdiction. Please proactively contact the Transfer Agent toll-free at 855-824-1355 at least annually to ensure your
account remains in active status.
If you are a resident of the state of Texas, you may designate a representative to receive notifications that, due to inactivity,
your mutual fund account assets may be delivered to the Texas Comptroller. Please contact the Transfer Agent if you wish
to complete a Texas Designation of Representative form.

Distribution of Fund Shares
The Distributor
Quasar Distributors, LLC (the “Distributor”) is located at 111 E Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 1250, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202,
and serves as distributor and principal underwriter to the Fund. The Distributor is a registered broker-dealer and member of
the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”). Shares of the Fund are offered on a continuous basis.
Payments to Financial Intermediaries
The Fund may pay service fees to intermediaries, such as banks, broker-dealers, financial advisers or other financial
institutions, including affiliates of the Adviser, for sub-administration, sub-transfer agency and other shareholder services
associated with shareholders whose shares are held of record in omnibus accounts, other group accounts or accounts traded
through registered securities clearing agents.
The Adviser, out of its own resources and without additional cost to any Fund or its shareholders, may provide additional
cash payments to intermediaries, including affiliates of the Adviser, for the sale of Fund shares and related services. These
payments and compensation are in addition to service fees paid by the Fund, if any. Payments are generally made to
intermediaries that provide shareholder servicing, marketing and related sales support or access to sales meetings, sales
representatives and management representatives of the intermediary. Payments may also be paid to intermediaries for
inclusion of the Fund on a sales list, including a preferred or select sales list or in other sales programs. Compensation may
be paid as an expense reimbursement in cases in which the intermediary provides shareholder services to the Fund. The
Adviser may also pay cash compensation in the form of finder’s fees that vary depending on the dollar amount of the shares
sold.

Financial Highlights
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Fund has not commenced operations and thus has no highlights to show.
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PRIVACY NOTICE
The Fund collects only relevant information about you that the law allows or requires it to have in order to conduct its
business and properly service you. The Fund collects financial and personal information about you (“Personal
Information”) directly (e.g., information on account applications and other forms, such as your name, address, and social
security number, and information provided to access account information or conduct account transactions online, such as
password, account number, e-mail address, and alternate telephone number), and indirectly (e.g., information about your
transactions with us, such as transaction amounts, account balance and account holdings).
The Fund does not disclose any non-public personal information about their shareholders or former shareholders other
than for everyday business purposes such as to process a transaction, service an account, respond to court orders and legal
investigations or as otherwise permitted by law. Third parties that may receive this information include companies that
provide transfer agency, technology and administrative services to the Fund, as well as the Fund's investment adviser who
is an affiliate of the Fund. If you maintain a retirement/educational custodial account directly with the Fund, we may also
disclose your Personal Information to the custodian for that account for shareholder servicing purposes. The Fund limits
access to your Personal Information provided to unaffiliated third parties to information necessary to carry out their
assigned responsibilities to the Fund. All shareholder records will be disposed of in accordance with applicable law. The
Fund maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to protect your Personal Information and requires their
third party service providers with access to such information to treat your Personal Information with the same high degree
of confidentiality.
In the event that you hold shares of the Fund through a financial intermediary, including, but not limited to, a brokerdealer, bank, credit union or trust company, the privacy policy of your financial intermediary governs how your nonpublic personal information is shared with unaffiliated third parties.

Tortoise Fund

Series of Managed Portfolio Series

FOR MORE INFORMATION
You can find more information about the Fund in the following documents:

Statement of Additional Information
Please refer to the SAI for additional information on the Fund. The SAI provides additional details about the investments
and techniques of the Fund and certain other additional information. A current SAI is on file with the SEC and is
incorporated into this Prospectus by reference. This means that the SAI is legally considered a part of this Prospectus
even though it is not physically within this Prospectus.
Annual and Semi-Annual Reports
The Fund's annual and semi-annual reports, when available, will provide additional information about the Fund's
investments. The annual reports will contain a discussion of the market conditions and investment strategies that affected
the Fund's performance during the Fund's most recently completed fiscal period.
You can obtain a free copy of these documents and the SAI when available, request other information, or make general
inquiries about the Fund by calling the Fund (toll-free) at 855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863), by visiting the Adviser’s
website at www.tortoiseadvisors.com or by writing to:

Tortoise Fund
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
P.O. Box 701
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201-0701
Reports and other information about the Fund is available:
•
•

Free of charge from the SEC’s EDGAR database on the SEC’s Internet website at http://www.sec.gov; or
For a fee, by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov.

(The Trust’s SEC Investment Company Act of 1940 file number is 811-22525)

APPENDIX A
Financial Intermediary-Specific Sales Charge Waivers and Discounts
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (“Merrill Lynch”)
Shareholders purchasing Fund shares through a Merrill Lynch platform or account will be eligible only for the following
load waivers (front-end sales charge waivers and contingent deferred, or back-end, sales charge waivers) and discounts,
which may differ from those disclosed elsewhere in the Fund's prospectus or SAI.
Front-end Sales Load Waivers on A Class Shares available at Merrill Lynch
Employer-sponsored retirement, deferred compensation and employee benefit plans (including health
savings accounts) and trusts used to fund those plans, provided that the shares are not held in a
commission-based brokerage account and shares are held for the benefit of the plan
Shares purchased by a 529 Plan (does not include 529 Plan units or 529-specific share classes or
equivalents)
Shares purchased through a Merrill Lynch affiliated investment advisory program
Shares exchanged due to the holdings moving from a Merrill Lynch affiliated investment advisory
program to a Merrill Lynch brokerage (non-advisory) account pursuant to Merrill Lynch's policies
relating to sales load discounts and waivers
Shares purchased by third party investment advisors on behalf of their advisory clients through Merrill
Lynch’s platform
Shares of funds purchased through the Merrill Edge Self-Directed platform
Shares purchased through reinvestment of capital gains distributions and dividend reinvestment when
purchasing shares of the same fund (but not any other fund within the fund family)
Shares exchanged from C Class (i.e., level-load) shares of the same fund pursuant to Merrill Lynch's
policies relating to sales load discounts and waivers
Employees and registered representatives of Merrill Lynch or its affiliates and their family members
Trustees of the Trust, and employees of each Fund’s investment adviser or any of its affiliates, as
described in this prospectus
Shares purchased from the proceeds of redemptions within the same fund family, provided (1) the
repurchase occurs within 90 days following the redemption, (2) the redemption and purchase occur in
the same account, and (3) redeemed shares were subject to a front-end or deferred sales load (known
as Rights of Reinstatement). Automated transactions (i.e. systematic purchases and withdrawals) and
purchases made after shares are automatically sold to pay Merrill Lynch's account maintenance fees
are not eligible for reinstatement
CDSC Waivers on A Class, and C Class Shares available at Merrill Lynch
Death or disability of the shareholder
Shares sold as part of a systematic withdrawal plan as described in the Fund’s prospectus
Return of excess contributions from an IRA Account
Shares sold as part of a required minimum distribution for IRA and retirement accounts pursuant to
the Internal Revenue Code
Shares sold to pay Merrill Lynch fees but only if the transaction is initiated by Merrill Lynch
Shares acquired through a right of reinstatement
Shares held in retirement brokerage accounts, that are exchanged for a lower cost share class due to
transfer to certain fee based accounts or platforms (applicable to A Class and C shares only)
Shares received through an exchange due to the holdings moving from a Merrill Lynch affiliated
investment advisory program to a Merrill Lynch brokerage (non-advisory) account pursuant to Merrill
Lynch's policies relating to sales load discounts and waivers

Front-end load Discounts Available at Merrill Lynch: Breakpoints, Rights of Accumulation &
Letters of Intent
Breakpoints as described in this prospectus.
Rights of Accumulation (ROA) which entitle shareholders to breakpoint discounts as described in the
Fund's prospectus will be automatically calculated based on the aggregated holding of fund family
assets held by accounts (including 529 program holdings, where applicable) within the purchaser’s
household at Merrill Lynch. Eligible fund family assets not held at Merrill Lynch may be included in
the ROA calculation only if the shareholder notifies his or her financial advisor about such assets
Letters of Intent (LOI) which allow for breakpoint discounts based on anticipated purchases within
the fund family, through Merrill Lynch, over a 13-month period of time

Morgan Stanley Wealth Management
Effective July 1, 2018, shareholders purchasing Fund shares through a Morgan Stanley Wealth Management transactional
brokerage account will be eligible only for the following front-end sales charge waivers with respect to A Class shares,
which may differ from and may be more limited than those disclosed elsewhere in this Fund’s Prospectus or SAI.
Front-end Sales Charge Waivers on A Class Shares available at Morgan Stanley Wealth Management
• Employer-sponsored retirement plans (e.g., 401(k) plans, 457 plans, employer-sponsored 403(b) plans, profit
sharing and money purchase pension plans and defined benefit plans). For purposes of this provision, employersponsored retirement plans do not include SEP IRAs, Simple IRAs, SAR-SEPs or Keogh plans
• Morgan Stanley employee and employee-related accounts according to Morgan Stanley’s account linking rules
• Shares purchased through reinvestment of dividends and capital gains distributions when purchasing shares of
the same fund
• Shares purchased through a Morgan Stanley self-directed brokerage account
• C Class (i.e., level-load) shares that are no longer subject to a contingent deferred sales charge and are converted
to A Class shares of the same fund pursuant to Morgan Stanley Wealth Management’s share class conversion
program
Shares purchased from the proceeds of redemptions within the same fund family, provided (i) the repurchase occurs
within 90 days following the redemption, (ii) the redemption and purchase occur in the same account, and (iii) redeemed
shares were subject to a front-end or deferred sales charge.

Raymond James & Associates, Inc., Raymond James Financial Services & Raymond James affiliates (“Raymond
James”)
Intermediary-Defined Sales Charge Waiver Policies
The availability of certain initial or deferred sales charge waivers and discounts may depend on the particular financial
intermediary or type of account through which you purchase or hold Fund shares.
Intermediaries may have different policies and procedures regarding the availability of front-end sales load waivers or
contingent deferred (back-end) sales load (“CDSC”) waivers, which are discussed below. In all instances, it is the purchaser’s
responsibility to notify the Fund or the purchaser’s financial intermediary at the time of purchase of any relationship or other
facts qualifying the purchaser for sales charge waivers or discounts. For waivers and discounts not available through a
particular intermediary, shareholders will have to purchase Fund shares directly from the Fund or through another intermediary
to receive these waivers or discounts.
Effective March 1, 2019, shareholders purchasing Fund shares through a Raymond James platform or account will be eligible
only for the following load waivers (front-end sales charge waivers and contingent deferred, or back-end, sales charge waivers)
and discounts, which may differ from those disclosed elsewhere in this Fund's prospectus or SAI.
Front-end sales load waivers on A Class shares available at Raymond James
• Shares purchased in an investment advisory program.
• Shares purchased through reinvestment of capital gains distributions and dividend reinvestment when purchasing
shares of the same Fund (but not any other fund within the fund family).
• Employees and registered representatives of Raymond James or its affiliates and their family members as designated
by Raymond James.
• Shares purchased from the proceeds of redemptions within the same fund family, provided (1) the repurchase occurs
within 90 days following the redemption, (2) the redemption and purchase occur in the same account, and (3) redeemed
shares were subject to a front-end or deferred sales load (known as Rights of Reinstatement).
• A shareholder in the Fund's C Class shares will have their shares converted at net asset value to A Class shares (or
the appropriate share class) of the Fund if the shares are no longer subject to a CDSC and the conversion is in line
with the policies and procedures of Raymond James.
CDSC Waivers on A Class and C Class shares available at Raymond James
• Death or disability of the shareholder.
• Shares sold as part of a systematic withdrawal plan as described in the Fund's prospectus.
• Return of excess contributions from an IRA Account.
• Shares sold as part of a required minimum distribution for IRA and retirement accounts due to the shareholder
reaching the qualified age based on applicable IRS regulations as described in the fund's prospectus.
• Shares sold to pay Raymond James’ fees but only if the transaction is initiated by Raymond James.
• Shares acquired through a right of reinstatement.
Front-end load discounts available at Raymond James: breakpoints, and/or rights of accumulation
• Breakpoints as described in this prospectus.
• Rights of accumulation which entitle shareholders to breakpoint discounts will be automatically calculated based on
the aggregated holding of fund family assets held by accounts within the purchaser’s household at Raymond James.
Eligible fund family assets not held at Raymond James may be included in the calculation of rights of accumulation
only if the shareholder notifies his or her financial advisor about such assets.
• Letters of intent which allow for breakpoints based on anticipated purchases within the fund family, owes a 13-month
time period. Eligible fund family assets not held at Raymond James may be included in the calculation of letter of
intent only if the shareholder notifies his or her financial advisor about such assets.

Waiver of Initial Sales Charge on Purchases of Class A Shares by Certain Financial Institutions:
No initial sales charge is imposed on purchases of A Class shares by the following financial institutions that (i) offer Fund
shares in self-directed investment brokerage accounts, (ii) are compensated by clients on a fee-only basis, or (iii) have entered
into an agreement with the Fund to offer Class A shares through no-load network:
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
RBC Capital Markets LLC

Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. ("OPCO")
Effective February 26, 2020, shareholders purchasing Fund shares through an OPCO platform or account are eligible
only for the following load waivers (front-end sales charge waivers and contingent deferred, or back-end, sales
charge waivers) and discounts, which may differ from those disclosed elsewhere in this Fund's prospectus or SAI.
Front-end Sales Load Waiver on A Class shares available at OPCO
•

Employer-sponsored retirement, deferred compensation and employee benefit plans (including health
savings accounts) and trusts used to fund those plans, provided that the shares are not held in a commissionbased brokerage account and shares are held for the benefit of the plan

•

Shares purchased by or through a 529 plan

•

Shares purchased through a OPCO affiliated investment advisory program

•

Share purchased through reinvestment of capital gains distributions and dividend reinvestment when
purchasing shares of the same fund (but not any other fund within the fund family)

•

Shares purchased from the proceeds of redemptions within the same fund family, provided (1) the repurchase
occurs within 90 days following the redemption, (2) the redemption and purchase occur in the same amount,
and (3) redeemed shares were subject to a front-end or deferred sales load (known as Rights of Restatement).

•

A shareholder in the Fund's C Class shares will have their shares converted at net asset value to A Class
shares (or the appropriate share class) of the Fund if the shares are no longer subject to a CDSC and the
conversion is in line with the policies and procedures of OPCO

•

Employees and registered representatives of OPCO or its affiliates and their family members

•

Directors or Trustees of the Fund, and employees of the Fund's investment adviser or any of its affiliates, as
described in this prospectus

CDSC Waivers on A Class and C Class shares available at OPCO
•

Death or disability of the shareholder

•

Shares sold as part of a systematic withdrawal plan as described in the Fund's prospectus

•

Return of excess contributions from an IRA Account

•

Shares sold as part of a required minimum distribution for IRA and retirement accounts dure to the
shareholder reaching age 70½ as described in the prospectus

•

Shares sold to pay OPCO fees but only if the transaction is initiated by OPCO

•

Shares acquired through a right of reinstatement

Front-end load Discounts Available at OPCO: Breakpoints, Rights of Accumulation & Letters of Intent
•

Breakpoints as described in this prospectus.

•

Rights of Accumulation (ROA) which entitle shareholders to breakpoint discounts will be automatically
calculated based on the aggregated holding of fund family assets held by accounts within the purchaser's
household at OPCO. Eligible fund family assets not held at OPCO may be included in the ROA calculation
only if the shareholder notifies his or her financial advisor about such assets

Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund
A Class – [Not Available for Purchase]
Institutional Class – ECOIX

Statement of Additional Information
August 7, 2020, as amended August 24, 2020
This Statement of Additional Information (“SAI”) provides general information about the Ecofin
Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund, (the “Fund”), series of Managed Portfolio Series (the
“Trust”). This SAI is not a prospectus and should be read in conjunction with the Fund's current
prospectus for A Class Shares, and Institutional Class shares, dated August 7, 2020 (the
“Prospectus”), as supplemented and amended from time to time. To obtain a copy of the Prospectus
and/or Annual Report(s), free of charge, please write or call the Fund at the address or toll-free
telephone number below, or visit the Adviser’s website at www.tortoiseadvisors.com.
Tortoise Funds
c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
P.O. Box 701
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201-0701
855-TCA-FUND (855-822-3863)

Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund
Series of Managed Portfolio Series (the “Trust”)
TABLE OF CONTENTS
THE TRUST AND THE FUND...................................................................................................
3
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE, POLICIES, STRATEGIES AND ASSOCIATED RISKS ..........
4
FUNDAMENTAL AND NON-FUNDAMENTAL INVESTMENT LIMITATIONS .................
33
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND...............................................................................................
36
BOARD OF TRUSTEES.........................................................................................................
36
THE ROLE OF THE BOARD.................................................................................................
36
BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE ..................................................................................
37
BOARD OVERSIGHT OF RISK MANAGEMENT ..............................................................
38
TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS.................................................................................................
38
TRUSTEE QUALIFICATIONS ..............................................................................................
42
TRUSTEE AND MANAGEMENT OWNERSHIP OF FUND SHARES ..............................
42
BOARD COMMITTEES.........................................................................................................
42
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION ................................................................................................
43
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS .............................................
44
INVESTMENT ADVISER ......................................................................................................
52
PORTFOLIO MANAGERS ....................................................................................................
46
SERVICE PROVIDERS ..............................................................................................................
50
LEGAL COUNSEL .................................................................................................................
50
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM .......................................
50
DISTRIBUTION OF FUND SHARES........................................................................................
51
DISTRIBUTION (RULE 12B-1) PLAN .................................................................................
51
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE ..............................................................
54
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER..........................................................................................................
55
CODE OF ETHICS ......................................................................................................................
55
PROXY VOTING PROCEDURES .............................................................................................
56
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING COMPLIANCE PROGRAM..................................................
57
PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION ..............................................................................
57
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE............................................................................
58
PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION OF FUND SHARES...........................................................
60
PURCHASE OF SHARES ......................................................................................................
60
PURCHASE REQUESTS MUST BE RECEIVED IN GOOD ORDER ................................
60
REDEMPTION OF SHARES .................................................................................................
61
REDEMPTION REQUESTS MUST BE RECEIVED IN GOOD ORDER ...........................
61
REDEMPTION-IN-KIND .......................................................................................................
72
CANCELLATIONS AND MODIFICATIONS .......................................................................
62
TAX MATTERS ...........................................................................................................................
63
DISTRIBUTIONS........................................................................................................................
67
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ......................................................................................................
68
APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................... A - 1

The Trust and the Fund
The Trust is a Delaware statutory trust organized on January 27, 2011, and is registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as an open-end management investment company. The Fund is a
series, or mutual fund, of the Trust. The Fund is a non-diversified series and has its own investment
objective and investment policies. Shares of other series of the Trust are offered in separate prospectuses
and SAIs. The Fund's Prospectus and this SAI are a part of the Trust’s Registration Statement filed with
the SEC. Copies of the Trust’s complete Registration Statement may be obtained from the SEC upon
payment of the prescribed fee, or may be accessed free of charge at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
As permitted by Delaware law, the Trust’s Board of Trustees (the “Board”) may create additional classes
of the Fund and may create additional series (and classes thereof) of the Trust and offer shares of these
series and classes under the Trust at any time without the vote of shareholders. On August 7, 2020, the
Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited, established in November 2015 (which later
changed its name to the Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited in May of 2019), (the
“Predecessor Fund”), an unregistered Cayman limited liability company, was reorganized into the Fund
by transferring a majority of the Predecessor Fund’s assets to the Fund in exchange for Institutional
Class shares of the Fund. The Fund has two classes of shares: A Class shares and Institutional Class
shares. Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., doing business as TCA Advisors ("TCA Advisors" or the
“Adviser”), is the investment adviser to the Fund. Ecofin Advisors Limited ("Ecofin" or the "SubAdviser") is the investment sub-adviser to the Fund. TCA Advisors is affiliated with Ecofin and Tortoise
Index Solutions, LLC. TCA Advisors advises four other series of the Trust and Tortoise Index Solutions,
LLC, manages three other series of the Trust.
All shares of a series shall represent an equal proportionate interest in the assets held with respect to
that series (subject to the liabilities held with respect to that series and such rights and preferences as
may have been established and designated with respect to classes of shares of such series), and each
share of a series shall be equal to each other share of that series.
Shares are voted in the aggregate and not by series or class, except in matters where a separate vote is
required by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), or when the matters
affect only the interest of a particular series or class. When matters are submitted to shareholders for a
vote, each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each full share owned and fractional votes for fractional
shares owned.
The Trust does not normally hold annual meetings of shareholders. Meetings of the shareholders shall
be called by any member of the Board upon written request of shareholders holding, in the aggregate,
not less than 10% of the shares, such request specifying the purpose or purposes for which such meeting
is to be called.
Interests in the Fund are represented by shares of beneficial interest, each with no par value per share.
Each share of the Fund is entitled to such dividends and distributions out of the assets belonging to the
Fund, as may be declared by the Board.
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The Board has the authority from time to time to divide or combine the shares of any series into a greater
or lesser number of shares of that series without materially changing the proportionate beneficial interest
of the shares of that series in the assets belonging to that series or materially affecting the rights of shares
of any other series. In case of the liquidation of a series, the holders of shares of the series being
liquidated are entitled to receive a distribution out of the assets, net of the liabilities, belonging to that
series. Expenses attributable to any series (or Class thereof) are borne by that series (or class). Any
general expenses of the Trust not readily identifiable as belonging to a particular series are allocated
by, or under the direction of, the Board to all applicable series (and classes thereof) in such manner and
on such basis as the Board in its sole discretion deems fair and equitable. No shareholder is liable to
further calls for the payment of any sum of money or assessment whatsoever with respect to the Trust
or any series of the Trust without his or her express consent.
All consideration received by the Trust for the issue or sale of the Fund’s shares, together with all assets
in which such consideration is invested or reinvested, and all income, earnings, profits and proceeds
thereof, including any proceeds derived from the sale, exchange or liquidation of such assets, and any
funds or payments derived from any reinvestment of such proceeds, subject only to the rights of creditors,
shall constitute the underlying assets of the Fund.

Investment Objective, Policies, Strategies and Associated Risks
The following discussion supplements the description of the Fund’s investment objective and principal
investment strategies set forth in the Prospectus. Except for the fundamental investment limitations
listed below (see “Fundamental and Non-Fundamental Investment Limitations”), the Fund's investment
objective, strategies and policies are not fundamental and may be changed by sole action of the Board,
without shareholder approval. While the Fund is permitted to hold securities and engage in various
strategies as described hereafter, it is not obligated to do so. The Fund might not invest in all of these
types of securities or use all of these techniques at any one time. The Fund's transactions in a particular
type of security or use of a particular technique is subject to limitations imposed by the Fund’s investment
objective, policies and restrictions described in the Fund's Prospectus and/or this SAI, as well as the
federal securities laws.
Investment Objective
The investment objective of the Fund is set forth under the “Summary Section” in the Fund's Prospectus.
Diversification
The Fund is non-diversified. A non-diversified fund is a fund that does not satisfy the definition of a
“diversified company” set forth in the 1940 Act. A “diversified company” means that as to 75% of the
Fund’s total assets, excluding cash, government securities and securities of other investment companies,
(1) no more than 5% may be invested in the securities of a single issuer, and (2) the Fund may not hold
more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of a single issuer.
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Because the Fund intends to qualify as a “regulated investment company”(“RIC”) under Subchapter M
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the “Code”), the Fund’s investments will be limited
so that at the close of each quarter of each taxable year (i) at least 50% of the value of its total assets is
represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, the securities of other RICs and other
securities, with such other securities limited for purposes of such calculation, in respect of any one
issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund’s total assets and not more than 10%
outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of its total assets
are invested in the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. government securities or the securities
of other RICs), the securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of any two or more issuers that
the Fund controls and that are determined to be engaged in the same business or similar or related trades
or businesses, or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships. These tax-related
limitations may be changed by the Board to the extent appropriate in light of changes to applicable tax
requirements.
Market Volatility
U.S. and international markets have from time to time experienced significant volatility. Certain social,
political, economic, environmental and other conditions and events (such as natural disasters and
weather-related phenomena generally, epidemics and pandemics, terrorism, conflicts and social unrest)
may adversely interrupt the global economy and result in prolonged periods of significant market
volatility. During certain volatile periods, the fixed income markets have experienced substantially lower
valuations, reduced liquidity, price volatility, credit downgrades, increased likelihood of default and
valuation difficulties. At times, concerns have spread to domestic and international equity markets. In
some cases, the stock prices of individual companies have been negatively affected even though there
may be little or no apparent degradation in the financial conditions or prospects of that company.
Continued volatility may have adverse effects on the Fund, and the risks discussed below and in the
Prospectus may increase.
Since the start of 2020 there has been a global outbreak of the coronavirus Covid-19. At present it is
not possible to assess the detailed impact of this emerging risk on the companies in the Fund’s portfolio
but there is growing concern about the impact of Covid-19 on the world economy. During the first
quarter of 2020, there was a significant correction in the financial markets related to the Covid-19
outbreak. The eventual impact on the global economy and markets will largely depend upon the scale
and the duration of the outbreak. The Adviser continues to monitor this situation closely.
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Equity Securities
An equity security represents a proportionate share of the ownership of a company. Its value is based
on the success of the company’s business, any income paid to stockholders, the value of its assets and
general market conditions. The value of equity securities will be affected by changes in the stock
markets, which may be the result of domestic or international political or economic news, changes in
interest rates or changing investor sentiment. At times, stock markets can be volatile and stock prices
can change substantially. Equity securities risk affects the Fund’s net asset value per share (“NAV”),
which will fluctuate as the value of the securities it holds changes. Not all stock prices change uniformly
or at the same time, and not all stock markets move in the same direction at the same time. Other factors
affect a particular stock’s prices, such as poor earnings reports by an issuer, loss of major customers,
major litigation against an issuer, or changes in governmental regulations affecting an industry. Adverse
news affecting one company can sometimes depress the stock prices of all companies in the same
industry. Not all factors can be predicted. Types of equity securities in which the Fund may invest include
primarily common stocks, preferred equity, convertible securities, warrants, rights and depository
receipts of companies that are organized as corporations, limited partnerships or limited liability
companies; and real estate investment trusts (“REITs”).
Common Stock
Common stock represents an equity ownership interest in the profits and losses of a corporation, after
payment of amounts owed to bondholders, other debt holders, and holders of preferred stock. Holders
of common stock generally have voting rights, but the Fund does not expect to have voting control in
any of the companies in which it invests. In addition to the general risks set forth above, investments
in common stocks are subject to the risk that in the event a company in which the Fund invests is
liquidated, the holders of preferred stock and creditors of that company will be paid in full before any
payments are made to the Fund as holders of common stock. It is possible that all assets of that company
will be exhausted before any payments are made to the holders of common stock.
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Real Estate Securities
The real estate securities in which the Fund may invest consist of securities issued by Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“REITs”) and/or Real Estate Operating Companies (“REOCs”) that are listed on a
securities exchange or traded over-the-counter and that are generally focused on the renewable
infrastructure industry. A REIT is a corporation or trust that invests in fee or leasehold ownership of
real estate, mortgages or shares issued by other REITs and receives favorable tax treatment provided it
meets certain conditions. REITs may be characterized as equity REITs (i.e., REITs that primarily invest
in fee ownership and leasehold ownership of land), mortgage REITs (i.e., REITs that primarily invest
in mortgages on real estate and other real estate debt) or hybrid REITs which invest in both fee and
leasehold ownership of land and mortgages. A REIT that meets the applicable requirements of the Code
may deduct dividends paid to shareholders, effectively eliminating any corporate level federal tax. As
a result, REITs are able to distribute a larger portion of their earnings to investors than other corporate
entities subject to the federal corporate tax. There is the risk that a REIT held by the Fund will fail to
qualify for this tax-free pass-through treatment of its income. By investing in REITs indirectly through
the Fund, in addition to bearing a proportionate share of the expenses of the Fund, investors will also
indirectly bear similar expenses of the REITs in which the Fund invests. A REOC is typically structured
as a “C” corporation under the Code and is not required to distribute any portion of its income. A REOC,
therefore, does not receive the same favorable tax treatment that is accorded a REIT. In addition, the
value of the Fund's securities issued by REOCs may be adversely affected by income streams derived
from businesses other than real estate ownership.
Preferred Equity
Preferred equity represents an ownership interest in a company, often pays dividends at a specific rate
and has a preference over common stocks in dividend payments and liquidation of assets. A preferred
equity is a blend of the characteristics of a bond and common stock. It can offer the higher yield of a
bond and has priority over common stock in equity ownership, but does not have the seniority of a bond
and, unlike common stock its participation in the issuer’s growth may be limited. Although the dividend
or distribution is set at a fixed annual rate, in some circumstances it can be changed or omitted by the
issuer. In addition, preferred equity usually does not have voting rights.
Warrants and Rights
The Fund may purchase, or receive as a distribution from other investments, warrants and rights, which
are instruments that permit the Fund to acquire, by subscription, the capital stock of a corporation at a
set price, regardless of the market price for such stock. The principal difference between warrants and
rights is their term-rights typically expire within weeks while warrants have longer durations. Neither
rights nor warrants have voting rights or pay dividends. The market price of warrants is usually
significantly less than the current price of the underlying stock. Thus, there is a greater risk that warrants
might drop in value at a faster rate than the underlying stock.
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Initial Public Offerings
The Fund may invest in securities offered by companies in initial public offerings (“IPOs”). IPOs
involve companies that have no public operating history and therefore entail more risk than established
public companies. Because IPO shares frequently are volatile in price, the Fund may hold IPO shares
for a very short period of time. This may increase the turnover of the Fund’s portfolio and may lead to
increased expenses to the Fund, such as commissions and transaction costs. By selling IPO shares, the
Fund may realize taxable capital gains that it will subsequently distribute to shareholders. Companies
that offer securities in IPOs tend to typically have small market capitalizations and therefore their
securities may be more volatile and less liquid that those issued by larger companies. Certain companies
offering securities in an IPO may have limited operating experience and, as a result face a greater risk
of business failure.
Foreign Investments and Currencies
The Fund may invest in securities of foreign issuers whether or not they are traded in the United States
or U.S. dollar denominated, purchase and sell foreign currency on a spot basis and enter into forward
currency contracts (see “Forward Currency Contracts,” below). The Fund may also invest in American
Depositary Receipts (“ADRs”) and foreign securities that are traded on a U.S. exchange. Investments
in ADRs and foreign securities involve certain inherent risks, including the following:
American Depositary Receipts. Among the means through which the Fund may invest in foreign
securities that are publicly traded on a U.S. exchange is the purchase of ADRs. ADRs, in registered
form, are denominated in U.S. dollars and are designed for use in the U.S. securities markets. ADRs
are receipts typically issued by a U.S. bank or trust company evidencing ownership of the underlying
securities. ADRs may be purchased through “sponsored” or “unsponsored” facilities. A sponsored
facility is established jointly by the issuer of the underlying security and a depositary, whereas a
depositary may establish an unsponsored facility without participation by the issuer of the depositary
security. Holders of unsponsored depositary receipts generally bear all the costs of such facilities, and
the depositary of an unsponsored facility frequently is under no obligation to distribute shareholder
communications received from the issuer of the deposited security or to pass through voting rights to
the holders of such receipts of the deposited securities. Accordingly, available information concerning
the issuer may not be current and the prices of unsponsored depositary receipts may be more volatile
than the prices of sponsored depositary receipts. For purposes of the Fund’s investment policies, ADRs
are deemed to have the same classification as the underlying securities they represent. Thus, an ADR
representing ownership of common stock will be treated as common stock.
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Political and Economic Factors. Individual foreign economies of certain countries may differ favorably
or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in such respects as growth of gross national product, rate of
inflation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency, diversification and balance of payments
position. The internal politics of certain foreign countries may not be as stable as those of the United
States. Governments in certain foreign countries also continue to participate to a significant degree,
through ownership interest or regulation, in their respective economies. Action by these governments
could include restrictions on foreign investment, nationalization, expropriation of goods or imposition
of taxes, and could have a significant effect on market prices of securities and payment of interest. The
economies of many foreign countries are heavily dependent upon international trade and are accordingly
affected by the trade policies and economic conditions of their trading partners. Enactment by these
trading partners of protectionist trade legislation could have a significant adverse effect upon the
securities markets of those countries. On March 29, 2017, the United Kingdom (“UK”) triggered the
procedures to withdraw from the European Union (“EU”) after the two year period settlement negotiation
as prescribed in Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon. On January 31, 2020 the UK officially withdrew
from the EU, subject to an 11 month transition period. In this transition period the UK will still follow
all the EU rules and regulations and it will remain in the single market and customs union in this time.
It is still uncertain what commercial arrangement will be reached between the EU and the UK once the
transition period has come to an end, which is anticipated to be at the end of 2020. The ongoing withdrawal
process could cause an extended period of uncertainty and market volatility, not just in the United
Kingdom but throughout the EU, the European Economic Area and globally. As an investment manager
authorized and regulated by the FCA, the Adviser is currently subject to provisions of certain European
directives and regulations (e.g., Markets in Financial Instruments Directive, the AIFM Directive and
the European Market Infrastructure Regulation) which have either been incorporated into the UK law
or have direct effect in the UK. The longer-term impact of the decision to leave the EU on the UK
regulatory framework will depend, in part, on the relationship that the UK will seek to establish with
the EU in the future as referred to above. In particular, it is uncertain whether and how UK laws that
incorporate EU directives may be modified in the future and whether UK firms (such as the Adviser)
will continue to have the benefit of certain rights to conduct cross border business within the EU,
particularly with respect to financial services. It is not possible to currently determine the precise impact
the UK’s departure from the EU may have on the Fund or the Investment Manager from an economic,
financial or regulatory perspective but any such impact could have material consequences for the
Investment Manager and/or the Fund.
Currency Fluctuations. The Fund may invest in securities denominated in foreign currencies.
Accordingly, a change in the value of any such currency against the U.S. dollar will result in a
corresponding change in the U.S. dollar value of the Fund’s assets denominated in that currency. Such
changes will also affect the Fund’s income. The value of the Fund’s assets may also be affected
significantly by currency restrictions and exchange control regulations enacted from time to time.
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Market Characteristics. The Adviser expects that many foreign securities in which the Fund may invest
could be purchased in over-the-counter (“OTC”) markets or on exchanges located in the countries in
which the principal offices of the issuers of the various securities are located, if that is the best available
market. Foreign exchanges and markets may be more volatile than those in the United States. While
growing in volume, they usually have substantially less volume than U.S. markets, and the Fund’s
investments in foreign securities may be less liquid and more volatile than investments in U.S. securities.
Moreover, settlement practices for transactions in foreign markets may differ from those in U.S. markets,
and may include delays beyond periods customary in the United States. Foreign security trading
practices, including those involving securities settlement where Fund assets may be released prior to
receipt of payment or securities, may expose the Fund to increased risk in the event of a failed trade or
the insolvency of a foreign broker-dealer.
Legal and Regulatory Matters. Certain foreign countries may have less supervision of securities markets,
brokers and issuers of securities, non-uniform accounting standards and less financial information
available from issuers, than is available in the United States. It may be more difficult to obtain and
enforce a judgment against a foreign issuer. Legal remedies available to investors in certain foreign
countries may be more limited than those available with respect to investments in the United States or
in other foreign countries. The laws of some foreign countries may limit the Fund’s ability to invest in
securities of certain issuers located in those foreign countries.
Taxes. The interest and dividends payable on certain of the Fund’s foreign portfolio securities may be
subject to foreign withholding taxes, thus reducing the net amount of income available for distribution
to Fund shareholders. Foreign issuers may not be subject to auditing and financial reporting standards
and requirements comparable to those which apply to U.S. companies.
Costs. To the extent that the Fund invests in foreign securities, its expense ratio is likely to be higher
than those of investment companies investing only in domestic securities, because related brokerage
costs and the cost of maintaining the custody of foreign securities may be higher.
Additional Risks of Emerging and Frontier Markets. In addition, the Fund may invest in foreign securities
of companies that are located in developing, emerging or frontier markets. Investing in securities of
issuers located in these markets may pose greater risks not typically associated with investing in more
established markets, such as increased risk of social, political and economic instability. Emerging and
frontier market countries typically have smaller securities markets than developed countries and
therefore less liquidity and greater price volatility than more developed markets. Securities traded in
emerging markets may also be subject to risks associated with the lack of modern technology, poor
governmental and/or judicial infrastructures relating to private or foreign investment or to judicial redress
for injury to private property, the lack of capital base to expand business operations, foreign taxation
and the inexperience of financial intermediaries, custodians and transfer agents. Emerging and frontier
market countries are also more likely to impose restrictions on the repatriation of an investor’s assets
and even where there is no outright restriction on repatriation, the mechanics of repatriations may delay
or impede the Fund’s ability to obtain possession of its assets. As a result, there may be an increased
risk or price volatility associated with the Fund’s investments in emerging and frontier market countries,
which may be magnified by currency fluctuations.
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Forward Currency Contracts
A forward currency contract (“forward contract”) involves an obligation to purchase or sell a specific
non-U.S. currency in exchange for another currency, which may be U.S. dollars, at a future date, which
may be any fixed number of days (usually less than one year) from the date of the contract agreed upon
by the parties, at an exchange rate (price) set at the time of the contract. At or before maturity of a
forward currency contract, the Fund may either exchange the currencies specified in the contract or
terminate its contractual obligation to exchange currencies by purchasing an offsetting contract. If the
Fund makes delivery of the foreign currency at or before the settlement of a forward contract, it may
be required to obtain the currency by converting assets into the currency. The Fund may close out a
forward contract obligating it to exchange currencies by purchasing or selling an offsetting contract, in
which case, it will realize a gain or a loss.
The Fund may enter into forward contracts in order to “lock in” the exchange rate between the currency
it will deliver and the currency it will receive for the duration of the contract. In addition, the Fund may
enter into forward contracts to hedge against risks arising from securities it owns or anticipates
purchasing, or the U.S. dollar value of interest and dividends paid on those securities. The Fund does
not intend to enter into forward contracts on a regular or continuing basis and the Fund will not enter
these contracts for speculative purposes.
Foreign currency transactions involve certain costs and risks. The Fund incurs foreign exchange expenses
in converting assets from one currency to another. Forward contracts involve a risk of loss if the Adviser
is inaccurate in its prediction of currency movements. The projection of short-term currency market
movements is extremely difficult and the successful execution of a short-term hedging strategy is highly
uncertain. The precise matching of forward contract amounts and the value of the securities involved
is generally not possible. Accordingly, it may be necessary for the Fund to purchase additional foreign
currency if the market value of the security is less than the amount of the foreign currency the Fund is
obligated to deliver under the forward contract and the decision is made to sell the security and make
delivery of the foreign currency. The use of forward contracts as a hedging technique does not eliminate
fluctuations in the prices of the underlying securities the Fund owns or intends to acquire, but it does
fix a rate of exchange in advance. Moreover, investors should bear in mind that the Fund is not obligated
to actively engage in hedging or other currency transactions. Although forward contracts can reduce the
risk of loss due to a decline in the value of the hedged currencies, they also limit any potential gain that
might result from an increase in the value of the currencies. There is also the risk that the other party to
the transaction may fail to deliver currency when due which may result in a loss to the Fund.
Under definitions adopted by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) and SEC, nondeliverable forwards are considered swaps, and therefore are included in the definition of “commodity
interests.” Although non-deliverable forwards have historically been traded in the OTC market, as swaps
they may in the future be required to be centrally cleared and traded on public facilities. Forward contracts
that qualify as deliverable forwards are not regulated as swaps for most purposes, and are not included
in the definition of “commodity interests.” However, these forwards are subject to some requirements
applicable to swaps, including reporting to swap data repositories, documentation requirements, and
business conduct rules applicable to swap dealers. CFTC regulation of currency forwards, especially
non-deliverable forwards, may restrict the Fund's ability to use these instruments in the manner described
above or subject the Adviser to CFTC registration and regulation as a commodity pool operator (“CPO”).
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Debt Securities
The Fund may invest in a wide range of debt securities, which may include investment grade debt
securities and below investment grade debt securities (commonly known as “junk bonds” or “high yield
bonds”). Investment grade corporate bonds are those rated BBB- or better by Standard & Poor’s Rating
Service, Inc. (“S&P”) or Baa3 or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”), each of which
are considered a nationally recognized statistical rating organization (“NRSRO”), or an equivalent rating
by another NRSRO. To the extent that the Fund invests in below investment grade debt securities, such
securities will be rated, at the time of investment, at least B- by S&P or B3 by Moody’s or a comparable
rating by at least one other rating agency or, if unrated, determined by the Adviser to be of comparable
quality. The Fund may hold a debt security rated below investment grade if a downgrade occurs after
the security has been purchased.
Below Investment Grade Debt Securities. Below investment grade debt securities generally offer a
higher current yield than that available for investment grade issues. However, below investment grade
debt securities involve higher risks, in that they are especially subject to adverse changes in general
economic conditions and in the industries in which the issuers are engaged, to changes in the financial
condition of the issuers and to price fluctuations in response to changes in interest rates. During periods
of economic downturn or rising interest rates, highly leveraged issuers may experience financial stress
that could adversely affect their ability to make payments of interest and principal and increase the
possibility of default. At times in recent years, the prices of many below investment grade debt securities
declined substantially, reflecting an expectation that many issuers of such securities might experience
financial difficulties. As a result, the yields on below investment grade debt securities rose dramatically,
reflecting the risk that holders of such securities could lose a substantial portion of their value as a result
of the issuers’ financial restructuring or default. There can be no assurance that such price declines will
not recur. The market for below investment grade debt issues generally is thinner and less active than
that for higher quality securities, which may limit the Fund's ability to sell such securities at fair value
in response to changes in the economy or financial markets. Adverse publicity and investor perceptions,
whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may also decrease the values and liquidity of below
investment grade debt securities, especially in a thinly traded market. Changes by recognized rating
services in their rating of a debt security may affect the value of these investments. The Fund will not
necessarily dispose of a security when its rating is reduced below its rating at the time of purchase.
However, the Adviser will monitor the investment to determine whether continued investment in the
security will assist in meeting the Fund’s investment objective.
Corporate Debt Securities. Corporate debt securities are fixed-income securities issued by businesses
to finance their operations, although corporate debt instruments may also include bank loans to
companies. Notes, bonds, debentures and commercial paper are the most common types of corporate
debt securities, with the primary difference being their maturities and secured or un-secured status.
Commercial paper has the shortest term and is usually unsecured.
The broad category of corporate debt securities includes debt issued by domestic or foreign companies
of all kinds, including those with small-, mid- and large-capitalizations. Corporate debt may be rated
investment grade or below investment grade and may carry fixed, variable, or floating rates of interest.
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Because of the wide range of types and maturities of corporate debt securities, as well as the range of
creditworthiness of its issuers, corporate debt securities have widely varying potentials for return and
risk profiles. For example, commercial paper issued by a large established domestic corporation that
is rated investment grade may have a modest return on principal, but carries relatively limited risk. On
the other hand, a long-term corporate note issued by a small foreign corporation from an emerging
market country that has not been rated may have the potential for relatively large returns on principal,
but carries a relatively high degree of risk.
Corporate debt securities carry credit risk, interest rate risk and prepayment risk. Credit risk is the risk
that the fund could lose money if the issuer of a corporate debt security is unable to pay interest or repay
principal when it is due. Some corporate debt securities that are rated below investment grade are
generally considered speculative because they present a greater risk of loss, including default, than
higher quality debt securities. The credit risk of a particular issuer’s debt security may vary based on
its priority for repayment. For example, higher ranking (senior) debt securities have a higher priority
than lower ranking (subordinated) securities. This means that the issuer might not make payments on
subordinated securities while continuing to make payments on senior securities. In addition, in the
event of bankruptcy, holders of higher-ranking senior securities may receive amounts otherwise payable
to the holders of more junior securities.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of certain corporate debt securities will tend to fall when
interest rates rise. In general, corporate debt securities with longer terms tend to fall more in value when
interest rates rise than corporate debt securities with shorter terms. Prepayment risk occurs when issuers
may prepay fixed rate debt securities when interest rates fall, forcing the Fund to invest in securities
with lower interest rates. Issuers of debt securities are also subject to the provisions of bankruptcy,
insolvency and other laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors that may restrict the ability of
the issuer to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on its debt securities. The possibility exists
therefore, that, as a result of bankruptcy, litigation or other conditions, the ability of an issuer to pay,
when due, the principal of and interest on its debt securities may become impaired.
Convertible Securities. Convertible securities include fixed income securities that may be exchanged
or converted into a predetermined number of shares of the issuer’s underlying common stock or other
equity security at the option of the holder during a specified period. Convertible securities entitle the
holder to receive interest paid or accrued on debt or dividends paid or accrued on preferred stock until
the security matures or is redeemed, converted or exchanged. Convertible securities may take the form
of convertible preferred stock, convertible bonds or debentures, units consisting of “usable” bonds and
warrants or a combination of the features of several of these securities. The investment characteristics
of each convertible security vary widely, which allows convertible securities to be employed for a variety
of investment strategies. The Fund will exchange or convert convertible securities into shares of
underlying common stock when, in the opinion of the Adviser, the investment characteristics of the
underlying common stock or other equity security will assist the Fund in achieving its investment
objectives. The Fund may also elect to hold or trade convertible securities. In selecting convertible
securities, the Adviser evaluates the investment characteristics of the convertible security as a fixed
income instrument, and the investment potential of the underlying equity security for capital
appreciation.
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Zero-Coupon Securities. Zero-coupon securities make no periodic interest payments, but are sold at a
deep discount from their face value. The buyer recognizes a rate of return determined by the gradual
appreciation of the security, which is redeemed at face value on a specified maturity date. The discount
varies depending on the time remaining until maturity, as well as market interest rates, liquidity of the
security, and the issuer’s perceived credit quality. If the issuer defaults, the holder may not receive any
return on its investment. Because zero-coupon securities bear no interest, their price fluctuates more
than other types of bonds. Since zero-coupon bondholders do not receive interest payments, when
interest rates rise, zero-coupon securities fall more dramatically in value than bonds paying interest on
a current basis. When interest rates fall, zero-coupon securities rise more rapidly in value because the
bonds reflect a fixed rate of return. An investment in zero-coupon may cause the Fund to recognize
income and make distributions to shareholders before it receives any cash payments on its investment.
Unrated Debt Securities. The Fund may also invest in unrated debt securities. Unrated debt, while not
necessarily lower in quality than rated securities, may not have as broad a market. Because of the size
and perceived demand for the issue, among other factors, certain issuers may decide not to pay the cost
of getting a rating for their bonds. The creditworthiness of the issuer, as well as any financial institution
or other party responsible for payments on the security, will be analyzed to determine whether to purchase
unrated bonds.
Yankee Bonds. The Fund may invest in Yankee bonds. Yankee bonds are U.S. dollar denominated bonds
typically issued in the U.S. by foreign governments and their agencies and foreign banks and
corporations. The Fund may also invest in Yankee Certificates of Deposit (“Yankee CDs”). Yankee
CDs are U.S. dollar-denominated certificates of deposit issued by a U.S. branch of a foreign bank and
held in the U.S. These investments involve risks that are different from investments in securities issued
by U.S. issuers, including potential unfavorable political and economic developments, foreign
withholding or other taxes, seizure of foreign deposits, currency controls, interest limitations or other
governmental restrictions which might affect and create increased risk relative to payment of principal
or interest.
Variable and Floating Rate Securities. Variable and floating rate securities provide for a periodic
adjustment in the interest rate paid on the obligations. The terms of such obligations must provide that
interest rates are adjusted periodically based upon an interest rate adjustment index as provided in the
respective obligations. The adjustment intervals may be regular, and range from daily up to annually,
or may be event based, such as based on a change in the prime rate. The Fund may invest in floating
rate debt instruments (“floaters”) and engage in credit spread trades. The interest rate on a floater is a
variable rate which is tied to another interest rate, such as a money-market index or Treasury bill rate.
The interest rate on a floater resets periodically, typically every six months. While, because of the interest
rate reset feature, floaters provide the Fund with a certain degree of protection against rises in interest
rates, the Fund will participate in any declines in interest rates as well. A credit spread trade is an
investment position relating to a difference in the prices or interest rates of two securities or currencies,
where the value of the investment position is determined by movements in the difference between the
prices or interest rates, as the case may be, of the respective securities or currencies. The Fund also may
invest in inverse floating rate debt instruments (“inverse floaters”). The interest rate on an inverse floater
resets in the opposite direction from the market rate of interest to which the inverse floater is indexed.
An inverse floating rate security may exhibit greater price volatility than a fixed rate obligation of similar
credit quality.
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Thinly Traded Securities
The Fund may also invest in securities that are thinly-traded. Although securities of certain renewable
infrastructure companies trade on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), NYSE Alternext U.S.
(formerly known as AMEX), the NASDAQ National Market or other securities exchanges or markets,
such securities may have a trading volume lower than those of larger companies due to their relatively
smaller capitalizations. Such securities may be difficult to dispose of at a fair price during times when
the Adviser believes it is desirable to do so. Thinly-traded securities are also more difficult to value and
the Adviser’s judgment as to value will often be given greater weight than market quotations, if any
exist. If market quotations are not available, thinly-traded securities will be valued in accordance with
procedures established by the Board. Investment of capital in thinly-traded securities may restrict our
ability to take advantage of market opportunities. The risks associated with thinly-traded securities may
be particularly acute in situations in which our operations require cash and could result in us borrowing
to meet our short term needs or incurring losses on the sale of thinly-traded securities.
Illiquid Investments
The Fund may purchase illiquid investments, which may include securities that are not readily marketable
and securities that are not registered under the Securities Act. The Fund may not acquire any illiquid
investments if, immediately after the acquisition, the Fund would have invested more than 15% of its
net assets in illiquid investments that are assets. The term “illiquid investments” for this purpose means
any investment that the fund reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market
conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market
value of the investment, as determined pursuant to the provisions of Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act.
The Fund may not be able to sell illiquid investments when the Adviser considers it desirable to do so
or may have to sell such investments at a price that is lower than the price that could be obtained if the
investments were more liquid. In addition, the sale of illiquid investments also may require more time
and may result in higher dealer discounts and other selling expenses than does the sale of investments
that are more liquid. Illiquid investments also may be more difficult to value due to the unavailability
of reliable market quotations for such investments, and investments in illiquid investments may have
an adverse impact on NAV.
An investment which when purchased enjoyed a fair degree of marketability may subsequently become
illiquid. In such event, appropriate remedies are considered to minimize the effect on the Fund’s liquidity.
Investment Companies
The Fund may invest in other investment companies to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. The Fund
generally may purchase or redeem, without limitation, shares of any affiliated or unaffiliated money
market funds, including unregistered money market funds, so long as the Fund does not pay a sales load
or service fee in connection with the purchase, sale or redemption, or if such fees are paid the Fund’s
investment adviser waives its management fee in an amount necessary to offset the amounts paid. With
respect to other investments in investment companies, the 1940 Act generally limits the Fund from
acquiring (i) more than 3% of the total outstanding shares of another investment company; (ii) shares
of another investment company having an aggregate value in excess of 5% of the value of the total
assets of the Fund; or (iii) shares of another registered investment company and all other investment
companies having an aggregate value in excess of 10% of the value of the total assets of the Fund.
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Investments by the Fund in other investment companies will be subject to the limitations of the 1940
Act (including limitations on sales charges), and the rules and regulations thereunder. By investing in
securities of an investment company, the Fund’s shareholders will indirectly bear the fees and expenses
of that underlying fund in addition to the Fund’s own fees and expenses.
Closed-End Funds. Closed-end funds are investment companies that typically issue a fixed number of
shares that trade on a securities exchange or OTC. The risks of investment in closed-end funds typically
reflect the risk of the types of securities in which the funds invest. Investments in closed-end funds are
subject to the additional risk that shares of the fund may trade at a premium or discount to their NAV
per share. Closed-end funds come in many varieties and can have different investment objectives,
strategies and investment portfolios. They also can be subject to different risks, volatility and fees and
expenses. When the Fund invests in shares of a closed-end fund, shareholders of the Fund bear their
proportionate share of the closed-end fund’s fees and expenses, as well as their share of the Fund’s fees
and expenses. Although closed-end funds are generally listed and traded on an exchange, the degree of
liquidity, or ability to be bought and sold, will vary significantly from one closed-end fund to another
based on various factors including, but not limited to, demand in the marketplace.
Open-End Mutual Funds. Open-end mutual funds are investment companies that issue new shares
continuously and redeem shares daily. The risks of investment of open-end mutual funds typically reflect
securities in which the fund invests. The NAV per share of an open-end fund will fluctuate daily
depending upon the performance of the securities held by the fund. Each open-end fund may have a
different investment objective and strategy and different investment portfolio. Different funds may also
be subject to different risks, volatility and fees and expenses. Although closed-end funds are generally
listed and traded on an exchange, the degree of liquidity, or ability to be bought and sold, will vary
significantly from one closed-end fund to another based on various factors including, but not limited
to, demand in the marketplace. When the Fund invests in shares of an open-end fund, shareholders of
the Fund bear their proportionate share of the open-end fund's fees and expenses, as well as their share
of the Fund’s fees and expenses.
Exchange-Traded Funds. Exchange-traded Funds (“ETFs”) are typically open-end investment
companies that are bought and sold on a national securities exchange. When the Fund invests in an
ETF, it will bear additional expenses based on its pro rata share of the ETF’s operating expenses, including
the potential duplication of management fees. The risk of owning an ETF generally reflects the risks
of owning the underlying securities it holds. Many ETFs seek to replicate a specific benchmark index.
However, an ETF may not fully replicate the performance of its benchmark index for many reasons,
including because of the temporary unavailability of certain index securities in the secondary market
or discrepancies between the ETF and the index with respect to the weighting of securities or the number
of stocks held. Lack of liquidity in an ETF could result in an ETF being more volatile than the underlying
portfolio of securities it holds. In addition, because of ETF expenses, compared to owning the underlying
securities directly, it may be more costly to own an ETF.
If the Fund invests in shares of an ETF, shareholders will indirectly bear fees and expenses charged by
the underlying ETF in which the Fund invests in addition to the Fund’s direct fees and expenses. The
Fund also will incur brokerage costs when it purchases ETFs. Furthermore, investments in other ETFs
could affect the timing, amount and character of distributions to shareholders and therefore may increase
the amount of taxes payable by investors in the Fund.
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Exchange-Traded Notes
Exchange-Traded Notes (“ETNs”) are senior, unsecured, unsubordinated debt securities whose returns
are linked to the performance of a particular market benchmark or strategy minus applicable fees. ETNs
are traded on an exchange (e.g., the New York Stock Exchange) during normal trading hours. However,
investors can also hold the ETN until maturity. At maturity, the issuer pays to the investor a cash amount
equal to the principal amount, subject to the day's market benchmark or strategy factor. ETNs do not
make periodic coupon payments or provide principal protection. ETNs are subject to credit risk and the
value of the ETN may drop due to a downgrade in the issuer’s credit rating, despite the underlying
market benchmark or strategy remaining unchanged. The value of an ETN may also be influenced by
time to maturity, issuer call options, level of supply and demand for the ETN, volatility and lack of
liquidity in underlying assets, changes in the applicable interest rates, changes in the issuer’s credit
rating, and economic, legal, political, or geographic events that affect the referenced underlying asset.
When the Fund invests in ETNs it will bear its proportionate share of any fees and expenses borne by
the ETN. The Fund’s decision to sell an ETN holding may be limited by the availability of a secondary
market. In addition, although an ETN may be listed on an exchange, the issuer may not be required to
maintain the listing and there can be no assurance that a secondary market will exist for an ETN. ETNs
are also subject to tax risk. No assurance can be given that the IRS will accept, or a court will uphold,
how the Fund characterizes and treats ETNs for tax purposes. Further, the IRS and Congress are
considering proposals that would change the timing and character of income and gains from ETNs. An
ETN that is tied to a specific market benchmark or strategy may not be able to replicate and maintain
exactly the composition and relative weighting of securities, commodities or other components in the
applicable market benchmark or strategy. Some ETNs that use leverage can, at times, be relatively
illiquid and, thus, they may be difficult to purchase or sell at a fair price. Leveraged ETNs are subject
to the same risk as other instruments that use leverage in any form. The market value of ETN shares
may differ from their market benchmark or strategy. This difference in price may be due to the fact that
the supply and demand in the market for ETN shares at any point in time is not always identical to the
supply and demand in the market for the securities, commodities or other components underlying the
market benchmark or strategy that the ETN seeks to track. As a result, there may be times when an ETN
share trades at a premium or discount to its market benchmark or strategy.
Options, Futures and Other Strategies
General. The Fund may use options (both traded on an exchange and OTC), futures contracts (sometimes
referred to as “futures”), swaps, caps, floors, collars, structured or synthetic financial instruments,
forward agreements, and other derivative securities (collectively, “Financial Instruments”) as a substitute
for a comparable market position in the underlying security, to attempt to hedge or limit the exposure
of a particular portfolio security, to create a synthetic position, for certain tax-related purposes, to close
out previously established derivatives such as options, forward and futures positions, to reduce volatility,
to enhance income, and/or to gain market exposure. These can also be used as speculative instruments.
In addition to the other limitations described herein, the Fund's ability to use Financial Instruments may
be limited by tax considerations.
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The use of Financial Instruments is subject to applicable regulations of the SEC, the several exchanges
upon which they are traded and the CFTC. In addition to the instruments, strategies and risks described
below, the Adviser may discover additional opportunities in connection with Financial Instruments and
other similar or related techniques. These new opportunities may become available as the Adviser
develops new investment techniques, as regulatory authorities broaden the range of permitted
transactions and as new Financial Instruments or other techniques are developed. The Adviser may
utilize these opportunities to the extent that they are consistent with the Fund’s investment objective
and permitted by the Fund’s investment limitations and applicable regulatory authorities. The Prospectus
or this SAI will be supplemented to the extent that new products or techniques involve materially different
risks than those described below.
Exclusion of Adviser from Commodity Pool Operator Definition. An exclusion from the definition of
“commodity pool operator” (“CPO”) under the Commodity Exchange Act (“CEA”) and the rules of the
CFTC has been claimed with respect to the Fund.
The terms of the CPO exclusion require the Fund, among other things, to adhere to certain limits on its
investments in “commodity interests.” Commodity interests include commodity futures, commodity
options and swaps, which in turn include non-deliverable currency forward contracts, as further described
below. Because the Adviser and the Fund intends to comply with the terms of the CPO exclusion, as
necessary, the Fund may, in the future, need to adjust its investment strategies, consistent with its
investment goal, to limit its investments in these types of instruments. The Fund is not intended as a
vehicle for trading in the commodity futures, commodity options or swaps markets. The CFTC has
neither reviewed nor approved the Fund’s and the Adviser’s reliance on this exclusion and exemption,
respectively, or the Fund, its investment strategies, the Prospectus or this SAI.
Generally, the exclusion from CPO regulation requires the Fund to meet one of the following tests for
its commodity interest positions, other than positions entered into for bona fide hedging purposes (as
defined in the rules of the CFTC): either (1) the aggregate initial margin and premiums required to
establish the Fund’s positions in commodity interests may not exceed 5% of the liquidation value of the
Fund’s portfolio (after taking into account unrealized profits and unrealized losses on any such positions);
or (2) the aggregate net notional value of the Fund’s commodity interest positions, determined at the
time the most recent such position was established, may not exceed 100% of the liquidation value of
the Fund’s portfolio (after taking into account unrealized profits and unrealized losses on any such
positions). In addition to meeting one of these trading limitations, the Fund may not be marketed as a
commodity pool or otherwise as a vehicle for trading in the commodity futures, commodity options or
swaps markets. If, in the future, the Fund relying on the exclusion can no longer satisfy these
requirements, the notice claiming an exclusion from the definition of a CPO would be withdrawn, and
the Adviser would be subject to registration and regulation as a CPO with respect to the Fund, in
accordance with CFTC rules that apply to CPOs of registered investment companies. Generally, these
rules allow for substituted compliance with CFTC disclosure and shareholder reporting requirements,
based on the Adviser’s compliance with comparable SEC requirements. However, as a result of CFTC
regulation with respect to the Fund, the Fund may incur additional compliance and other expenses.
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Special Risks. The use of Financial Instruments involves special considerations and risks, certain of
which are described below. Risks pertaining to particular Financial Instruments are described in the
sections that follow.
(1)
Successful use of most Financial Instruments depends upon the Adviser’s ability to predict
movements of the overall securities markets, which requires different skills than predicting changes in
the prices of individual securities. The ordinary spreads between prices in the cash and futures markets,
due to the differences in the natures of those markets, are subject to distortion. Due to the possibility
of distortion, a correct forecast of market trends by the Adviser may still not result in a successful
transaction. The Adviser may be incorrect in its expectations as to the extent of market movements or
the time span within which the movements take place, which, thus, may result in the strategy being
unsuccessful.
(2)
Certain Financial Instruments may have a leveraging effect on the Fund, and adverse changes
in the value of the underlying security, index, interest rate, currency or other or measure can result in
losses substantially greater than the amount invested in the Financial Instrument itself. When the Fund
engages in transactions that have a leveraging effect, the value of the Fund is likely to be more volatile
and all other risks are also likely to be compounded. This is because leverage generally magnifies the
effect of any increase or decrease in the value of an asset and creates investment risk with respect to a
larger pool of assets than the Fund would otherwise have. Certain Financial Instruments have the
potential for unlimited loss, regardless of the size of the initial investment.
(3)
Certain Financial Instrument transactions, including certain options, swaps, forward contracts,
and certain options on foreign currencies, are entered into directly by the counterparties and/or through
financial institutions acting as market makers (“OTC derivatives”), rather than being traded on exchanges
or in markets registered with the CFTC or the SEC. Many of the protections afforded to exchange
participants will not be available to participants in OTC derivatives transactions. For example, OTC
derivatives transactions are not subject to the guarantee of an exchange, and only OTC derivatives that
are either required to be cleared or submitted voluntarily for clearing to a clearinghouse will enjoy the
protections that central clearing provides against default by the original counterparty to the trade. In
an OTC derivatives transaction that is not cleared, the Fund bears the risk of default by its counterparty.
In a cleared derivatives transaction, the Fund is instead exposed to the risk of default of the clearinghouse
and the risk of default of the broker through which it has entered into the transaction. Information
available on counterparty creditworthiness may be incomplete or outdated, thus reducing the ability to
anticipate counterparty defaults.
(4)
Options and futures prices can diverge from the prices of their underlying instruments. Options
and futures prices are affected by such factors as current and anticipated short-term interest rates, changes
in volatility of the underlying instrument and the time remaining until expiration of the contract, which
may not affect security prices the same way. Imperfect or no correlation also may result from differing
levels of demand in the options and futures markets and the securities markets, from structural differences
in how options and futures and securities are traded, and from the imposition of daily price fluctuation
limits or trading halts.
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(5)
As described below, the Fund might be required to maintain assets as “cover,” maintain
segregated accounts or make margin payments when it takes positions in Financial Instruments involving
obligations to third parties (e.g., Financial Instruments other than purchased options). If the Fund is
unable to close out its positions in such Financial Instruments, they might be required to continue to
maintain such assets or accounts or make such payments until the position expires or matures. These
requirements might impair the Fund’s ability to sell a portfolio security or make an investment when it
would otherwise be favorable to do so or require that the Fund sells a portfolio security at a
disadvantageous time. The Fund's ability to close out a position in a Financial Instrument prior to
expiration or maturity depends on the existence of a liquid secondary market or, in the absence of such
a market, the ability and willingness of the other party to the transaction (the “counter-party”) to enter
into a transaction closing out the position. Therefore, there is no assurance that any position can be
closed out at a time and price that is favorable to the Fund.
(6)
Losses may arise due to unanticipated market price movements, lack of a liquid secondary
market for any particular instrument at a particular time or due to losses from premiums paid by the
Fund on options transactions.
Cover. Transactions using Financial Instruments, other than purchasing options, expose the Fund to an
obligation to another party. The Fund will not enter into any such transactions unless they own either
(1) an offsetting (“covered”) position in securities or other options or futures contracts or (2) cash and
liquid assets with a value, marked-to-market daily, sufficient to cover its potential obligations to the
extent not covered as provided in (1) above. The Fund will comply with SEC guidelines regarding
cover for these instruments and will, if the guidelines so require, set aside cash or liquid assets in an
account with its custodian, U.S. Bank, N.A. (the “Custodian”), in the prescribed amount as determined
daily.
Assets used as cover or held in an account cannot be sold while the position in the corresponding
Financial Instrument is open, unless they are replaced with other appropriate assets. As a result, the
commitment of a large portion of the Fund’s assets to cover obligations under Financial Instruments
could impede portfolio management or the Fund’s ability to meet redemption requests or other current
obligations.
Options. The value of an option position will reflect, among other things, the current market value of
the underlying investment, the time remaining until expiration, the relationship of the exercise price to
the market price of the underlying investment and general market conditions. Options that expire
unexercised have no value. Options currently are traded on the Chicago Board Options Exchange
(“CBOE”), the American Stock and Options Exchange (“AMEX”) and other exchanges, as well as the
OTC markets.
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By buying a call option on a security, the Fund has the right, in return for the premium paid, to buy the
security underlying the option at the exercise price. By writing (selling) a call option and receiving a
premium, the Fund becomes obligated during the term of the option to deliver securities underlying the
option at the exercise price if the option is exercised. The Fund will only write call options on securities
it holds in its portfolio (i.e., covered calls). By buying a put option, the Fund has the right, in return for
the premium, to sell the security underlying the option at the exercise price. By writing a put option
and receiving a premium, the Fund becomes obligated during the term of the option to purchase the
securities underlying the option at the exercise price.
Because options premiums paid or received by the Fund are small in relation to the market value of the
investments underlying the options, buying and selling put and call options can be more speculative
than investing directly in securities.
The Fund may effectively terminate its right or obligation under an option by entering into a closing
transaction. For example, the Fund may terminate an obligation under a call option or put option that
it has written by purchasing an identical call option or put option. This is known as a closing purchase
transaction. Conversely, the Fund may terminate a position in a put or call option it had purchased by
writing an identical put or call option. This is known as a closing sale transaction. Closing transactions
permit the Fund to realize profits or limit losses on an option position prior to its exercise or expiration.
Interest Rate Options. Interest rate options, including interest rate caps and interest rate floors, which
can be combined to form interest rate collars, are contracts that entitle the purchaser to pay or receive
the amounts, if any, by which a specified market rate exceeds a cap strike interest rate, or falls below a
floor strike interest rate, respectively, at specified dates. The Fund may use interest rate options to hedge
against anticipated and non-anticipated changes in interest rates on a portfolio wide basis or versus
individual securities which may also have interest rate options embedded within the security.
OTC Options. Unlike exchange-traded options, which are standardized with respect to the underlying
instrument, expiration date, contract size and strike price, the terms of OTC options (options not traded
on exchanges) generally are established through negotiation with the other party to the option contract.
While this type of arrangement allows the Fund great flexibility to tailor the option to its needs, OTC
options generally involve greater risk than exchange-traded options, which are guaranteed by the clearing
organization of the exchanges where they are traded.
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Interest Rate Futures Contracts and Options on Interest Rate Futures Contracts. Bond prices are
established in both the cash market and the futures market. In the cash market, bonds are purchased and
sold with payment for the full purchase price of the bond being made in cash, generally within five
business days after the trade. In the futures market, a contract is made to purchase or sell a bond in the
future for a set price on a certain date. Historically, the prices for bonds established in the futures markets
have tended to move generally in the aggregate in concert with the cash market prices and have
maintained fairly predictable relationships. Accordingly, the Fund may use interest rate futures contracts
as a defense, or hedge, against anticipated interest rate changes. The Fund presently could accomplish
a similar result to that which it hopes to achieve through the use of interest rate futures contracts by
selling bonds with long maturities and investing in bonds with short maturities when interest rates are
expected to increase, or conversely, selling bonds with short maturities and investing in bonds with long
maturities when interest rates are expected to decline. However, because of the liquidity that is often
available in the futures market, the protection is more likely to be achieved, perhaps at a lower cost and
without changing the rate of interest being earned by the Fund, through using futures contracts.
Interest rate futures contracts are traded in an auction environment on the floors of several exchanges
and must be executed through a futures commission merchant (“FCM”), which is a brokerage firm that
is a member of the relevant contract market. Each exchange guarantees performance under contract
provisions through a clearing corporation, a nonprofit organization managed by the exchange
membership. A public market exists in futures contracts covering various financial instruments including
long-term U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes; GNMA modified pass-through mortgage backed securities;
three-month U.S. Treasury Bills; and ninety-day commercial paper. The Fund may also invest in
exchange-traded Eurodollar contracts, which are interest rate futures on the forward level of LIBOR.
These contracts are generally considered liquid securities and trade on the Chicago Mercantile Exchange.
Such Eurodollar contracts are generally used to “lock-in” or hedge the future level of short-term rates.
The Fund may trade in any interest rate futures contracts for which there exists a public market, including,
without limitation, the foregoing instruments.
Futures Contracts and Options on Futures Contracts. A futures contract obligates the seller to deliver
(and the purchaser to take delivery of) the specified security on the expiration date of the contract. An
index futures contract obligates the seller to deliver (and the purchaser to take) an amount of cash equal
to a specific dollar amount times the difference between the value of a specific index at the close of the
last trading day of the contract and the price at which the agreement is made. No physical delivery of
the underlying securities in the index is made.
When the Fund writes an option on a futures contract, it becomes obligated, in return for the premium
received, to assume a position in the futures contract at a specified exercise price at any time during the
term of the option. If the Fund writes a call, it assumes a short futures position. If the Fund writes a
put, it assumes a long futures position. When the Fund purchases an option on a futures contract, it
acquires the right in return for the premium it pays to assume a position in a futures contract (a long
position if the option is a call and a short position if the option is a put).
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Whether the Fund realizes a gain or loss from futures activities depends upon movements in the
underlying security or index. The extent of the Fund’s loss from an unhedged short position in futures
contracts or from writing unhedged call options on futures contracts is potentially unlimited. The Fund
only purchases and sells futures contracts and options on futures contracts that are traded on a U.S.
exchange or board of trade.
No price is paid upon entering into a futures contract. Instead, at the inception of a futures contract the
Fund is required to deposit “initial margin” that is typically calculated as an amount equal to the volatility
in the market value of a contract over a fixed period. Margin also must be deposited when writing a
call or put option on a futures contract, in accordance with applicable exchange rules. Unlike margin
in securities transactions, initial margin does not represent a borrowing, but rather is in the nature of a
performance bond or good-faith deposit that is returned to the Fund at the termination of the transaction
if all contractual obligations have been satisfied. Under certain circumstances, such as periods of high
volatility, the Fund may be required by an exchange to increase the level of its initial margin payment,
and initial margin requirements might be increased generally in the future by regulatory action.
Subsequent “variation margin” payments are made to and from the futures commission merchant daily
as the value of the futures position varies, a process known as “marking-to-market.” Variation margin
does not involve borrowing, but rather represents a daily settlement of the Fund’s obligations to or from
a futures commission merchant. When the Fund purchases an option on a futures contract, the premium
paid plus transaction costs is all that is at risk. In contrast, when the Fund purchases or sell a futures
contract or writes a call or put option thereon, it is subject to daily variation margin calls that could be
substantial in the event of adverse price movements. If the Fund has insufficient cash to meet daily
variation margin requirements, it might need to sell securities at a time when such sales are
disadvantageous.
Purchasers and sellers of futures contracts and options on futures can enter into offsetting closing
transactions, similar to closing transactions in options, by selling or purchasing, respectively, an
instrument identical to the instrument purchased or sold. Positions in futures and options on futures
contracts may be closed only on an exchange or board of trade that provides a secondary market.
However, there can be no assurance that a liquid secondary market will exist for a particular contract
at a particular time. In such event, it may not be possible to close a futures contract or options position.
Under certain circumstances, futures exchanges may establish daily limits on the amount that the price
of a futures contract or an option on a futures contract can vary from the previous day’s settlement price.
Once that limit is reached, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond the limit. Daily price limits
do not limit potential losses because prices could move to the daily limit for several consecutive days
with little or no trading, thereby preventing liquidation of unfavorable positions.
If the Fund were unable to liquidate a futures contract or an option on a futures position due to the
absence of a liquid secondary market or the imposition of price limits, it could incur substantial losses.
The Fund would continue to be subject to market risk with respect to the position. In addition, except
in the case of purchased options, the Fund would continue to be required to make daily variation margin
payments and might be required to maintain cash or liquid assets in an account.

23

Risks of Futures Contracts and Options Thereon. The Fund's use of futures contracts is subject to the
risks associated with derivative instruments generally. In addition, a purchase or sale of a futures contract
may result in losses to the Fund in excess of the amount the Fund delivered as initial margin. Because
of the relatively low margin deposits required, futures trading involves a high degree of leverage; as a
result, a relatively small price movement in a futures contract may result in immediate and substantial
loss, or gain, to the Fund.
There is a risk of loss by the Fund of its initial and variation margin deposits in the event of bankruptcy
of the futures commission merchant (“FCM”) with which the Fund has an open position in a futures
contract. The assets of the Fund may not be fully protected in the event of the bankruptcy of the FCM
or central counterparty because the Fund might be limited to recovering only a pro rata share of all
available Fund and margin segregated on behalf of an FCM’s customers. If the FCM does not provide
accurate reporting, the Fund is also subject to the risk that the FCM could use the Fund’s assets, which
are held in an omnibus account with assets belonging to the FCM’s other customers, to satisfy its own
financial obligations or the payment obligations of another customer.
Options on futures contracts trade on the same contract markets as the underlying futures contracts. The
writer (seller) of an option on a futures contract becomes contractually obligated to take the opposite
futures position if the buyer of the option exercises its rights to the futures position specified in the
option. The Fund's use of options on futures contracts is subject to the risks related to derivative
instruments generally. In addition, the amount of risk the Fund assumes when it purchases an option on
a futures contract is the premium paid for the option plus related transaction costs. The purchase of an
option also entails the risk that changes in the value of the underlying futures contract will not be fully
reflected in the value of the option purchased.
The ordinary spreads between prices in the cash and futures markets (including the options on futures
markets), due to differences in the natures of those markets, are subject to the following factors, which
may create distortions. First, all participants in the futures market are subject to margin deposit and
maintenance requirements. Rather than meeting additional margin deposit requirements, investors may
close futures contracts through offsetting transactions, which could distort the normal relationships
between the cash and futures markets. Second, the liquidity of the futures market depends on participants
entering into offsetting transactions rather than making or taking delivery. To the extent participants
decide to make or take delivery, liquidity in the futures market could be reduced, thus producing
distortion. Third, from the point of view of speculators, the deposit requirements in the futures market
are less onerous than margin requirements in the securities market. Therefore, increased participation
by speculators in the futures market may cause temporary price distortions.
Combined Positions. The Fund may purchase and write options in combination with each other. For
example, the Fund may purchase a put option and write a call option on the same underlying instrument
in order to construct a combined position whose risk and return characteristics are similar to selling a
futures contract. Another possible combined position would involve writing a call option at one strike
price and buying a call option at a lower price, in order to reduce the risk of the written call option in
the event of a substantial price increase. Because combined options positions involve multiple trades,
they result in higher transaction costs and may be more difficult to open and close out.
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Swaps Generally. The Fund may enter into swap contracts. Generally, swap agreements are contracts
between the Fund and another party (the swap counterparty) involving the exchange of payments on
specified terms over periods ranging from a few days to multiple years. A swap agreement may be
negotiated bilaterally and traded OTC between the two parties (for an uncleared swap) or, in some
instances, must be transacted through an FCM and cleared through a clearinghouse that serves as a
central counterparty (for a cleared swap). The notional amount is the set dollar or other value selected
by the parties to use as the basis on which to calculate the obligations that the parties to a swap agreement
have agreed to exchange. The parties typically do not actually exchange the notional amount. Instead
they agree to exchange the returns that would be earned or realized if the notional amount were invested
in given investments or at given rates.
Certain standardized swaps are subject to mandatory central clearing and exchange trading. The DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) and related regulatory
developments will ultimately require the clearing and exchange-trading of many OTC derivative
instruments that the CFTC and the SEC recently defined as “swaps,” including non-deliverable foreign
exchange forwards, OTC foreign exchange options, and swaptions. Mandatory exchange-trading and
clearing will take place on a phased-in basis based on the type of market participant, CFTC approval
of contracts for central clearing, and public trading facilities making such cleared swaps available to
trade. To date, the CFTC has designated only certain of the most common types of credit default index
swaps and interest rate swaps as subject to mandatory clearing and certain public trading facilities have
made certain of those cleared swaps available to trade, but it is expected that additional categories of
swaps will in the future be designated as subject to mandatory clearing and trade execution requirements.
Central clearing is intended to reduce counterparty credit risk and increase liquidity, but central clearing
does not eliminate these risks and may involve additional costs and risks not involved with uncleared
swaps.
Interest Rate Swaps. The Fund may enter into interest rate swap contracts. Interest rate swap contracts
are contracts in which each party agrees to make a periodic interest payment based on an index or the
value of an asset in return for a periodic payment from the other party based on a different index or
asset. The purchase of an interest rate floor entitles the purchaser, to the extent that a specified index
falls below a predetermined interest rate, to receive payments of interest on a notional principal amount
from the party selling such interest rate floor. The purchase of an interest rate cap entitles the purchaser,
to the extent that a specified index rises above a predetermined interest rate, to receive payments of
interest on a notional principal amount from the party selling such interest rate cap. Like a traditional
investment in a debt security, the Fund could lose money by investing in an interest rate swap if interest
rates change adversely. For example, if the Fund enters into a swap where it agrees to exchange a floating
rate of interest for a fixed rate of interest, the Fund may have to pay more money than it receives.
Similarly, if the Fund enters into a swap where it agrees to exchange a fixed rate of interest for a floating
rate of interest, the Fund may receive less money than it has agreed to pay.
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Credit Default Swaps. The Fund may enter into credit default swap agreements. The credit default swap
agreement may have as a reference obligation one or more securities that are not currently held by the
Fund. The buyer in a credit default swap agreement is obligated to pay the seller a periodic fee, typically
expressed in basis points on the principal amount of the underlying obligation (otherwise known as the
notional amount), over the term of the agreement in return for a contingent payment upon the occurrence
of a credit event with respect to the underlying reference obligation. A credit event is typically a default,
restructuring or bankruptcy.
The Fund may be either the buyer or seller in the transaction. As a seller, the Fund receives a fixed rate
of income throughout the term of the agreement, which typically is between one month and five years,
provided that no credit event occurs. If a credit event occurs, the Fund typically must pay the contingent
payment to the buyer, which is typically the par value (full notional value) of the reference obligation.
The contingent payment may be a cash settlement or by physical delivery of the reference obligation
in return for payment of the face amount of the obligation. If the Fund is a buyer and no credit event
occurs, the Fund may lose its investment and recover nothing. However, if a credit event occurs, the
buyer typically receives full notional value for a reference obligation that may have little or no value.
Credit default swaps may involve greater risks than if the Fund had invested in the reference obligation
directly. Credit default swaps are subject to general market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. If the Fund
is a buyer in a credit default swap agreement and no credit event occurs, then it will lose its investment.
In addition, the value of the reference obligation received by the Fund as a seller if a credit event occurs,
coupled with the periodic payments previously received, may be less than the full notional value it pays
to the buyer, resulting in a loss of value to the Fund.
Currency Swaps. In order to protect against currency fluctuations, the Fund may enter into currency
swaps. The Fund may also hedge portfolio positions through currency swaps, which are transactions in
which one currency is simultaneously bought for a second currency on a spot basis and sold for the
second currency on a forward basis. Currency swaps involve the exchange of the rights of the Fund and
another party to make or receive payments in specified currencies. Currency swaps usually involve the
delivery of the entire principal value of one designated currency in exchange for the other designated
currency. Because currency swaps usually involve the delivery of the entire principal value of one
designated currency in exchange for the other designated currency, the entire principal value of a currency
swap is subject to the risk that the other party to the swap will default on its contractual delivery
obligations.
Comprehensive Swaps Regulation. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) and related regulatory developments have imposed comprehensive
regulatory requirements on swaps and swap market participants. The regulatory framework includes:
(1) registration and regulation of swap dealers and major swap participants; (2) requiring central clearing
and execution of standardized swaps; (3) imposing margin requirements on swap transactions; (4)
regulating and monitoring swap transactions through position limits and large trader reporting
requirements; and (5) imposing record keeping and centralized and public reporting requirements, on
an anonymous basis, for most swaps. The CFTC is responsible for the regulation of most swaps. The
SEC has jurisdiction over a small segment of the market referred to as “security-based swaps,” which
includes swaps on single securities or credits, or narrow-based indices of securities or credits.
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Risks of Swaps. The Fund’s use of swaps is subject to the risks associated with derivative instruments
generally. In addition, because uncleared swaps are typically executed bilaterally with a swap dealer
rather than traded on exchanges, uncleared swap participants may not be as protected as participants on
organized exchanges. Performance of an uncleared swap agreement is the responsibility only of the
swap counterparty and not of any exchange or clearinghouse. As a result, the Fund is subject to the risk
that a counterparty will be unable or will refuse to perform under such agreement, including because
of the counterparty’s bankruptcy or insolvency.
As noted above, under recent financial reforms, certain types of swaps are, and others eventually are
expected to be, required to be cleared through a central counterparty, which may affect counterparty
risk and other risks faced by the Fund. Central clearing is designed to reduce counterparty credit risk
and increase liquidity compared to uncleared swaps because central clearing interposes the central
clearinghouse as the counterparty to each participant’s swap, but it does not eliminate those risks
completely and may involve additional costs and risks not involved with uncleared swaps. The Fund is
also subject to the risk that, after entering into a cleared swap with an executing broker, no FCM or
central counterparty is willing or able to clear the transaction. In such an event, the Fund may be required
to break the trade and make an early termination payment to the executing broker.
With respect to cleared swaps, there is also a risk of loss by the Fund of its initial and variation margin
deposits in the event of bankruptcy of the FCM with which the Fund has an open position, or the central
counterparty in a swap contract. The assets of the Fund may not be fully protected in the event of the
bankruptcy of the FCM or central counterparty because the Fund might be limited to recovering only
a pro rata share of all available funds and margin segregated on behalf of an FCM’s customers. If the
FCM does not provide accurate reporting, the Fund is also subject to the risk that the FCM could use
the Fund’s assets, which are held in an omnibus account with assets belonging to the FCM’s other
customers, to satisfy its own financial obligations or the payment obligations of another customer to
the central counterparty. Credit risk of cleared swap participants is concentrated in a few clearinghouses,
and the consequences of insolvency of a clearinghouse are not clear.
Risks of Potential Government Regulation of Derivatives. It is possible that additional government
regulation of various types of derivative instruments, including futures, options, and swap contracts,
may limit or prevent the Fund from using such instruments as part of its investment strategy, and could
ultimately prevent the Fund from being able to achieve its investment objective. It is impossible to fully
predict the effects of past, present or future legislation and regulation in this area, but the effects could
be substantial and adverse. It is possible that legislative and regulatory activity could limit or restrict
the ability of the Fund to use certain instruments as part of its investment strategy. Limits or restrictions
applicable to the counterparties with which the Fund engages in derivative transactions could also prevent
the Fund from using certain instruments.
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There is a possibility of future regulatory changes altering, perhaps to a material extent, the nature of
an investment in the Fund or the ability of the Fund to continue to implement its investment strategies.
The futures, options, and swaps markets are subject to comprehensive statutes, regulations, and margin
requirements. In addition, the SEC, the CFTC and the exchanges are authorized to take extraordinary
actions in the event of a market emergency, including, for example, the implementation or reduction of
speculative position limits, the implementation of higher margin requirements, the establishment of
daily price limits, and the suspension of trading. The regulation of futures, options, and swaps
transactions in the U.S. is a rapidly changing area of law and is subject to modification by government
action.
New and developing regulation may negatively impact the Fund’s ability to meet its investment objective
either through limits or requirements imposed on it or upon its counterparties. In particular, any new
position limits imposed on the Fund or its counterparties may impact the Fund’s ability to invest in
futures, options, and swaps in a manner that efficiently meets its investment objective. New
requirements, even if not directly applicable to the Fund, including capital requirements and mandatory
clearing, may increase the cost of the Fund's investments and cost of doing business, which could
adversely affect investors.
Interest Rate Floors, Caps, and Collars. The purchase of an interest rate cap entitles the purchaser, to
the extent that a specified index exceeds a predetermined interest rate, to receive payment of interest
on a notional principal amount from the party selling such interest rate cap. The purchase of an interest
rate floor entitles the purchaser, to the extent that a specified index falls below a predetermined interest
rate, to receive payments of interest on a notional principal amount from the party selling the interest
rate floor. An interest rate collar is the combination of a cap and a floor that preserves a certain return
within a predetermined range of interest rates.
Cash Investments
The Fund may invest in high-quality, short-term debt securities and money market instruments (“Cash
Investments”) for (i) temporary defensive purposes in response to adverse market, economic, or political
conditions and (ii) retaining flexibility in meeting redemptions, paying expenses, and identifying and
assessing investment opportunities. Cash Investments include shares of other mutual funds, certificates
of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, time deposits, savings association obligations, commercial paper, shortterm notes (including discount notes), and other obligations.
The Fund may hold a substantial position in Cash Investments for long periods of time, which may
result in the Fund not achieving its investment objective. If the market advances during periods when
the Fund is holding a large Cash Investment, the Fund may not participate to the extent it would have
if the Fund had been more fully invested, and this may result in the Fund not achieving its investment
objective during that period. To the extent that the Fund uses a money market fund for its Cash Investment,
there will be some duplication of expenses because the Fund would bear its pro rata portion of such
money market fund’s advisory fees and operational expenses.
Cash Investments are subject to credit risk and interest rate risk, although to a lesser extent than longerterm debt securities due to Cash Investments’ short-term, significant liquidity, and typical high credit
quality.
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The Fund may invest in any of the following:
Money Market Mutual Funds. Generally, money market mutual funds seek to earn income consistent
with the preservation of capital and maintenance of liquidity. They primarily invest in high quality
money market obligations, including U.S. government obligations, bank obligations and high-grade
corporate instruments. These investments generally mature within 397 days from the date of purchase.
An investment in a money market mutual fund is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any government agency.
To the extent that the Fund invests in money market mutual funds, your cost of investing in the Fund
will generally be higher because you will indirectly bear fees and expenses charged by the underlying
money market mutual funds in addition to the Fund’s direct fees and expenses. Furthermore, investing
in money market mutual funds could affect the timing, amount and character of distributions to you and
therefore may increase the amount of taxes payable by you.
Bank Certificates of Deposit, Bankers’ Acceptances and Time Deposits. The Fund may acquire
certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances and time deposits. Certificates of deposit are negotiable
certificates issued against monies deposited in a commercial bank for a definite period of time and
earning a specified return. Bankers’ acceptances are negotiable drafts or bills of exchange, normally
drawn by an importer or exporter to pay for specific merchandise, which are “accepted” by a bank,
meaning in effect that the bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on maturity.
Certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances acquired by the Fund will be dollar-denominated
obligations of domestic or foreign banks or financial institutions which at the time of purchase have
capital, surplus and undivided profits in excess of $100 million (including assets of both domestic and
foreign branches), based on latest published reports, or less than $100 million if the principal amount
of such bank obligations are fully insured by the U.S. government.
In addition to purchasing certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances, to the extent permitted under
the investment objective and policies stated above and in the Prospectus, the Fund may make interestbearing time or other interest-bearing deposits in commercial or savings banks. Time deposits are nonnegotiable deposits maintained at a banking institution for a specified period of time at a specified
interest rate.
Commercial Paper, Short-Term Notes and Other Corporate Obligations. The Fund may invest a portion
of its assets in commercial paper, short-term notes, and other corporate obligations. Commercial paper
consists of unsecured promissory notes issued by corporations. Issues of commercial paper and shortterm notes will normally have maturities of less than nine months and fixed rates of return, although
such instruments may have maturities of up to one year.
Commercial paper and short-term notes will consist of issues rated at the time of purchase “A 2” or
higher by S&P, “Prime-1” or “Prime-2” by Moody’s, or similarly rated by another nationally recognized
statistical rating organization or, if unrated, determined by the Adviser to be of comparable quality.
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Corporate obligations include bonds and notes issued by corporations to finance longer-term credit
needs than supported by commercial paper. While such obligations generally have maturities of ten
years or more, the Fund may purchase corporate obligations which have remaining maturities of one
year or less from the date of purchase and which are rated “A” or higher by S&P, “A” or higher by
Moody’s, similarly rated by another nationally recognized statistical rating organization, or, if unrated,
determined by the Adviser to be of comparable quality.
U.S. Government Obligations. The Fund may invest in U.S. government obligations. U.S. government
obligations include securities issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. government,
its agencies or instrumentalities. Treasury bills, the most frequently issued marketable government
securities, have a maturity of up to one year and are issued on a discount basis. U.S. government
obligations include securities issued or guaranteed by government-sponsored enterprises.
Payment of principal and interest on U.S. government obligations may be backed by the full faith and
credit of the United States or may be backed solely by the issuing or guaranteeing agency or
instrumentality itself. In the latter case, the investor must look principally to the agency or instrumentality
issuing or guaranteeing the obligation for ultimate repayment, which agency or instrumentality may be
privately owned. There can be no assurance that the U.S. government would provide financial support
to its agencies or instrumentalities, including government-sponsored enterprises, where it is not obligated
to do so (see “Agency Obligations,” below). In addition, U.S. government obligations are subject to
fluctuations in market value due to fluctuations in market interest rates. As a general matter, the value
of debt instruments, including U.S. government obligations, declines when market interest rates increase
and rises when market interest rates decrease. Certain types of U.S. government obligations are subject
to fluctuations in yield or value due to their structure or contract terms.
Agency Obligations
The Fund may invest in agency obligations, such as the Export-Import Bank of the United States,
Tennessee Valley Authority, Resolution Funding Corporation, Farmers Home Administration, Federal
Home Loan Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Federal Farm Credit Banks, Federal Land Banks,
Federal Housing Administration, Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”), commonly
known as “Ginnie Mae,” Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), commonly known as
“Fannie Mae,” Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), commonly known as “Freddie
Mac,” and the Student Loan Marketing Association (“SLMA”), commonly known as “Sallie Mae.”
Some, such as those of the Export-Import Bank of United States, are supported only by the right of the
issuer to borrow from the Treasury; others, such as those of the FNMA and FHLMC, are supported by
only the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase the agency’s obligations; still others,
such as those of the SLMA, are supported only by the credit of the instrumentality. No assurance can
be given that the U.S. government would provide financial support to U.S. government-sponsored
instrumentalities because they are not obligated by law to do so. As a result, there is a risk that these
entities will default on a financial obligation. For instance, in September 2008, at the direction of the
U.S. Treasury, FNMA and FHLMC were placed into conservatorship under the Federal Housing Finance
Agency (“FHFA”), a newly created independent regulator.
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Repurchase Agreements
The Fund may enter into repurchase agreements. Under such agreements, the Fund agrees to purchase
U.S. government obligations from a counterparty and the counterparty agrees to repurchase the securities
at a mutually agreed upon time and price. The repurchase price may be higher than the purchase price,
the difference being income to the Fund, or the purchase and repurchase prices may be the same, with
interest at a stated rate due to the Fund together with the repurchase price on repurchase. In either case,
the income to the Fund is unrelated to the interest rate on the security itself. Such repurchase agreements
will be made only with banks with assets of $500 million or more that are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or with government securities dealers recognized by the Federal Reserve Board
and registered as broker-dealers with the SEC or exempt from such registration. The Fund will generally
enter into repurchase agreements of short durations, from overnight to one week, although the underlying
securities generally have longer maturities. The Fund may not enter into a repurchase agreement with
more than seven days to maturity if, as a result, more than 15% of the value of the Fund’s net assets
would be invested in illiquid investments including such repurchase agreements. To the extent necessary
to facilitate compliance with Section 12(d)(3) of the 1940 Act and Rule 12d3-1 promulgated thereunder,
the Fund will ensure that repurchase agreements will be collateralized fully to the extent required by
Rule 5b-3.
For purposes of the 1940 Act, a repurchase agreement is deemed to be a loan from the Fund to the seller
of the U.S. government obligations that are subject to the repurchase agreement. It is not clear whether
a court would consider the U.S. government obligations to be acquired by the Fund subject to a repurchase
agreement as being owned by the Fund or as being collateral for a loan by the Fund to the seller. In the
event of the commencement of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings with respect to the seller of the
U.S. government obligations before its repurchase under a repurchase agreement, the Fund could
encounter delays and incur costs before being able to sell the underlying U.S. government obligations.
Delays may involve loss of interest or a decline in price of the U.S. government obligations. If a court
characterizes the transaction as a loan and the Fund has not perfected a security interest in the U.S.
government obligations, the Fund may be required to return the securities to the seller’s estate and be
treated as an unsecured creditor of the seller. As an unsecured creditor, the Fund would be at the risk
of losing some or all of the principal and income involved in the transaction. As with any unsecured
debt instrument purchased for the Fund, the Adviser seeks to minimize the risk of loss through repurchase
agreements by analyzing the creditworthiness of the other party, in this case the seller of the U.S.
government security.
Apart from the risk of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, there is also the risk that the seller may
fail to repurchase the U.S. government obligations. However, the Fund will always receive as collateral
for any repurchase agreement to which it is a party securities acceptable to the Adviser, the market value
of which is equal to at least 100% of the repurchase price, and the Fund will make payment against such
securities only upon physical delivery or evidence of book entry transfer to the account of its Custodian.
If the market value of the U.S. government obligations subject to the repurchase agreement become less
than the repurchase price (including interest), the Fund will direct the seller of the U.S. government
obligations to deliver additional securities so that the market value of all securities subject to the
repurchase agreement will equal or exceed the repurchase price. It is possible that the Fund could be
unsuccessful in seeking to enforce on the seller a contractual obligation to deliver additional securities.
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Reverse Repurchase Agreements
The Fund may enter into reverse repurchase agreements for temporary purposes with banks and securities
dealers if the creditworthiness of the bank or securities dealer has been determined by the Adviser to
be satisfactory. A reverse repurchase agreement is a repurchase agreement in which the Fund is the seller
of, rather than the investor in, securities and agrees to repurchase them at an agreed-upon time and price.
Use of a reverse repurchase agreement may be preferable to a regular sale and later repurchase of
securities because it avoids certain market risks and transaction costs.
At the time when the Fund enters into a reverse repurchase agreement, liquid assets (such as cash, U.S.
government securities or other “high-grade” debt obligations) of the Fund’s having a value at least as
great as the purchase price of the securities to be purchased will be segregated on the Fund’s books and
held by the Custodian throughout the period of the obligation. Reverse repurchase agreements are
considered a form of borrowing and the use of reverse repurchase agreements by the Fund creates
leverage which increases its investment risk. If the income and gains on securities purchased with the
proceeds of these transactions exceed the cost, the Fund’s earnings or NAV will increase faster than
otherwise would be the case; conversely, if the income and gains fail to exceed the cost, earnings or
NAV would decline faster than otherwise would be the case. The Fund intends to enter into reverse
repurchase agreements only if the income from the investment of the proceeds is expected to be greater
than the expense of the transaction, because the proceeds are invested for a period no longer than the
term of the reverse repurchase agreement.
Borrowing
The Fund may borrow money from banks in amounts of up to one-third of the Fund’s total assets
(including the amount borrowed) less liabilities (other than borrowings). Any such borrowing that
comes to exceed this amount will be reduced within three days (not including Sundays and holidays)
to the extent necessary to comply with the one-third limitation.
In addition, the Fund is authorized to borrow money from time to time for temporary, extraordinary or
emergency purposes, including addressing liquidity concerns or meeting redemption requests, or for
clearance of transactions. The use of borrowing by the Fund involves special risk considerations that
may not be associated with other funds having similar objectives and policies. Because substantially
all of the Fund’s assets fluctuate in value, while the interest obligation resulting from a borrowing will
be fixed by the terms of the Fund’s agreement with its lender, the NAV per share of the Fund will tend
to increase more when its portfolio securities increase in value and to decrease more when its portfolio
assets decrease in value than would otherwise be the case if the Fund did not borrow funds. In addition,
interest costs on borrowings may fluctuate with changing market rates of interest and may partially
offset or exceed the return earned on borrowed funds. Under adverse market conditions, the Fund might
have to sell portfolio securities to meet interest or principal payments at a time when fundamental
investment considerations would not favor such sales.

32

Cybersecurity Risk
The Fund, like all companies, may be susceptible to operational and information security risks.
Cybersecurity failures or breaches of the Fund or its service providers or the issuers of securities in
which the Fund invests have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially
resulting in financial losses, the inability of Fund shareholders to transact business, violations of
applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or
other compensation costs, and/or additional compliance costs. The Fund and their shareholders could
be negatively impacted as a result.

Fundamental and Non-Fundamental Investment Limitations
The Trust (on behalf of the Fund) has adopted the following restrictions as fundamental policies, which
may not be changed without the favorable “vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting
securities” of the Fund, as defined under the 1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act, the “vote of the holders of
a majority of the outstanding voting securities” means the vote of the holders of the lesser of (i) 67%
of the shares of the Fund represented at a meeting at which the holders of more than 50% of its outstanding
shares are represented; or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Fund.
The Fund may not:
1.
Issue senior securities, borrow money or pledge its assets, except that (i) the Fund may
borrow from banks in amounts not exceeding one-third of its total assets (including the amount
borrowed) less liabilities (other than borrowings); and (ii) this restriction shall not prohibit the
Fund from engaging in options transactions, reverse repurchase agreements, purchasing
securities on a when-issued, delayed delivery or forward delivery basis or short sales in
accordance with its objectives and strategies;
2.
Underwrite the securities of other issuers (except that the Fund may engage in
transactions involving the acquisition, disposition or resale of its portfolio securities under
circumstances where it may be considered to be an underwriter under the 1933 Act);
3.
Purchase or sell real estate or interests in real estate, unless acquired as a result of
ownership of securities (although the Fund may purchase and sell securities which are secured
by real estate and securities of companies that invest or deal in real estate, including REITs);
4.
Purchase or sell physical commodities or commodities contracts, unless acquired as a
result of ownership of securities or other instruments, and provided that this restriction does not
prevent the Fund from engaging in transactions involving currencies and futures contracts and
options thereon or investing in securities or other instruments that are secured by physical
commodities;
5.
Make loans of money (except for the lending of the Fund’s portfolio securities,
repurchase agreements and purchases of debt securities consistent with the investment policies
of the Fund); or
6.
Invest 25% or more of the Fund’s total assets in any particular industry or group of
industries, except that the Fund will concentrate its assets in industries represented by renewable
infrastructure companies. The foregoing does not apply to securities issued or guaranteed by
the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities.
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The following are the non-fundamental investment restrictions for the Fund. These restrictions can be
changed by the Board, but the change will only be effective after prior written notice is given to Fund
shareholders.
The Fund
•

Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in equity
securities of renewable infrastructure companies, which consists of companies deriving at least
50% of revenues from activities in power generation, transmission, distribution, storage and
ancillary or related services. Such companies invest in renewable generation or other net-zero
carbon and related services, and/or contribute to reducing Emissions. These include, but are not
limited to, those companies involved with owning solar, wind, hydro-electric, biomass, wasteto-energy and large-scale battery storage assets, as well as transmission and distribution assets
related to delivering electricity, including renewable energy.

•

Under normal circumstances, the Fund may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid
investments. An illiquid investments is any investment that the Fund reasonably expects cannot
be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the
sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment, as determined
pursuant to the provisions of Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act.

•

Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest at least 40% of its assets in foreign securities,
which the Adviser considers to be companies organized outside of the United States, whose
principal listing exchange is outside the United States, or who derive a significant portion of
their revenue or profits outside the United States.

•

The Fund will not invest more than 20% of its total assets in securities of companies located in
non-developed markets.

•

The Fund will not invest more than 12% of its total assets in the securities of any one issuer.

•

The Fund will not at any time take legal or management control of any issuer in which it invests.

•

The Fund will not invest in unlisted equity investments.

•

The will not write uncovered options.
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Percentage Limitations
The Fund’s compliance with its investment policies and limitations on certain investment percentages
will be determined immediately after and as a result of the Fund’s acquisition of such security or other
asset. Accordingly, except with respect to borrowing for leverage or investing in illiquid investments,
any subsequent change in values, net assets or other circumstances will not be considered when
determining whether an investment complies with the Fund’s investment policies and limitations on
certain investment percentages. If a percentage or rating restriction on investment or use of assets set
forth herein or in the Prospectus is adhered to at the time a transaction is effected, later changes in
percentage resulting from any cause other than actions by the Fund will not be considered a violation.
If at any time the Fund’s illiquid investments are greater than 15% of its net assets, the Fund will
determine how to remediate the excess illiquid investments in accordance with the 1940 Act and the
Fund’s policies and procedures. In addition, if a bankruptcy or other extraordinary event occurs
concerning a particular investment by the Fund, the Fund may receive stock, real estate or other
investments that the Fund would not, or could not, buy. If this happens, the Fund will sell such
investments as soon as practicable while trying to maximize the return to its shareholders. With respect
to borrowing, if at any time the Fund’s borrowings exceed one-third of its total assets (including the
amount borrowed) less liabilities (other than borrowings), such borrowings will be reduced within three
days, (not including Sundays and holidays) or such longer period as may be permitted by the 1940 Act,
to the extent necessary to comply with the one-third limitation.
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Management of the Fund
Board of Trustees
The management and affairs of the Fund are supervised by the Board. The Board consists of four
individuals. The Trustees are fiduciaries and are governed by the laws of the State of Delaware in this
regard. The Board establishes policies for the operation of the Fund and appoints the officers who
conduct the daily business of the Fund.
The Role of the Board
The Board provides oversight of the management and operations of the Trust. Like all mutual funds,
the day-to-day responsibility for the management and operation of the Trust is the responsibility of
various service providers to the Trust and its individual series, such as the Adviser; Quasar Distributors,
LLC, the Fund's principal underwriter (the “Distributor”); U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, doing
business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services, the Fund's administrator (the “Administrator”) and transfer
agent (the “Transfer Agent”); and U.S. Bank, N.A., the Fund's Custodian, each of whom are discussed
in greater detail in this SAI. The Board approves all significant agreements between the Trust and its
service providers, including the agreements with the Adviser, Distributor, Administrator, Custodian and
Transfer Agent. The Board has appointed various individuals of certain of these service providers as
officers of the Trust, with responsibility to monitor and report to the Board on the Trust’s day-to-day
operations. In conducting this oversight, the Board receives regular reports from these officers and
service providers regarding the Trust’s operations. The Board has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer
(“CCO”) who reports directly to the Board and who administers the Trust’s compliance program and
regularly reports to the Board as to compliance matters, including an annual compliance review. Some
of these reports are provided as part of formal Board Meetings, which are held four times per year, in
person, and such other times as the Board determines is necessary, and involve the Board’s review of
recent Trust operations. From time to time one or more members of the Board may also meet with Trust
officers in less formal settings, between formal Board Meetings to discuss various topics. In all cases,
however, the role of the Board and of any individual Trustee is one of oversight and not of management
of the day-to-day affairs of the Trust and its oversight role does not make the Board a guarantor of the
Trust’s investments, operations or activities.
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Board Leadership Structure
The Board has structured itself in a manner that it believes allows it to effectively perform its oversight
function. The Board is comprised of four Trustees that are not considered to be “interested persons,”
of the Trust, as defined by the 1940 Act (“Independent Trustees”) – Messrs. David A. Massart, Leonard
M. Rush, David M. Swanson and Mr. Robert J. Kern. Accordingly, 100% of the members of the Board
are Independent Trustees, who are Trustees that are not affiliated with any investment adviser to the
Trust or their respective affiliates or other service providers to the Trust or any Trust series. Prior to
July 6, 2020, Mr. Kern was considered an “interested person” of the Trust as defined in the 1940 Act
(“Interested Trustee”). He was considered an Interested Trustee by virtue of the fact that he had served as a
board member of Quasar Distributors, LLC, which acts as principal underwriter to many of the Trust’s
underlying funds and had been an Executive Vice President of the Administrator. The Board has established
three standing committees, an Audit Committee, a Nominating & Governance Committee and a
Valuation Committee, which are discussed in greater detail under “Board Committees” below. Each of
the Audit Committee and the Nominating & Governance Committee are comprised entirely of
Independent Trustees. The Independent Trustees have engaged independent counsel to advise them on
matters relating to their responsibilities in connection with the Trust, as well as the Fund.
The Independent Trustees have appointed Leonard M. Rush as Chairman. Prior to July 6, 2020, Mr. Kern
served as Chairman of the Trust and Mr. Rush served as lead Independent Trustee with responsibilities to
coordinate activities of the Independent Trustees, act as a liaison with the Trust’s service providers, officers,
legal counsel, and other Trustees between meetings, help to set Board meeting agendas, and serve as chair
during executive sessions of the Independent Trustees.
In accordance with the fund governance standards prescribed by the SEC under the 1940 Act, the
Independent Trustees on the Nominating & Governance Committee select and nominate all candidates
for Independent Trustee positions. Each Trustee was appointed to serve on the Board because of his
experience, qualifications, attributes and skills as set forth in the subsection “Trustee Qualifications”
below.
The Board reviews its structure regularly in light of the characteristics and circumstances of the Trust,
including: the affiliated or unaffiliated nature of each investment adviser; the number of funds that
comprise the Trust; the variety of asset classes that those funds reflect; the net assets of the Trust; the
committee structure of the Trust; and the independent distribution arrangements of each of the Trust’s
underlying funds.
The Board has determined that the appointment of a lead Independent Trustee and the function and
composition of the Audit Committee and the Nominating & Governance Committee are appropriate
means to address any potential conflicts of interest that may arise from the Chairman’s status as an
Interested Trustee. In addition, the inclusion of all Independent Trustees as members of the Audit
Committee and the Nominating & Governance Committee allows all such Trustees to participate in the
full range of the Board’s oversight duties, including oversight of risk management processes discussed
below. Given the composition of the Board and the function and composition of its various committees
as described above, the Trust has determined that the Board’s leadership structure is appropriate.
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Board Oversight of Risk Management
As part of its oversight function, the Board receives and reviews various risk management reports and
assessments and discusses these matters with appropriate management and other personnel, including
personnel of the Trust’s service providers. Because risk management is a broad concept comprised of
many elements (such as, for example, investment risk, issuer and counter-party risk, compliance risk,
operational risk, business continuity risk, etc.) the oversight of different types of risks is handled in
different ways. For example, the CCO regularly reports to the Board during Board Meetings and meets
in executive session with the Independent Trustees and their legal counsel to discuss compliance and
operational risks. In addition, Mr. Rush, the Independent Trustee designated as the Audit Committee’s
“audit committee financial expert” meets with the President, Treasurer and the Fund's independent
registered public accounting firm to discuss, among other things, the internal control structure of the
Fund's financial reporting function. The full Board receives reports from the investment advisers to the
underlying series as to investment risks.
Trustees and Officers
The Trustees and officers of the Trust are listed below with their addresses, present positions with the
Trust and principal occupations over at least the last five years.

Name, Address and
Year of Birth
Independent Trustees
Leonard M. Rush,
CPA
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1946
David A. Massart
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1967

Principal
Occupation(s) During
the Past Five Years

Other
Directorships
Held by Trustee
During the Past
Five Years

37

Retired, Chief Financial
Officer, Robert W.
Baird & Co.
Incorporated
(2000-2011).

Independent
Trustee, ETF
Series Solutions
(50 Portfolios)
(2012-Present).
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Co-Founder and Chief
Investment Strategist,
Next Generation Wealth
Management, Inc.
(2005-present).

Independent
Trustee, ETF
Series Solutions
(50 Portfolios)
(2012-Present).

Term of
Office and
Length of
Time
Served

Number of
Portfolios in
Trust
Overseen by
Trustee

Chairman,
Trustee and
Audit
Committee
Chairman

Indefinite
Term; Since
April 2011

Trustee and
Valuation
Committee
Chairman

Indefinite
Term; Since
April 2011

Position(s)
Held with
the Trust
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Term of
Office and
Position(s)
Length of
Held with
Name, Address and
Time
Year of Birth
the Trust
Served
David M. Swanson
Trustee and
Indefinite
615 E. Michigan St. Nominating & Term; Since
Governance
April 2011
Milwaukee, WI
Committee
53202
Chairman
Year of Birth: 1957

Robert J. Kern*
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1958
Officers
Brian. R. Wiedmeyer
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1973
Deborah Ward
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1966

Benjamin Eirich
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1981

Number of
Portfolios in
Trust
Overseen by
Trustee
37

Other
Directorships
Held by Trustee
Principal
Occupation(s) During During the Past
the Past Five Years
Five Years
Founder and Managing
Independent
Partner, SwanDog
Trustee, ALPS
Strategic Marketing,
Variable
LLC (2006-present);
Investment Trust
Executive Vice
(7 Portfolios)
President, Calamos
(2006-Present);
Investments
Independent
(2004-2006).
Trustee,
RiverNorth Funds
(3 Portfolios)
(2018-Present);
RiverNorth
Managed
Duration
Municipal Income

Trustee

Indefinite
Term; Since
January
2011
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Retired; Executive Vice
President, U.S. Bancorp
Fund Services, LLC
(1994-2018).

None

President and
Principal
Executive
Officer

Indefinite
Term, Since
November
2018

N/A

Vice President, U.S.
Bancorp Fund Services,
LLC (2005 -present).

N/A

Vice
President,
Chief
Compliance
Officer and
Anti-Money
Laundering
Officer
Treasurer,
Principal
Financial
Officer and
Vice President

Indefinite
Term; Since
April 2013

N/A

Senior Vice President,
U.S. Bancorp Fund
Services, LLC (2004present).

N/A

Indefinite
Term; Since
August 2019
(Treasurer);
Indefinite
Term; Since
November
2018 (Vice
President)

N/A

Assistant Vice
President, U.S. Bancorp
Fund Services, LLC
(2008-present).

N/A
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Position(s)
Held with
Name, Address and
Year of Birth
the Trust
Thomas Bausch,
Secretary
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1979

Douglas Schafer
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1970

Michael J. Cyr II,
CPA
615 E. Michigan St.
Milwaukee, WI
53202
Year of Birth: 1992

Term of
Office and
Length of
Time
Served
Indefinite
Term; Since
November
2017

Number of
Portfolios in
Trust
Overseen by
Trustee
N/A

Assistant
Indefinite
Treasurer and Term;
Vice President Since May
2016
(Assistant
Treasurer);
Since
November
2018 (Vice
President)
Assistant
Indefinite
Treasurer and Term; Since
Vice President August 2019

Principal
Occupation(s) During
the Past Five Years
Vice President, U.S.
Bancorp Fund Services,
LLC (2016-present);
Associate, Godfrey &
Kahn S.C. (2012-2016).

Other
Directorships
Held by Trustee
During the Past
Five Years
N/A

N/A

Assistant Vice
President, U.S. Bancorp
Fund Services, LLC
(2002-present).

N/A

N/A

Officer, U.S. Bancorp
Fund Services, LLC
(2013-present)

N/A

* Mr. Kern is an “interested person” of the Trust as defined by the 1940 Act by virtue of the fact that he was
a board member of Quasar Distributors, LLC.

Trustee Qualifications
The Board believes that each of the Trustees has the qualifications, experience, attributes and skills
appropriate to their continued service as Trustees of the Trust in light of the Trust’s business and structure.
The Trustees have substantial business and professional backgrounds that indicate they have the ability
to critically review, evaluate and assess information provided to them. Certain of these business and
professional experiences are set forth in detail in the table above. In addition, the Trustees have substantial
board experience and, in their service to the Trust, have gained substantial insight as to the operation
of the Trust. The Board annually conducts a “self-assessment” wherein the effectiveness of the Board
and the individual Trustees is reviewed.
In addition to the information provided in the table above, below is certain additional information
concerning each individual Trustee. The information provided below, and in the table above, is not allinclusive. Many of the Trustees’ qualifications to serve on the Board involve intangible elements, such
as intelligence, integrity, work ethic, the ability to work together, the ability to communicate effectively,
the ability to exercise judgment, the ability to ask incisive questions, and commitment to shareholder
interests.
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Mr. Kern’s trustee attributes include substantial industry experience, including his 35 years of service
with U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC (the fund accountant (“Fund Accountant”), Administrator and
Transfer Agent to the Trust) where he managed business development and the mutual fund transfer agent
operation including investor services, account services, legal compliance, document processing and
systems support. He also served as a board member of U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC. The Board
believes Mr. Kern’s experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in
combination with those of the other Trustees lead to the conclusion that he possesses the requisite skills
and attributes as a Trustee to carry out oversight responsibilities with respect to the Trust.
Mr. Massart’s trustee attributes include substantial industry experience, including over two decades
working with high net worth individuals, families, trusts and retirement accounts to make strategic and
tactical asset allocation decisions, evaluate and select investment managers and manage client
relationships. He is currently the Chief Investment Strategist and lead member of the investment
management committee of the SEC registered investment advisory firm he co-founded. Previously, he
served as Managing Director of Strong Private Client and as a Manager of Wells Fargo Investments,
LLC. The Board believes Mr. Massart’s experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual
basis and in combination with those of the other Trustees lead to the conclusion that he possesses the
requisite skills and attributes as a Trustee to carry out oversight responsibilities with respect to the Trust.
Mr. Rush’s trustee attributes include substantial industry experience, including serving in several
different senior executive roles at various global financial services firms. He most recently served as
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated and several other
affiliated entities and served as the Treasurer for Baird Funds. He also served as the Chief Financial
Officer for Fidelity Investments’ four broker-dealers and has substantial experience with mutual fund
and investment advisory organizations and related businesses, including Vice President and Head of
Compliance for Fidelity Investments, a Vice President at Credit Suisse First Boston, a Manager with
Goldman Sachs, & Co. and a Senior Manager with Deloitte & Touche. Mr. Rush has been determined
to qualify as an Audit Committee Financial Expert for the Trust. The Board believes Mr. Rush’s
experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in combination with those of
the other Trustees lead to the conclusion that he possesses the requisite skills and attributes as a Trustee
and as the lead Independent Trustee to carry out oversight responsibilities with respect to the Trust.
Mr. Swanson’s trustee attributes include substantial industry experience, including 38 years of senior
management and marketing experience with over 30 years dedicated to the financial services industry.
He is currently the Founder and Managing Principal of a marketing strategy boutique serving asset and
wealth management businesses. He has also served as Chief Operating Officer and Chief Marketing
Officer of Van Kampen Investments, President and Chief Executive Officer of Scudder, Stevens &
Clark, Canada, Ltd., Managing Director and Head of Global Investment Products at Morgan Stanley,
Director of Marketing for Morgan Stanley Mutual Funds, Director of Marketing for Kemper Funds,
and Executive Vice President and Head of Distribution for Calamos Investments. The Board believes
Mr. Swanson’s experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in combination
with those of the other Trustees lead to the conclusion that he possesses the requisite skills and attributes
as a Trustee to carry out oversight responsibilities with respect to the Trust.
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The discussion of the Trustees’ experience and qualifications is pursuant to SEC requirements, does not
constitute holding out the Board or any Trustee as having special expertise, and shall not impose any
greater responsibility or liability on any such Trustee or the Board by reason thereof.
Trustee and Management Ownership of Fund Shares
The following table shows the dollar range of Fund shares and shares in other portfolios of the Trust
beneficially owned by the Trustees as of the calendar year ended December 31, 2019.
Dollar Range of Fund Shares
Beneficially Owned (None, $1-$10,000,
$10,001-$50,000, $50,001-$100,000, Over
$100,000)
The Fund

Aggregate Dollar Range of Shares in
the Trust

Leonard M.
Rush
David A.
Massart
David M.
Swanson
Interested
Trustee

None

$10,001-50,000

None

None

None

$50,001-$100,000

Robert J. Kern

None

None

Name
Independent
Trustees

As of August 1, 2020, the Trustees and Officers of the Trust as a group owned less than 1% of the
outstanding shares of any Fund in the Trust.
Board Committees
Audit Committee. The Trust has an Audit Committee, which is comprised of the Independent Trustees.
The Audit Committee reviews financial statements and other audit-related matters for the Fund. The
Audit Committee also holds discussions with management and with the Fund's independent registered
public accounting firm concerning the scope of the audit and the auditor’s independence.
Nominating & Governance Committee. The Trust has a Nominating & Governance Committee, which
is comprised of the Independent Trustees. The Nominating & Governance Committee is responsible
for seeking and reviewing candidates for consideration as nominees for the position of trustee and meets
only as necessary.
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The Nominating & Governance Committee will consider nominees recommended by shareholders for
vacancies on the Board. Recommendations for consideration by the Nominating & Governance
Committee should be sent to the President of the Trust in writing together with the appropriate
biographical information concerning each such proposed nominee, and such recommendation must
comply with the notice provisions set forth in the Trust’s Bylaws. In general, to comply with such
procedures, such nominations, together with all required information, must be delivered to and received
by the President of the Trust at the principal executive office of the Trust not later than 120 days, and
no more than 150 days, prior to the shareholder meeting at which any such nominee would be voted
on. Shareholder recommendations for nominations to the Board will be accepted on an ongoing basis.
The Nominating & Governance Committee’s procedures with respect to reviewing shareholder
nominations will be disclosed as required by applicable securities laws.
Valuation Committee. The Trust has a Valuation Committee. The Valuation Committee is responsible
for the following: (1) monitoring the valuation of Fund securities and other investments; and (2) as
required, when the Board is not in session, determining the fair value of illiquid investments and other
holdings after consideration of all relevant factors, which determinations are reported to the Board. The
Valuation Committee is currently comprised of one or more Independent Trustees and the Trust’s
Chairman, President, Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers. The Valuation Committee meets as necessary
when a price for a portfolio security is not readily available. Any one of the Chairman, President,
Treasurer or Assistant Treasurers and an Independent Trustee must be present for the Valuation
Committee to meet. The primary members of the Valuation Committee are the President and Mr. Massart.
Trustee Compensation
Prior to January 1, 2020, the Trustees each received an annual retainer fee of $87,000 per calendar year, as
compensation for their service to the Trust. In addition, the Trustees each receive a per meeting fee of $5,000
for attendance at the four regularly scheduled quarterly meetings and one additional annual meeting, if
necessary. Each Trustee also received added compensation for each additional meeting attended of $2,500,
as well as reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Nominating & Governance Committee and the Valuation Committee each received
additional compensation of $7,000 per year and the lead Independent Trustee received additional
compensation of $10,000 per year. Effective January 1, 2020, the Trustees receive an annual retainer of
$95,000 per calendar year, the Chairman of the Audit Committee receives additional compensation of
$14,000, the Chairman of the Nominating & Governance and Valuation Committees receive additional
compensation of $8,000, and the lead Independent Trustee receives additional compensation of $12,500.
The Trustees also receive $5,000 for regularly scheduled meetings and $2,500 for additional meetings as
well as reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings. The following
table sets forth the estimated compensation to be received by the Trustees for the Fund's current fiscal
period ending November 30, 2020.
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Aggregate
Name of Person/ Compensation
Position
from the Fund1
Leonard M.
$1,889
Rush, Lead
Independent
Trustee and Audit
Committee
Chairman
David A.
$1,653
Massart,
Independent
Trustee and
Valuation
Committee
Chairman
David M.
$1,653
Swanson,
Independent
Trustee and
Nominating &
Governance
Committee
Chairman
Robert J. Kern,
$1,617
Interested Trustee
1
2

Pension or
Retirement
Benefits
Accrued as
Part of Fund
Expenses
None

Estimated
Annual
Benefits
Upon
Retirement
None

Total
Compensation
from the
Funds and the
Trust2
$69,916

None

None

$61,166

None

None

$61,166

None

None

$59,833

Trustee fees and expenses are allocated among the Funds and any other series comprising the Trust.
The Trust includes other series in addition to the Funds.

Control Persons and Principal Shareholders
A principal shareholder is any person who owns of record or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding
shares of the Fund. A control person is one who owns beneficially or through controlled companies
more than 25% of the voting securities of the Fund or acknowledges the existence of control. A
controlling person possesses the ability to control the outcome of matters submitted for shareholder vote
by the Fund. As of the date of this SAI, there were no principal shareholders or control persons.
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Investment Adviser
Investment advisory services are provided to the Funds by TCA Advisors, an SEC registered investment
adviser, pursuant to an investment advisory agreement (the “Advisory Agreement”). The Adviser specializes
in investing in essential asset companies across the energy value chain, including energy infrastructure. As
of June 30, 2020, the Adviser managed investments of approximately $7.53 billion, including the assets of
publicly traded closed-end funds, open-end funds and private accounts.
Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser provides the Fund with investment research and advice
and furnishes the Fund with an investment program consistent with the Fund’s investment objective
and policies, subject to the supervision of the Board. The Adviser maintains books and records with
respect to the securities transactions, and reports to the Board on the Fund's investments and performance.
The Board will have sole responsibility for selecting, evaluating the performance of, and replacing as
necessary any of the service providers to the Fund, including the Adviser.
The Adviser is indirectly controlled by Lovell Minnick Partners LLC (“Lovell Minnick”). The Adviser
is a wholly owned subsidiary of TortoiseEcofin Investments, LLC (“TortoiseEcofin”), a company that
owns essential asset and income-oriented investment advisers. A vehicle formed by Lovell Minnick and
owned by certain private funds sponsored by Lovell Minnick and a group of institutional co-investors
owns a controlling interest in TortoiseEcofin. Certain employees of the Adviser own an indirect minority
interest in the Adviser. Tortoise Index Solutions, LLC, an affiliate of the Adviser, serves as investment
adviser to three other series of the Trust.
After an initial two-year period, the Advisory Agreement will continue in effect from year to year, only
if such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by: (i) the Board or the vote of a majority
of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund; and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent
Trustees, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. The Advisory
Agreement is terminable without penalty by the Trust, on behalf of the Fund, upon 60 days’ written
notice to the Adviser, when authorized by either: (i) a majority vote of the Fund’s shareholders; or (ii)
by a vote of a majority of the Board. The Advisory Agreement is also terminable without penalty by the
Adviser upon 60 days’ written notice to the Trust. The Advisory Agreement will automatically terminate
in the event of its “assignment,” as defined under the 1940 Act. The Advisory Agreement provides that
the Adviser under such agreement shall not be liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for
any loss arising out of any investment or for any act or omission in the execution of portfolio transactions
for the Fund, except for willful misfeasance, bad faith or negligence in the performance of its duties,
or by reason of reckless disregard of its obligations and duties thereunder.
In consideration of the investment advisory services provided by the Adviser pursuant to the Advisory
Agreement, the Adviser is entitled to receive from the Fund a management fee, as specified in the
Prospectus. However, the Adviser may voluntarily agree to reduce the management fees payable to it
on a month-to-month basis, including additional fees above and beyond any contractual agreement the
Adviser may have to reduce management fees and/or reimburse Fund expenses.
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Fund Expenses. The Fund is responsible for its own operating expenses. Pursuant to an Operating
Expenses Limitation Agreement between the Adviser and the Trust, on behalf of the Fund, the Adviser
has agreed to reimburse the Fund for its operating expenses, as specified in the Prospectus. Expenses
reimbursed by the Adviser may be recouped by the Adviser for a period of 36 months following the
month during which such expense reimbursement was made, if such recoupment can be achieved without
exceeding the expense limit in effect at the time the reimbursement occurred and at the time of the
recoupment. The Operating Expenses Limitation Agreement will be in effect and cannot be terminated
through August 7, 2021.
The Fund has not yet commenced operations as of the date of this SAI; therefore, the Fund has not paid
any management fees to the Adviser.
Investment Sub-Adviser
The Adviser has engaged Ecofin Advisors Limited to serve as the Fund’s Sub-Adviser. Prior to July 8, 2020,
the Sub-Adviser was named Tortoise Advisors UK Limited. Pursuant to a sub-advisory agreement (the SubAdvisory Agreement”), the Sub-Adviser and their portfolio managers identified below are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Ecofin Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund’s portfolio, including the
purchase, retention, and sale of securities, subject to the supervision of the Adviser.
The Sub-Adviser is located at 15 Buckingham Street Burdett House, London, WC2N 6DU United Kingdom.
The Sub-Adviser is an SEC-registered investment adviser with assets over $462.7 million under management
as of June 30, 2020.
The Adviser compensates the Sub-Adviser on a quarterly basis out of the advisory fee that the Adviser
receives from the Fund. A discussion regarding the basis for the Board’s approval of the Advisory Agreement
and Sub-Advisory Agreement will be available in the Fund’s annual report to shareholders for the period
ended November 30, 2019.

License Agreement. Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser has consented to the Fund's use
on a non-exclusive, royalty-free basis, of the name “Ecofin” in its name. The Fund will have the right
to use the “Ecofin” name and the related logo so long as the Adviser or one of its approved affiliates
remains the Fund’s investment adviser. Other than with respect to this limited right, the Fund will have
no legal right to the “Ecofin” name. This right will remain in effect for so long as the Advisory Agreement
with the Adviser is in effect and will automatically terminate if the Advisory Agreement were to terminate
for any reason, including upon its assignment.
Portfolio Managers
Primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Fund's portfolio is the joint responsibility
of a team of portfolio managers consisting of Matthew Breidert and Michel Sznajer.
The following table provides information regarding other accounts, excluding the Funds, managed by
the portfolio managers, including information regarding the number of managed accounts that pay a
performance fee, as of June 30, 2020:
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Name of Manager

Account Category

# of
Accounts

Total Assets of
Accounts

# of Accounts
Paying a
Performance
Fee

Total Assets
of Accounts
Paying a
Performance
Fee

Registered investment
companies
Other pooled investment
vehicles
Other Accounts

0

$0

0

$0

4

$121,035,923

3

$97,108,735

0

$0

0

$0

Registered investment
companies
Other pooled investment
vehicles
Other Accounts

0

$0

0

$0

1

$23,927,188

0

$0

0

$0

0

$0

Matthew Breidert

Michel Sznajer

Conflicts of interest may arise because the portfolio managers generally will be carrying on substantial
investment activities for other clients in which the Fund will have no interest. The portfolio managers
must allocate time and investment ideas across multiple accounts. Trades may be executed for some
accounts that may adversely impact the value of securities held by other accounts. Conflicts of interest
arise from the fact that a related person of the Adviser has an interest in other accounts, similar to a
general partner interest in a partnership, for which the Adviser also serves as manager. Conflicts of
interest also arise from the fact that another related person of the Adviser serves as general partner of
other accounts the Adviser manages, and the affiliated general partner, as well as certain employees of
the Adviser, including certain of the portfolio managers, own an interest in the other accounts. The
affiliated general partner receives a carried interest in distributions by the other accounts. The portfolio
managers may have financial incentives to favor certain of such accounts over the Fund. Certain of the
funds and accounts managed by the portfolio managers may invest in the equity securities of a particular
company, while other funds and accounts managed by the portfolio managers may invest in the debt
securities of the same company. Proprietary accounts and other customer accounts managed by the
portfolio managers may compete with the Fund for specific trades. The portfolio managers may buy or
sell securities for the Fund that differs from securities bought or sold for other accounts and customers,
although their investment objectives and policies may be similar to the Fund’s.
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From time to time, the Adviser may seed proprietary accounts for the purpose of evaluating a new
investment strategy that eventually may be available to clients through one or more product structures.
Such accounts also may serve the purpose of establishing a performance record for the strategy. The
Adviser’s management of accounts with proprietary interests and nonproprietary client accounts may
create an incentive to favor the proprietary accounts in the allocation of investment opportunities, and
the timing and aggregation of investments. The Adviser’s proprietary seed accounts may include longshort strategies, and certain client strategies may permit short sales. A conflict of interest arises if a
security is sold short at the same time as a long position, and continuously short selling in a security
may adversely affect the stock price of the same security held long in client accounts. The Adviser has
adopted various policies to mitigate these conflicts, including policies that require the Adviser to avoid
favoring any account, and that prohibit client and proprietary accounts from engaging in short sales
with respect to individual stocks held long in client accounts. The Adviser’s policies also require
transactions in proprietary accounts to be placed after client transactions.
Situations may occur in which the Fund could be disadvantaged because of the investment activities
conducted by the Adviser for other accounts. Such situations may be based on, among other things,
legal or internal restrictions on the combined size of positions that may be taken for the Fund and the
other accounts, thereby limiting the size of the Fund’s position, or the difficulty of liquidating an
investment for the Fund and the other accounts where the market cannot absorb the sale of the combined
position. The Adviser and/or investment personnel may also have an incentive to make investments in
one fund, having the effect of increasing the value of a security in the same issuer held by another fund,
which in turn may result in an incentive fee being paid to the Adviser by that other fund.
The Fund’s investment opportunities may be limited by affiliations of the Adviser or its affiliates with
renewable infrastructure companies. In addition, to the extent the Adviser sources, contemplates,
structures, or makes private investments in renewable infrastructure companies, certain employees of
the Adviser may become aware of actions planned by such companies, such as acquisitions, that may
not be announced to the public. It is possible that the Fund could be precluded from investing in an
energy company about which the Adviser has material nonpublic information.
The Fund’s investment opportunities may be limited by investment opportunities in companies that the
Adviser is evaluating for other clients. To the extent a potential investment is appropriate for the Fund
and one or more other clients, the Adviser will need to fairly allocate that investment to the Fund or the
other client, or both, depending on its allocation procedures and applicable law related to combined or
joint transactions. There may arise an attractive limited investment opportunity suitable for the Fund in
which it cannot invest under the particular allocation method being used for that investment.
Under the 1940 Act, the Fund and their affiliated companies are generally precluded from co-investing
in negotiated private placements of securities. Except as permitted by law, the Adviser will not co-invest
its other clients’ assets in negotiated private transactions in which the Fund invests. To the extent the
Fund is not precluded from co-investing, the Adviser will allocate private investment opportunities
among its clients, including but not limited to the Fund and the Fund’s affiliated companies, based on
allocation policies that take into account several suitability factors, including the size of the investment
opportunity, the amount each client has available for investment and the client’s investment objectives.
These allocation policies may result in the allocation of investment opportunities to an affiliated company
rather than to the Fund.
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The Adviser and its principals, officers, employees, and affiliates may buy and sell securities or other
investments for their own accounts and may have actual or potential conflicts of interest with respect
to investments made on the Fund’s behalf. As a result of differing trading and investment strategies or
constraints, positions may be taken by principals, officers, employees, and affiliates of the Adviser that
are the same as, different from, or made at a different time than positions taken for the Fund. Further,
the Adviser may at some time in the future, manage other investment funds with the same investment
objectives as the Fund’s.
Portfolio managers do not receive any direct compensation from the Fund or any other of the managed
accounts reflected in the table above. Each of Messrs. Breidert and Sznajer has an employment-related
agreement with the Sub-Adviser and receives base compensation from the Sub-Adviser for the services
he provides. They are also eligible for an annual cash bonus based on the Sub-Adviser’s earnings and
the satisfaction of certain other conditions.
The following indicates the dollar range of Predecessor Fund shares beneficially owned by the portfolio
managers as of June 30, 2020:
Name of Portfolio
Manager

Dollar Range of Fund Shares Beneficially Owned
(None, $1-$10,000, $10,001-$50,000, $50,001-$100,000, $100,001 - $500,000,
$500,001-$1,000,000, Over $1,000,000)

Matthew Breidert

$500,001-$1,000,000

Michel Sznajer

None
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Service Providers
Pursuant to an administration agreement (the “Administration Agreement”) between the Trust and U.S.
Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (“Fund Services”),
615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 53202, Fund Services acts as the Administrator to
the Fund. Fund Services provides certain administrative services to the Fund, including, among other
responsibilities, coordinating the negotiation of contracts and fees with, and the monitoring of
performance and billing of, the Fund’s independent contractors and agents; preparation for signature
by an officer of the Trust of all documents required to be filed for compliance by the Trust and the Fund
with applicable laws and regulations; arranging for the computation of performance data, including
NAV per share and yield; responding to shareholder inquiries; and arranging for the maintenance of
books and records of the Fund, and providing, at its own expense, office facilities, equipment and
personnel necessary to carry out its duties. In this capacity, Fund Services does not have any
responsibility or authority for the investment management of the Fund, the determination of investment
policy, or for any matter pertaining to the distribution of Fund shares. Pursuant to the Administration
Agreement, for its services, Fund Services receives from each Fund a fee computed daily and payable
monthly based on the Fund’s average net assets, all subject to an annual minimum fee. Fund Services
also acts as Fund Accountant, Transfer Agent and dividend disbursing agent under separate agreements
with the Trust.
Because the Fund has not yet commenced operations, the Fund has not paid any fund administration or
fund accounting fees to the Fund Services.
Pursuant to a custody agreement between the Trust and the Fund, U.S. Bank, N.A., an affiliate of

Fund Services, serves as the Custodian of the Fund's assets (the “Custodian”). For its services, the
Custodian receives a monthly fee based on a percentage of the Fund’s assets, in addition to certain
transaction based fees, and is reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses. The Custodian’s address is
1555 North RiverCenter Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 53212. The Custodian does not
participate in decisions relating to the purchase and sale of securities by the Fund. U.S. Bank, N.A.
and its affiliates may participate in revenue sharing arrangements with service providers of mutual
funds in which the Fund may invest.
Legal Counsel
Stradley Ronon Stevens & Young, LLP, 2005 Market Street, Suite 2600, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
19103, serves as counsel to the Trust and as independent legal counsel to the Board.
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP, 220 South Sixth Street, Suite 1400, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402, serves as
the independent registered public accounting firm for the Fund. Its services include auditing the
Fund's financial statements and the performance of related compliance tax services. Ernst & Young,
Chartered Accountants served as the independent auditors for the Predecessor Fund.
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Distribution of Fund Shares
The Trust has entered into a distribution agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with Quasar
Distributors, LLC (the “Distributor”), 777 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202,
pursuant to which the Distributor acts as the Fund's principal underwriter, provides certain administration
services and promotes and arranges for the sale of the Fund’s shares on a best efforts basis. The offering
of the Fund's shares is continuous. The Distributor, Administrator, Fund Accountant and Custodian are
affiliated companies. The Distributor is a registered broker-dealer and member of the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”).
The Distribution Agreement has an initial term of up to two years and will continue in effect only if
such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by the Board or by vote of a majority of the
Fund’s outstanding voting securities and, in either case, by a majority of the Independent Trustees. The
Distribution Agreement is terminable without penalty by the Trust, on behalf of the Fund, on 60 days’
written notice when authorized either by a majority vote of the Fund’s shareholders or by vote of a
majority of the Board, including a majority of the Trustees who are not “interested persons” (as defined
under the 1940 Act) of the Trust, or by the Distributor on 60 days’ written notice, and will automatically
terminate in the event of its “assignment,” as defined in the 1940 Act.
The Fund has not yet commenced operations as of the date of this SAI; therefore, the Fund has not paid
any amounts to the Distributor.
Distribution (Rule 12b-1) Plan
The Fund has adopted a distribution plan for A Class shares pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act
(the “12b-1 Plan”). Under the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund pays a fee to the Distributor for distribution and/
or shareholder services (the “Distribution and Servicing Fee”) at an annual rate of 0.25% of the average
daily NAV of the A Class shares. The 12b-1 Plan provides that the Distributor may use all or any portion
of such Distribution and Servicing Fee to finance any activity that is principally intended to result in
the sale of Fund shares, subject to the terms of the 12b-1 Plan, or to provide certain shareholder services.
The 12b-1 Plan is intended to benefit the Fund by increasing their assets and thereby reducing the Fund's
expense ratio.
The Distribution and Servicing Fee is payable to the Distributor regardless of the distribution-related
expenses actually incurred. Because the Distribution and Servicing Fee is not directly tied to expenses,
the amount of distribution fees paid by A Class shares during any year may be more or less than actual
expenses incurred pursuant to the 12b-1 Plan. For this reason, this type of distribution fee arrangement
is characterized by the staff of the SEC as a “compensation” plan.
The Distributor may use the Distribution and Servicing Fee to pay for services covered by the 12b-1
Plan including, but not limited to, advertising; compensating underwriters, dealers and selling personnel
engaged in the distribution of Fund shares; reimbursing for up-front sales commissions; the printing
and mailing of prospectuses, statements of additional information and reports; the printing and mailing
of sales literature pertaining to the Fund; and obtaining whatever information, analyses and reports with
respect to marketing and promotional activities that the Fund may, from time to time, deem advisable.
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The 12b-1 Plan provides that it will continue from year to year upon approval by the majority vote of
the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees cast in person at a meeting called for that
purpose, provided that such trustees have made a determination that there is a reasonable likelihood that
the 12b-1 Plan will benefit the Fund and its shareholders. It is also required that the Independent Trustees,
select and nominate all other trustees who are not “interested persons” of the Fund. The 12b-1 Plan and
any related agreements may not be amended to materially increase the amounts to be spent for distribution
expenses without approval of shareholders holding a majority of the Fund shares outstanding. All
material amendments to the 12b-1 Plan or any related agreements must be approved by a vote of a
majority of the Board and the Independent Trustees, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose
of voting on any such amendment.
The 12b-1 Plan requires that the Distributor provide to the Board, at least quarterly, a written report on
the amounts and purpose of any payment made under the 12b-1 Plan. The Distributor is also required
to furnish the Board with such other information as may reasonably be requested in order to enable the
Board to make an informed determination of whether the 12b-1 Plan should be continued.
As noted above, the 12b-1 Plan provides for the ability to use Fund assets to pay financial intermediaries
(including those that sponsor mutual fund supermarkets and affiliates of the Adviser), plan
administrators, and other service providers to finance any activity that is principally intended to result
in the sale of Fund shares (distribution services) and for the provision of personal services to
shareholders. The payments made by the Fund to financial intermediaries are based primarily on the
dollar amount of assets invested in the Fund through the financial intermediaries. These financial
intermediaries may pay a portion of the payments that they receive from the Fund to their investment
professionals. In addition to the ongoing asset-based fees paid to these financial intermediaries under
the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund may, from time to time, make payments under the 12b-1 Plan that help defray
the expenses incurred by these intermediaries for conducting training and educational meetings about
various aspects of the Fund for their employees. In addition, the Fund may make payments under the
12b-1 Plan for exhibition space and otherwise help defray the expenses these financial intermediaries
incur in hosting client seminars where the Fund is discussed.
In addition, the Fund may participate in various “fund supermarkets” in which a mutual fund supermarket
sponsor (usually a broker-dealer) offers many mutual funds to the sponsor’s customers without charging
the customers a sales charge. In connection with its participation in such platforms and with an
agreement in place with the Distributor or its affiliates, the Distributor may use all or a portion of the
Distribution and Servicing Fee to pay one or more supermarket sponsors a negotiated fee for distributing
the Fund’s shares. In addition, in its discretion, the Adviser may pay additional fees to such
intermediaries from its own assets (see “Marketing Support Payments”).
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Marketing Support Payments
The Adviser, out of its own profits and resources and without additional cost to the Fund or their
shareholders, may provide additional cash payments or other compensation (“Support Payments”) to
certain financial intermediaries who sell and/or promote the sale of shares of the Fund, including an
affiliated broker-dealer. Subject to and in accordance with the terms of the Fund’s prospectus and the
Distribution and/or Service Plan (as applicable) adopted by resolution of the Trust's Board, and
specifically the "Payments to Financial Intermediaries" section of the Fund's prospectus, the Adviser
may make Support Payments to such financial intermediaries related to marketing/distribution support,
shareholder servicing, sales meetings, inclusion on sales lists (including a preferred or select sales list)
and participation in sales programs.
The Adviser has agreements with several firms it advises to pay such Support Payments, which are
calculated in four ways: (1) as a percentage of net sales; (2) as a percentage of net assets; (3) as a flat
fee; and, (4) in the case of payments to an affiliated broker-dealer, an amount equal to productionbased compensation due to the broker-dealer’s representatives, and may also include reimbursement
of out of pocket expenses incurred by the broker-dealer or its representatives.
The possibility of receiving, or the receipt of, such Support Payments as described above may provide
such intermediaries and/or their salespersons with an incentive to favor sales of shares of the Fund, and
other mutual funds whose affiliates make similar compensation available, over sales of shares of mutual
funds (or non-mutual fund investments) that do not make such payments. Investors may wish to take
such payment arrangements into account when considering and evaluating any recommendations
relating to mutual funds.
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Portfolio Transactions and Brokerage
The Adviser is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities for the Fund, broker-dealer selection,
and negotiation of brokerage commission rates. The Adviser’s primary consideration in effecting a
security transaction will be to obtain the best execution. In selecting a broker-dealer to execute each
particular transaction, the Adviser will initially consider their ability to execute transactions at the most
favorable prices and lowest overall execution costs, while also taking into consideration other relevant
factors, such as, the reliability, integrity and financial condition of the broker-dealer, the size of and
difficulty in executing the order, and the quality of execution and custodial services. The determinative
factor is not necessarily the lowest possible transaction cost, but whether the transaction represents the
best qualitative execution for the client account. Because the Adviser considers all of the factors
described above and not just commission cost, commission rates on some transactions may be higher
than the lowest available commission rate charged by another broker-dealer for executing the same
transaction. The Adviser does not utilize any third party “soft dollar” arrangements. The Adviser
receives unsolicited research from some of the brokers with whom it places trades on behalf of clients,
however, the Adviser has no arrangements or understandings with such brokers regarding receipt of
research in return for commissions. While the Adviser may review certain of the research received, the
Adviser does not consider this research when selecting brokers to execute client transactions. The
Adviser does not put a specific value on unsolicited research, nor does the Adviser attempt to estimate
and allocate the relative costs or benefits among its clients. Research services may include reports on
renewable infrastructure companies, the market, the economy and other general widely distributed
research, and may be used by the Adviser in servicing all funds and accounts managed by the Adviser,
including the Fund. The price to the Fund in any transaction may be less favorable than that available
from another broker-dealer if the difference is reasonably justified by other aspects of the execution
services offered.
The Fund may, from time to time, enter into arrangements with placement agents in connection with
direct placement transactions. In evaluating placement agent proposals, the Adviser will consider each
broker’s access to issuers of renewable infrastructure company securities and experience in the renewable
infrastructure market, particularly the direct placement market. In addition to these factors, the Adviser
will consider whether the proposed services are customary, whether the proposed fee schedules are
within the range of customary rates, whether any proposal would obligate us to enter into transactions
involving a minimum fee, dollar amount or volume of securities, or into any transaction whatsoever,
and other terms such as indemnification provisions.
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The Adviser shall not be deemed to have acted unlawfully or to have breached any duty solely by reason
of its having caused the Fund to pay a broker or dealer that provides brokerage and research services
to the Adviser an amount of commission for effecting an investment transaction in excess of the amount
of commission another broker or dealer would have charged for effecting that transaction, if the Adviser
determines in good faith that such amount of commission was reasonable in relation to the value of the
brokerage and research services provided by such broker or dealer, viewed in terms of either that
particular transaction or the Adviser’s overall responsibilities with respect to the Fund and to other
clients of the Adviser as to which the Adviser exercises investment discretion. The Adviser is further
authorized to allocate the orders placed by it on behalf of the Fund to such brokers and dealers who also
provide research or statistical material or other services to us, the Adviser or to any sub-adviser. Such
allocation shall be in such amounts and proportions as the Adviser shall determine and the Adviser will
report on said allocations regularly to the Board indicating the brokers to whom such allocations have
been made and the basis therefor.
Portfolio transactions may be placed with broker-dealers who sell shares of the Fund subject to rules
adopted by FINRA and the SEC. Portfolio transactions may also be placed with broker-dealers in which
the Adviser has invested on behalf of the Fund and/or client accounts.
The Fund has not commenced operations as of the date of this SAI; therefore, the Fund has not paid
any brokerage commissions.

Portfolio Turnover
Although the Fund generally will not invest for short-term trading purposes, portfolio securities may
be sold without regard to the length of time they have been held when, in the opinion of the Adviser,
investment considerations or redemption requests warrant such action. Portfolio turnover rate is
calculated by dividing (1) the lesser of purchases or sales of portfolio securities for the fiscal year by
(2) the monthly average of the value of portfolio securities owned during the fiscal year. A 100%
turnover rate would occur if all the securities in the Fund’s portfolio, with the exception of securities
whose maturities at the time of acquisition were one year or less, were sold and either repurchased or
replaced within one year. A high rate of portfolio turnover (100% or more) generally leads to aboveaverage transaction costs and could generate capital gains that must be distributed to shareholders as
short-term capital gains taxed at ordinary income rates (currently as high as 37%). To the extent that
the Fund experiences an increase in brokerage commissions due to a higher portfolio turnover rate, the
performance of the Fund could be negatively impacted by the increased expenses incurred and may
result in a greater number of taxable transactions.

Code of Ethics
The Trust, the Adviser and the Distributor have each adopted Codes of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 of the
1940 Act. These codes permit, subject to certain conditions, personnel of the Trust, Adviser and
Distributor to invest in securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund.
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Proxy Voting Procedures
The Board has adopted proxy voting policies and procedures (“Proxy Policies”) wherein the Trust has
delegated to the Adviser the responsibility for voting proxies relating to portfolio securities held by the
Fund as part of the Adviser’s investment advisory services, subject to the supervision and oversight of
the Board. Notwithstanding this delegation of responsibilities, however, the Fund retains the right to
vote proxies relating to its portfolio securities. The fundamental purpose of the Proxy Policies is to
ensure that each vote will be in a manner that reflects the best interest of the Fund and its shareholders,
taking into account the value of the Fund’s investments.
The actual voting records relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended
June 30 is available without charge, upon request, by calling toll-free, (800) SEC-0330 or by accessing
the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
The Adviser’s Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures
The Adviser will vote proxies on behalf of the Fund in a manner that it believes is consistent with the
best interests of the Fund and its shareholders. Absent special circumstances, all proxies will be voted
consistent with guidelines established and described in the Adviser’s Proxy Voting Policies and
Procedures. A summary of the Adviser’s Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures is as follows:
•

•

•

•

•

The Investment Committee (or an employee of the Adviser designated by the Investment
Committee) will be responsible for all decisions regarding proxy voting, including monitoring
corporate actions, making voting decisions in the best interest of the Fund, and ensuring that
proxies are submitted in a timely manner.
The Investment Committee will generally vote proxies according to the Adviser’s then-current
Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures, which it believes are reasonably designed to ensure that
proxies are voted in the best interests of its clients. In pursuing this policy, proxies should be
voted in a manner that is intended to maximize value to the client.
Although the Adviser’s Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures are to be followed as a general
policy, certain issues will be considered on a case-by-case basis based on the relevant facts and
circumstances. Since corporate governance issues are diverse and continually evolving, the
Adviser shall devote an appropriate amount of time and resources to monitor these changes.
In situations where there may be a conflict of interest in the voting of proxies between the
interests of the Fund and its shareholders and those of the Adviser due to business or personal
relationships that the Adviser maintains with persons having an interest in the outcome of certain
votes, the Adviser may (i) disclose the potential conflict to the Fund and obtain consent; or (ii)
establish an ethical wall or other informational barriers between the person(s) that are involved
in the conflict and the persons at the Adviser making the voting decisions.
All proxies will be voted in accordance with any applicable investment restrictions of the Fund
and, to the extent applicable, any resolutions or other instructions approved by the Board.
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Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program
The Trust has established an Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program (the “Program”) as required
by the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (“USA PATRIOT Act”). To ensure compliance with this law, the Trust’s
Program provides for the development of internal practices, procedures and controls, designation of
anti-money laundering compliance officers, an ongoing training program and an independent audit
function to determine the effectiveness of the Program. Ms. Deborah Ward has been designated as the
Trust’s Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer.
Procedures to implement the Program include, but are not limited to: determining that the Distributor
and the Transfer Agent have established proper anti-money laundering procedures; reporting suspicious
and/or fraudulent activity; checking shareholder names against designated government lists, including
Office of Foreign Asset Control (“OFAC”), and a complete and thorough review of all new opening
account applications. The Fund will not transact business with any person or legal entity whose identity
and beneficial owners, if applicable, cannot be adequately verified under the provisions of the USA
PATRIOT Act.
As a result of the Program, the Fund may be required to “freeze” the account of a shareholder if the
shareholder appears to be involved in suspicious activity or if certain account information matches
information on government lists of known terrorists or other suspicious persons, or the Fund may be
required to transfer the account or proceeds of the account to a governmental agency.

Portfolio Holdings Information
The Trust, on behalf of the Fund, has adopted portfolio holdings disclosure policies (“Portfolio Holdings
Policies”) that govern the timing and circumstances of disclosure of portfolio holdings of the Fund. The
Portfolio Holdings Policies are applicable to service providers of the Fund, including the Adviser.
Information about the Fund’s portfolio holdings will not be distributed to any third party except in
accordance with these Portfolio Holdings Policies. The Board considered the circumstances under
which the Fund’s portfolio holdings may be disclosed under the Portfolio Holdings Policies. The Board
also considered actual and potential material conflicts that could arise in such circumstances between
the interests of the Fund’s shareholders and the interests of the Adviser, Distributor or any other affiliated
person of the Fund. After due consideration, the Board determined that the Fund has a legitimate business
purpose for disclosing portfolio holdings to persons described in the Portfolio Holdings Policies. The
Board also authorized its CCO to consider and authorize dissemination of portfolio holdings information
to additional parties, after considering the best interests of the Fund’s shareholders and potential conflicts
of interest in making such disclosures.
The Board exercises continuing oversight of the disclosure of the Fund's portfolio holdings by (1)
overseeing the implementation and enforcement of the Portfolio Holdings Policies, codes of ethics and
other relevant policies of the Fund and their service providers by the CCO, (2) by considering reports
and recommendations by the CCO concerning any material compliance matters (as defined in Rule
38a-1 under the 1940 Act), and (3) by considering whether to approve any amendment to these Portfolio
Holdings Policies. The Board reserves the right to amend the Portfolio Holdings Policies at any time
without prior notice in its sole discretion.
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Disclosure of the Fund’s complete holdings is required to be made quarterly within 60 days of the end
of each fiscal quarter, in the annual and semi-annual reports to Fund shareholders, and in the quarterly
holdings report on Form N-Q (or any successor form). These reports will be made available, free of
charge, on the EDGAR database on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Fund posts sector pie charts
for its full portfolio on the website monthly and via its fact sheet quarterly generally within 10 calendar
days after the month-end or calendar quarter end, as applicable. The Fund posts top 10 holdings monthly
on their website and via their fact sheets quarterly, generally within 10 calendar days after month-end
or calendar quarter end, as applicable. The Fund also posts full portfolio holdings on its website as soon
as practicable after the end of each calendar quarter.
In the event of a conflict between the interests of the Fund and its shareholders and the interests of the
Adviser or an affiliated person of the Adviser under the Portfolio Holdings Policy, the CCO of the
Adviser, in consultation with the Trust’s CCO, shall make a determination in the best interests of the
Fund and its shareholders, and shall report such determination to the Board at the end of the quarter in
which such determination was made. Any employee of the Adviser who suspects a breach of this
obligation must report the matter immediately to the Adviser’s CCO or to his or her supervisor.
In addition, material non-public holdings information may be provided without lag as part of the normal
investment activities of the Fund to each of the following entities which, by explicit agreement or by
virtue of their respective duties to the Fund, are required to maintain the confidentiality of the information
disclosed: the Administrator; the Adviser; the Fund's Accountant; the Custodian; the Transfer Agent;
the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm; counsel to the Fund or the Board (current
parties are identified in this SAI); broker-dealers (in connection with the purchase or sale of securities
or requests for price quotations or bids on one or more securities); lending agents; and regulatory
authorities. Portfolio holdings information not publicly available with the SEC may only be provided
to additional third parties in accordance with the Portfolio Holdings Policies, when the Fund has a
legitimate business purpose, and the third party recipient is subject to a confidentiality agreement.
Portfolio holdings information may be separately provided to any person, including rating and ranking
organizations such as Lipper and Morningstar, at the same time that it is filed with the SEC or one day
after it is first published on the Fund’s website. Such portfolio holdings disclosure must be approved
under the Portfolio Holdings Policies by the Trust’s CCO.
In no event shall the Adviser, its affiliates or employees, or the Fund receive any direct or indirect
compensation in connection with the disclosure of information about the Fund’s portfolio holdings.
There can be no assurance that the Portfolio Holdings Policies and these procedures will protect the
Fund from potential misuse of that information by individuals or entities to which it is disclosed.

Determination of Net Asset Value
The NAV of the Fund’s shares will fluctuate and is determined by the Fund Accountant as of the close
of the regular trading session on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) (generally 4:00 p.m.,
Eastern time) each business day. The NYSE annually announces the days on which it will not be open
for trading. The most recent announcement indicates that it will not be open on the following days:
New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents’ Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. However, the NYSE may close
on days not included in that announcement.
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The NAV of each class of shares is computed by determining the “Net Assets” of each class and dividing
by the total number of shares outstanding of each class at such time. The Net Assets of each class are
calculated by (1) taking the value of all assets, less liabilities, held by the Fund and allocating such value
to each share class based on the number of shares outstanding in each share class; (2) subtracting “Class
Expenses” from each respective share class as defined and approved by the Board and a majority of the
Independent Trustees under the Trust’s Rule 18f-3 Multiple-Class Plan; and (3) subtracting from each
share class non-class specific “Other Expenses” that are allocated to each class based on the net asset
value of each class relative to the net asset value of the Fund or the Trust, as the case may be.
Net Assets Per Share Class
Shares Outstanding Per Share Class

=

Net Asset Value Per Share Class

The Fund’s assets are generally valued at their market price on the valuation date and are based on
valuations provided by independent pricing services consistent with the Trust’s valuation procedures.
When market prices are not readily available, a security or other asset is valued at its fair value as
determined under fair value pricing procedures approved by the Board.
Each security owned by the Fund that is listed on a securities exchange is valued at its last sale price
on that exchange on the date as of which assets are valued. Where the security is listed on more than
one exchange, the Fund will use the price of the exchange that the Fund generally considers to be the
principal exchange on which the stock is traded. If no sale is reported, the security is valued at the mean
between the last available bid and asked price.
Portfolio securities primarily traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ”) shall be valued using
the NASDAQ Official Closing Price (“NOCP”), which may not necessarily represent the last sale price.
If the NOCP is not available, such securities shall be valued at the last sale price on the day of valuation,
or if there has been no sale on such day, at the mean between the bid and asked prices. OTC securities
that are not traded on NASDAQ shall be valued at the most recent trade price.
Fixed income securities are valued at the mean of the bid and asked prices as determined by an
independent pricing service, taking into consideration recent transactions, yield, liquidity, risk, credit
quality, coupon, maturity, type of issue and any other factors or market data the pricing service deems
relevant. Participation Notes are valued at the mean between bid and ask prices. Investments in other
investment companies, including money market funds, are valued at their NAV per share. Fixed income
securities with remaining maturities of 60 days or less are valued at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value.
Foreign securities are generally valued in the same manner as the securities described above. Foreign
securities are priced in the local currencies as of the close of their primary exchange or market or as of the
close of trading on the NYSE, whichever is earlier. Foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the
exchange rate as provided by a pricing service as of the close of trading on the NYSE.
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Exchange traded options are generally valued at the composite price, using the National Best Bid and
Offer quotes (“NBBO”). NBBO consists of the highest bid price and lowest ask price across any of the
exchanges on which an option is quoted, thus providing a view across the entire U.S. options marketplace.
Specifically, composite pricing looks at the last trades on the exchanges where the options are traded.
If there are no trades for the option on a given business day composite option pricing calculates the
mean of the highest bid price and lowest ask price across the exchanges where the option is traded.
All other assets of the Fund are valued in such manner as the Board in good faith deems appropriate to
reflect their fair value.

Purchase and Redemption of Fund Shares
Purchase of Shares
Shares of the Fund are sold in a continuous offering and may be purchased on any business day from
the Fund. The Fund may also authorize one or more financial intermediaries to accept purchase orders
(an “Authorized Intermediary”). Authorized Intermediaries are authorized to designate other Authorized
Intermediaries to accept orders on the Fund’s behalf. An order is deemed to be received when the Fund
or an Authorized Intermediary accepts the order.
Orders received by the Fund or an Authorized Intermediary by the close of trading on the NYSE
(generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern time) on a business day will be processed at the applicable price determined
as of the close of trading on the NYSE on that day. Otherwise, the orders will be processed at the next
determined NAV.
Orders received by financial intermediaries that are not Authorized Intermediaries, will be processed
at the applicable price next calculated after the Transfer Agent receives the order from the financial
intermediary.
Purchase Requests Must be Received in Good Order
“Good order” means that your purchase request includes:
•
•
•
•
•

The name of the Fund you are investing in;
The dollar amount of shares to be purchased;
The class of shares to be purchased;
Your Account Application or investment stub; and
A check payable to the name of the Fund or a wire transfer received by the Fund.

Shares of the Fund have not been registered for sale outside of the United States. The Fund generally
does not sell shares to investors residing outside the United States, even if they are United States citizens
or lawful permanent residents, except to investors with United States military APO or FPO addresses
or in certain other circumstances where the Chief Compliance Officer and Anti-Money Laundering
Officer for the Trust both conclude that such sale is appropriate and is not in contravention of United
States law.
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Redemption of Shares
In general, orders to sell or “redeem” shares may be placed directly with the Fund or through a financial
intermediary. You may redeem all or part of your investment in the Fund’s shares on any business day
that the Fund calculates its NAV. It is the financial intermediary’s responsibility to transmit orders
timely to the Fund.
Redemption Requests Must be Received in Good Order
Your share price will be based on the next NAV per share calculated after the Transfer Agent or an
Authorized Intermediary receives your redemption request in good order. A redemption request will
be deemed in “good order” if it includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The shareholder’s name;
The name of the Fund;
The account number;
The share or dollar amount to be redeemed;
The class of shares to be redeemed; and
Signatures by all shareholders on the account (with signature(s) guaranteed, if applicable).

Unless you instruct the Transfer Agent otherwise, redemption proceeds will be sent to the address of
record. The Fund will not be responsible for interest lost on redemption amounts due to lost or misdirected
mail.
A signature guarantee of each owner is required in the following situations:
•
•
•
•

If ownership is changed on your account;
When redemption proceeds are payable or sent to any person, address or bank account not on
record;
When a redemption is received by the Transfer Agent and the account address has changed
within the last 15 calendar days; or
For all redemptions in excess of $100,000 from any shareholder account.

Non-financial transactions, including establishing or modifying certain services on an account, may
require a signature guarantee, signature verification from a Signature Validation Program member, or
other acceptable form of authentication from a financial institution source. Signature guarantees, from
either a Medallion program member or a non-Medallion program member, can be obtained from banks
and securities dealers, but not from a notary public.
The Fund may elect in the future to limit eligible signature guarantors to institutions that are members
of a signature guarantee program. The Fund and the Transfer Agent reserve the right to amend these
standards at any time without notice.
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Redemption-In-Kind
Under normal circumstances, the Fund does not intend to redeem shares in any form except cash. The
Trust, however, has filed a notice of election under Rule 18f-1 of the 1940 Act that allows the Fund to
redeem in-kind redemption requests during any 90-day period in excess of the lesser of $250,000 or
1% of the net assets of the Fund, valued at the beginning of such period. If the Fund pays your redemption
proceeds by a distribution of securities, you could incur brokerage or other charges in converting the
securities to cash, and will bear any market risks associated with such securities until they are converted
into cash.
Cancellations and Modifications
The Fund will not accept a request to cancel or modify a written transaction once processing has begun.

62

Tax Matters
The following discussion is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations affecting the
Fund and its shareholders. The discussion reflects applicable U.S. federal income tax laws of the U.S.
as of the date of this SAI, which tax laws may be changed or subject to new interpretations by the courts
or the IRS, possibly with retroactive effect. No attempt is made to present a detailed explanation of all
U.S. federal income, estate or gift, or state, local or foreign tax concerns affecting the Fund and its
shareholders (including shareholders owning large positions in the Fund). The discussion set forth
herein does not constitute tax advice. Investors are urged to consult their own tax advisers to determine
the tax consequences to them of investing in the Fund.
In addition, no attempt is made to address tax concerns applicable to an investor with a special tax status,
such as a financial institution, “real estate investment trust,” insurance company, RIC, individual
retirement account, other tax-exempt entity, dealer in securities or foreign investor. Furthermore, this
discussion does not reflect possible application of the alternative minimum tax. Unless otherwise noted,
this discussion assumes the Fund's stock and debt securities are held by U.S. persons and that such
shares and securities are held as capital assets.
A U.S. holder is a beneficial owner that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:
•

A citizen or individual resident of the United States (including certain former citizens
and former long-term residents);

•

A corporation or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state
thereof or the District of Columbia;

•

An estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of
its source; or

•

A trust with respect to which a court within the United States is able to exercise primary
supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. shareholders have the authority
to control all of its substantial decisions or the trust has made a valid election in effect
under applicable Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

A “Foreign holder” is a beneficial owner of shares of the Fund that is an individual, corporation, trust,
or estate and is not a U.S. holder. If a partnership (including any entity treated as a partnership for U.S.
federal income tax purposes) holds shares of the Fund, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership
will generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership.
Each series of the Trust is treated as a separate entity for federal income tax purposes. The Fund, series
of the Trust, intends to qualify and elect to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code, provided
it complies with all applicable requirements regarding the source of its income, diversification of its
assets and timing of distributions. If for any taxable year the Fund fails to qualify for the special federal
income tax treatment afforded to RICs, all of its taxable income will be subject to federal income tax
at regular corporate rates (without any deduction for distributions to the Fund’s shareholders) and its
performance and income available for distribution will be reduced.
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As long as the Fund meets certain requirements that govern the Fund's source of income, diversification
of assets and distribution of earnings to shareholders, the Fund will not be subject to U.S. federal income
tax on income distributed (or treated as distributed, as described below) to its shareholders. With respect
to the source of income requirement, the Fund must derive in each taxable year at least 90% of its gross
income (including tax-exempt interest) from (i) dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain
securities loans, and gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies,
or other income (including but not limited to gains from options, futures and forward contracts) derived
with respect to its business of investing in such shares, securities or currencies and (ii) net income
derived from interests in qualified publicly traded partnerships. A qualified publicly traded partnership
is generally defined as a publicly traded partnership under Section 7704 of the Code, but does not include
a publicly traded partnership if 90% or more of its income is described in (i) above.
With respect to the diversification of assets requirement, the Fund must diversify its holdings so that,
at the end of each quarter of each taxable year, (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets is
represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, the securities of other RICs and other
securities, with such other securities limited for purposes of such calculation, in respect of any one
issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund’s total assets and not more than 10%
of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's
total assets is invested in the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. government securities or the
securities of other RICs), the securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of any two or more
issuers that the Fund controls and that are determined to be engaged in the same, similar or related trades
or businesses, or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships.
The Fund’s policy is to distribute to its shareholders substantially all of its net investment company
taxable income and any net realized long-term capital gains for each fiscal year in a manner that complies
with the distribution requirements of the Code, so that the Fund will not be subject to any federal income
or excise taxes based on net income. However, the Fund can give no assurances that its anticipated
distributions will be sufficient to eliminate all taxes. If the Fund does not qualify as a regulated investment
company, it would be taxed as a corporation and, in such case, it would be more beneficial for a
shareholder to directly own the Fund’s underlying investments rather than indirectly owning the
underlying investments through the Fund. If the Fund fails to distribute (or be deemed to have distributed)
by December 31 of each calendar year (i) at least 98% of its ordinary income for such year, (ii) at least
98.2% of the excess of its realized capital gains over its realized capital losses for the 12-month period
ending on October 31 during such year and (iii) any amounts from the prior calendar year that were not
distributed and on which the Fund paid no federal income tax, the Fund will be subject to a 4% excise
tax.
Net investment income generally consists of interest, dividends, and short-term capital gains, less
expenses. Net realized capital gains for a fiscal period are computed by taking into account any capital
loss carry forward of the Fund.
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Distributions of net investment income are generally taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. For
individual shareholders, a portion of the distributions paid by the Fund may consist of qualified dividends
eligible for taxation at the rate applicable to long-term capital gains to the extent the Fund designates
the amount distributed as a qualified dividend and the shareholder meets certain holding period
requirements with respect to his or her Fund shares. In the case of corporate shareholders, a portion of
the distributions may qualify for the intercorporate dividends-received deduction to the extent the Fund
designates the amount distributed as eligible for deduction and the shareholder meets certain holding
period requirements with respect to its Fund shares. The aggregate amount so designated to either
individuals or corporate shareholders cannot, however, exceed the aggregate amount of such dividends
received by the Fund for its taxable year. In view of the Fund’s investment policies, it is expected that
part (but not all) of the distributions by the Fund may be eligible for the qualified dividend income
treatment for individual shareholders and the dividends-received deduction for corporate shareholders.
Any distributions to you in excess of the Fund’s investment company taxable income and net capital
gains will be treated by you, first, as a tax-deferred return of capital, which is applied against and will
reduce the adjusted tax basis of your shares and, after such adjusted tax basis is reduced to zero, will
generally constitute capital gains.
Any long-term capital gain distributions are taxable to shareholders as long-term capital gains regardless
of the length of time shares have been held. Net capital gains distributions are not eligible for the
qualified dividend income treatment or the dividends-received deduction referred to in the previous
paragraph.
Any distributions to you in excess of the Fund’s investment company taxable income and net capital
gains will be treated by you, first, as a tax-deferred return of capital, which is applied against and will
reduce the adjusted tax basis of your shares and, after such adjusted tax basis is reduced to zero, will
generally constitute capital gains to you.
Under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA”), “qualified REIT dividends” (i.e., ordinary REIT dividends
other than capital gain dividends and portions of REIT dividends designated as qualified dividend
income) are treated as eligible for a 20% deduction by noncorporate taxpayers. This deduction, if allowed
in full, equates to a maximum effective tax rate of 29.6% (37% top rate applied to income after 20%
deduction). Proposed regulations issued by the IRS, which may be relied upon currently, enable the
Fund to pass through the special character of “qualified REIT dividends” to a shareholder, provided
both the Fund and the shareholder meet certain holding period requirements with respect to their shares.
Neither the TCJA nor the proposed regulations permit conduit treatment of income from qualified
publicly traded partnerships for purposes of the 20% deduction by noncorporate taxpayers. The IRS
continues to study whether such treatment for RICs is appropriate in the context of publicly traded
partnerships
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Distributions of any net investment income and net realized capital gains will be taxable as described
above, whether received in shares or in cash. Shareholders who choose to receive distributions in the
form of additional shares will have a cost basis for federal income tax purposes in each share so received
equal to the NAV of a share on the reinvestment date. Distributions are generally taxable when received.
However, distributions declared in October, November or December to shareholders of record on a date
in such a month and paid the following January are taxable as if received on December 31. Distributions
are includable in alternative minimum taxable income in computing a noncorporate shareholder’s
liability for the alternative minimum tax.
Investment income received by the Fund from sources within foreign countries may be subject to foreign
income tax withheld at the source and the amount of tax withheld generally will be treated as an expense
of the Fund. The U.S. has entered into tax treaties with many foreign countries that entitle the Fund to
a reduced rate of, or exemption from, tax on such income. Some countries require the filing of a tax
reclaim or other forms to receive the benefit of the reduced tax rate; whether or when the Fund will
receive the tax reclaim is within the control of the individual country. Information required on these
forms may not be available to the Fund such as shareholder information; therefore, the Fund may not
receive the reduced treaty rates or potential reclaims. Other countries have conflicting and changing
instructions and restrictive timing requirements which may cause the Fund not to receive the reduced
treaty rates or potential reclaims. Other countries may subject capital gains realized by the Fund on
sale or disposition of securities of that country to taxation. It is impossible to determine the effective
rate of foreign tax in advance since the amount of the Fund’s assets to be invested in various countries
is not known. Under circumstances described below, the Fund may elect to pass-through foreign taxes
paid by the Fund to its shareholders, although it reserves the right not to do so. If the Fund makes such
an election and obtains a refund of foreign taxes paid by the Fund in a prior year, the Fund may be
eligible to reduce the amount of foreign taxes reported by the Fund to its shareholders, generally by the
amount of the foreign taxes refunded, for the year in which the refund is received.
A redemption of Fund shares may result in recognition of a taxable gain or loss and, if held as a capital
asset, capital gain or loss. Any loss realized upon a redemption of shares within six months from the
date of their purchase will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any amounts treated as
distributions of long-term capital gains received on those shares. Any loss realized upon a redemption
may be disallowed under certain wash sale rules to the extent shares of the Fund are purchased (through
reinvestment of distributions or otherwise) within 30 days before or after the redemption.
The Fund is required to report to you and the IRS annually on Form 1099-B the cost basis of shares
purchased or acquired. However, cost basis reporting is not required for certain shareholders, including
shareholders investing the Fund through a tax-advantaged retirement account, such as a 401(k) plan or
an individual retirement account. The Fund will calculate cost basis using the Fund’s default method,
unless you instruct the Fund to use a different calculation method. For additional information regarding
the Fund’s available cost basis reporting methods, including its default method, please contact the Fund.
If you hold your Fund shares through a broker (or other nominee), please contact that broker (nominee)
with respect to reporting of cost basis and available elections for your account.
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Except in the case of certain exempt shareholders, if a shareholder does not furnish the Fund with its
correct Taxpayer Identification Number and certain certifications or the Fund receives notification from
the IRS requiring back-up withholding, the Fund is required by federal law to withhold federal income
tax from the shareholder’s distributions and redemption proceeds currently at a rate of 24% for U.S.
residents.
Foreign taxpayers (including nonresident aliens) are generally subject to a flat withholding rate, currently
30% on U.S. source income. This withholding rate may be lower under the terms of a tax treaty.
This discussion and the related discussion in the Prospectus have been prepared by Fund management,
and counsel to the Fund has expressed no opinion in respect thereof.
This section is not intended to be a full discussion of federal tax laws and the effect of such laws on
you. There may be other federal, state, foreign or local tax considerations to a particular investor. You
are urged to consult your own tax adviser.

Distributions
The Fund will receive income in the form of dividends and interest earned on its investments in securities .
This income, less the expenses incurred in its operations, is the Fund’s net investment income,
substantially all of which will be distributed to the Fund’s shareholders.
The amount of the Fund’s distributions is dependent upon the amount of net investment income received
by the Fund from its portfolio holdings, is not guaranteed, and is subject to the discretion of the Board.
The Fund does not pay “interest” or guarantee any fixed rate of return on an investment in its shares.
The Fund may also derive capital gains or losses in connection with sales or other dispositions of its
portfolio securities. Any net gain the Fund may realize from transactions involving investments held
less than the period required for long-term capital gain or loss recognition or otherwise producing shortterm capital gains and losses (to the extent not offset by any capital loss carryovers), although a
distribution from capital gains, will be distributed to shareholders with and as a part of the distributions
of net investment income giving rise to ordinary income. If during any year the Fund realizes a net gain
on transactions involving investments held for the period required for long-term capital gain or loss
recognition or otherwise producing long-term capital gains and losses, the Fund will have a net longterm capital gain. After deduction of the amount of any net short-term capital loss, the balance (to the
extent not offset by any capital losses carried over from the eight previous taxable years) will be
distributed and treated as long-term capital gains in the hands of the shareholders regardless of the length
of time the Fund’s shares may have been held by the shareholders. For more information concerning
applicable capital gains tax rates, see your tax adviser.
Any distribution paid by the Fund reduces the Fund’s NAV per share on the date paid by the amount of
the distribution per share. Accordingly, a distribution paid shortly after a purchase of shares by a
shareholder would represent, in substance, a partial return of principal (to the extent it is paid on the
shares so purchased), even though it would be subject to income taxes.
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Distributions will be automatically reinvested in additional common shares, unless the shareholder
specifically has indicated otherwise. Investors have the right to change their elections with respect to
the reinvestment of distributions by notifying the Transfer Agent in writing or by telephone. However,
any such change will be effective only as to distributions for which the record date is five or more
calendar days after the Transfer Agent has received the written request.

Financial Statements
The Fund has not yet commenced operations and, therefore, has not produced financial statements. Once
available, you can obtain a copy of the financial statements contained in the Fund’s Annual or Semi-Annual
Report.
The Predecessor Fund’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, are attached as
Appendix A. The audited financial statements of the Predecessor Fund have been audited by Ernst & Young,
Chartered Accountants the independent auditors for the Predecessor Fund for the year ended December 31,
2019.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors
Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited (the “Fund”),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund
at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young
Dublin
August 3, 2020
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019

2019
US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure
Master Fund Limited (Cost: $23,674,507)
Total assets

Liabilities
Performance fee payable
Management fee payable
Total liabilities

22
38,952,867
38,952,889

1B

31,704
28,022
59,726

Net assets
Net asset value per share
Early Investor Shares
Number of shares outstanding

38,893,163

Seeder Class Shares
Number of shares outstanding

$158.30
37,652.00

Special Foundation Shares
Number of shares outstanding

$159.07
195,800.00

Management shares
Number of shares outstanding

$160.71
9,999.13

$157.49
1,148.75

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and the attached financial statements of Tortoise Global
Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019
US$
Investment income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund
Gross dividend income
Less: withholding tax
Interest income
Other income
Total investment income
5B

Operating expenses
Interest expense
Total operating expenses

1,325,764
(291,088)
93,443
157,697
1,285,816

98,055
98,055

Non-operating expenses
Administration fees
Other expenses
Research fees
Audit fees
Directors' fees
Total non-operating expenses

75,911
47,065
68,667
31,483
10,614
233,740

Total expenses

331,795

Total Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund

954,021

Fund operating expenses
Management fees
Performance fees
Other expenses

278,335
31,704
1,521

Total Operating expenses

311,560

Net Investment income
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments, derivatives and
foreign currency related transactions allocated from the
Master Fund
Net realised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign
exchange allocated from the Master Fund
Net unrealised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
allocated from the Master Fund

642,461

Increase in net assets from operations

2,021,301
4,840,503
7,504,265

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and the attached financial statements of Tortoise Global
Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited.

A-7

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019
US$

Net assets at beginning of year

31,389,013

Increase in net assets from operations
Net investment income
Net realized gains from investments, derivatives and foreign currency related transactions
allocated from the Master Fund
Net change in unrealized gains on investments, derivatives and foreign currency related
transactions allocated from the Master Fund
Net increase in assets resulting from operations

Capital transactions
Issue of shares
Redemption of shares
Equalization
Net increase in net assets resulting from capital transactions
Net assets at end of year

642,461
2,021,301
4,840,503
38,893,278

(115)
(115)
38,893,163

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and the attached financial statements of Tortoise Global
Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019
US$
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets from operations to net cash used in
operating activities:
Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund
Net realised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange allocated
from the Master Fund
Net unrealised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
allocated from the Master Fund
Purchase of investment in the Master Fund
Proceeds from sale of investment in the Master Fund
Performance fee payable
Management fee payable
Other receivables

7,504,265

(954,021)
(2,021,301)
(4,840,503)
(747)
273,982
31,702
5,471
7

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Payments for redemption of shares

(1,145)

Net cash used in financing activities

(115)

(115)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

(1,260)
1,282

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

22

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank

22

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and the attached financial statements of Tortoise Global
Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

ORGANISATION
Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited (the “Offshore Feeder”) was incorporated
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 2 November 2015 as an exempted company under
the provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and was registered as
a regulated mutual fund under Cayman Law on 2 November 2015. The Offshore Feeder commenced
operations on 4 November 2015.
The Offshore Feeder invests substantially all of its assets through a “Master-Feeder” structure in the
redeemable participating shares of Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited
(the “Master Fund”), an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands. Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund LP (the “Partnership”), a Delaware limited
partnership, also invests substantially all of its assets in the Master Fund.
The Offshore Feeder has the power to organise the Offshore Feeder's assets and liabilities into subfunds and to allocate profits and losses attributable to the sub-funds to different classes. The Offshore
Feeder has established one Sub-Fund (the "A Sub-Fund"). Additional Sub-Funds may be established
in the future. The Master Fund has created similar sub-fund arrangements and the A Sub-Fund invests
directly into the Master Fund's A sub-fund (the "A Master Sub-Fund"). The Master Fund has also
established the Master Fund's B sub-fund. The Partnership invests its assets into both the A Master
Sub-Fund and the B Master Sub-Fund.
As of 31 December 2019, the Offshore Feeder owned 51.41% of the redeemable participating shares
of the A Master Sub-Fund.
Investment Manager Registration
Effective 21 July 2014, Ecofin Advisors Limited (Ecofin Limited has been renamed Ecofin Advisors
Limited) was authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority.
The Fund is managed by Ecofin Advisors Limited (the U.K. Investment Manager is registered with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment advisor under the Investment
Advisors Act of 1940.

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“US GAAP”). The Fund is considered an investment company and
follows the accounting and reporting guidance in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 946, Financial Services-Investment
Companies.

(b)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
classified at fair value through Statement of Operations that have been measured at fair value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires the Directors to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The Directors believe that the estimates utilised in preparing the financial
statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2.
(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Recent accounting pronouncements
In August, 2018, The FASB issued Accounting Standard Update 2018-13, Fair Value measurement
(Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value
Measurement, which changes the fair value measurement disclosure requirements of ASC 820. For
non-pubic entities such as the Fund, the amendments involve the elimination of certain disclosure
requirements of ASC 820. For non-public entities such as the Fund, the amendments involve the
elimination of certain disclosure requirements of ASC 820. These include transfers between Level
1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the Fund’s policy for the timing of transfers between levels,
the valuation processes for Level 3 fair value measurements, and the changes in unrealised gains
and losses for the period included in the earnings for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held
at the end of the reporting period and the roll-forward of Level 3 fair value measurements. For public
business entities that are SEC filers that are not smaller reporting companies (“SRC’s”), the
amendments in this update are effective for fiscal year beginning after 15 December 2019, including
interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other public business entities, the amendments in
this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 December 2022, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. This standard update has been early adopted.
The adoption of this accounting standard update has had no material effect on the financial statements.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18 Statement of Cash flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash ("ASU 2016-18"). The ASU 2016-18 amendments require that a statement of cash
flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts
generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The new guidance is effective
for all entities for fiscal years beginning after 15 December 2019 and for interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Directors do not expect the pronouncement to have any impact on the Fund.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which revises guidance for the accounting
for credit losses on financial instruments within its scope. The new standard introduces an approach,
based on expected losses, to estimate credit losses on certain types of financial instruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-for-sale debt securities. The guidance will be effective
for private companies for annual and interim periods beginning after 15 December 2021, with early
adoption permitted only from 15 December 2019, including interim periods within the fiscal year.
Entities are required to apply the standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is adopted. The Fund
is currently assessing the impact that this pronouncement will have on the financial statements.

(c)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held with bank and other short term liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

(d)

Valuation of investment
The Offshore Feeder’s investment in the Master Fund is valued at the net asset value of the shares
in the Master Fund, as determined by SS&C Fund Services Ireland Limited (the “Administrator”),
which represents the price at which the Offshore Feeder could redeem these shares. The financial
statements of the Master Fund, which are attached, form an integral part of these financial statements.
Valuation of investments held by the Master Fund, including but not limited to, the valuation
techniques used and categorisation within the fair value hierarchy of investments are discussed in
the notes to the Master Fund's financial statements.

(e)

Foreign currency translation
((i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Offshore Feeder’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”). This is the US
dollar.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency transactions
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US dollar are translated
into US dollars at the closing rates of exchange at each period end. Transactions during the period,
including purchases and sales of securities, income and expenses, are translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are included
in realised and unrealised gain and loss on investments.

(f)

Investment Income
Investment income is accrued as earned and is recognised on an accrual basis as incurred.

(g)

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the Statement of Operations on an accruals basis.

(h)

Income taxes
The offshore feeder does not record a provision for U.S. federal, state, or local income taxes because
the holders of redeemable participating shares report their share of the offshore feeder 's income or
loss on their income tax returns. The offshore feeder files an income tax return in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction, and may file income tax returns in various U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. The
offshore feeder is required to determine whether its tax positions are more likely than not to be
sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the
position. The tax benefit recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that has a greater
than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing
authorities. Based on its analysis, the offshore feeder has determined that it has not incurred any
liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of 31 December 2019. The offshore feeder does not expect
that its assessment regarding unrecognized tax benefits will materially change over the next twelve
months. However, the offshore feeder 's conclusions may be subject to review and adjustment at a
later date based on factors including, but not limited to, questioning the timing and amount of
deductions, the nexus of income among various tax jurisdictions, compliance with U.S. federal, U.S.
state and foreign tax laws, and changes in the administrative practices and precedents of the relevant
taxing authorities.

(i)

Bank overdraft
Bank overdraft represents amounts withdrawn from the bank in excess of the available balance.

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
The Offshore Feeder invests all of its available assets in the Master Fund. Further information on
the instruments held by the Master Fund is provided in Notes 3 and 4 of the financial statements of
the Master Fund.
As of 31 December 2019, the Offshore Feeder owned 51.41% of the redeemable participating shares
of the Master Fund.

4.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES
Investment management fees
Tortoise Advisors UK Limited (the “Investment Manager”) receives from the Offshore Feeder an
Investment Management Fee equal to 1/12 of the relevant Investment Management Fee Percentage
per month of the net asset value of the relevant Class of Ordinary shares (before deduction of that
month’s Investment Management Fee and before deduction for any accrued Performance Fees) as
at each Valuation Day, payable quarterly in arrears. The Investment Management Fee is deemed to
accrue on a daily basis as at each Valuation Day.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
4.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES (continued)
Investment management fees (continued)
The Investment Management Fee Percentage is equal to:
Class of Shares
Class A shares
Early Investor Shares
Seeder Class shares
Special Foundation shares
Management shares

Investment Management Fee Percentage
1 per cent
0.80 per cent
0.80 per cent
0.80 per cent
0.50 per cent

The Investment Management Fee for the year amounted to US$278,335. The outstanding payable
at the year-end was US$28,022.
Performance fees
The Investment Manager was also entitled to receive a Performance Fee from the Offshore Feeder
in respect of each Early Investor share, Class A share, Special Foundation share, Seeder share and
Management share and was calculated on a share-by- share basis so that each share was charged a
Performance Fee which equates precisely with that share’s performance. This method of calculation
ensured that (i) any Performance Fee paid to the Principal Investment Manager was charged only
to those shares which had appreciated in value during the relevant Calculation Period, (ii) all holders
of shares had the same amount per share at risk in the Offshore Feeder, and (iii) all shares of the
same class had the same net asset value per share. For each Calculation Period, the Performance
Fee in respect of each Class A Share will, subject to a high water mark, be equal to 10 per cent of
the appreciation in the Net Asset Value per share of the relevant Class (without reduction for any
Investor Related Taxes paid or accrued during the Calculation Period) during the Calculation Period
in excess of a 7% per annum compounded Hurdle Rate
The Performance Fee in respect of each share is calculated in respect of each period of twelve months
ending on 31 December in each year (a “Calculation Period”). The Performance Fee is deemed to
accrue on a monthly basis as at each Valuation Day.
Performance Fee - Early Investor share, Class A share, Special Foundation shares, Seeder shares
and Management shares
Effective 14 December 2017, Early Investor shares, Special Foundation shares and Seeder shares
are no longer subject to a Performance Fee.
Performance Fee Suspense Account - Class A shares
Immediately after the end of each calendar year (the “First Calculation Period”), if a Performance
Fee has been accrued, an amount representing two thirds of the accrued Performance Fee per Share
(the “Suspense Amount”) of the relevant Class will be paid into a deposit account held by a third
party bank. Such amount will be held as to 50 per cent until the end of the following calendar year
(the “Second Calculation Period”) and as to the remaining 50 per cent until the end of the next
following calendar year (the “Third Calculation Period”). The remaining one third of the accrued
Performance Fee per Share of the relevant Class will be paid to the Investment Manager.
If, at the end of the Second Calculation Period in question, the Net Asset Value per Share of the
relevant Class continues to meet or exceed the Threshold Net Asset Value per Share upon which the
Performance Fee was calculated as at the end of the First Calculation Period, then 50 per cent of the
Suspense Amount will then be due and payable to the Investment Manager. However, if, at the end
of the Second Calculation Period in question, the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class
has fallen below the Threshold Net Asset Value per Share upon which the Performance Fee was
calculated, then 50 per cent of the Suspense Amount will be paid to the relevant Shareholders on a
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
4.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES (continued)
Performance Fee Suspense Account - Class A shares (continued)
share-by-share basis. If, at the end of the Third Calculation Period in question, the Net Asset Value
per Share of the relevant Class continues to meet or exceed the Threshold Net Asset Value per Share
upon which the Performance Fee was calculated as at the end of the First Calculation Period, then
the remainder of the Suspense Amount will then be due and payable to the Investment Manager.
However, if, at the end of the Third Calculation Period in question, the Net Asset Value per Share
of the relevant Class has fallen below the Threshold Net Asset Value per Share upon which the
Performance Fee was calculated, then the remainder of the Suspense Amount will be paid to the
relevant Shareholders on a share-by-share basis.
Notwithstanding the above, where any Shares of the relevant Class to which any Suspense Amount
relates are redeemed prior to the end of the relevant Second Calculation Period or Third Calculation
Period, the relevant proportion of the Suspense Amount to which those Shares relate will become
payable to the Investment Manager immediately.
There is no Performance Fee payable on the Early Investor, Seeder class and Special foundation
shares.
The Performance Fee for the year amounted to US$31,704. The outstanding payable at the year-end
was US$31,704.

5.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
The Offshore Feeder was incorporated with an authorised share capital of US$500,000 into 10
Founder shares of US$1.00 par value each and 49,999,000 ordinary shares of a par value of US$0.01
each which may be issued as Early investor shares, Seeder shares or Special foundation shares.
Founder shares
The 10 Founder shares have been issued to the Investment Manager, and are fully paid. The Founder
shares do not form part of the net asset value of the Offshore Feeder and are thus disclosed in the
financial statements by way of this note only. In the opinion of the Directors, this disclosure reflects
the nature of the Offshore Feeder’s business as an investment fund.
Redeemable participating shares
- Ordinary and Management shares
The net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares are at all times equal to the
net asset value of the Offshore Feeder. The shares of the Offshore Feeder to shareholders under US
GAAP can be redeemed at the option of the shareholder.
- Ecofin shares
Only funds or investment vehicles managed by the Principal Investment Manager or the Investment
Manager, or employees of the Principal Investment Manager, Tortoise Advisors UK Limited (the
“Investment Manager”) or Ecofin Inc. and/or such other persons or entities as the Directors may in
their absolute discretion determine may be issued Ecofin shares. As at 31 December 2019 there were
no Ecofin shares in issue.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
5.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
The movement in the number of redeemable participating shares was as follows:
Early
Investor
Shares

Ecofin
Shares

Seeder Class
Shares

Special
Foundation
Shares

Management
shares

Balance at 1 January
2019
1,148.75
37,652.00 195,800.00
10,000.00
Issued
Redeemed
(0.87)
Balance at 31 December
1,148.75
0
37,652.00 195,800.00
9999.13
2019
Redeemable participating shares may be redeemed on each dealing date or such other date or dates
as the Directors shall from time to time determine at the net asset value per share as at the valuation
day immediately preceding the relevant redemption day. The shareholder must request such
redemption at least 3 business days prior to the dealing date or such other day as the Directors may
determine.
Redeemable participating shares carry the right to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Offshore Feeder. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid
by the Offshore Feeder. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled to a return of capital based on the
net asset value per share of the Offshore Feeder.
6.

FINIANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Per share operating performance, ratios to average net assets and other information for the year
ended 31 December 2019:

Per share operating performance1
Net asset value, beginning of year
Net investment income
Realized and change in unrealized gain
Total from Operational Activities
Net asset value, end of year
Total return2:
Total return before incentive fee
Incentive fee
Total return after incentive fee
Ratio to average net assets3:
Net investment Income
Expenses before incentive fee
Incentive fee
Expenses after incentive fee
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Early Investor
Shares

Seeder Class
Shares

Special
Foundation
Shares

127.01
2.7
27.78
30.48
157.49

127.67
2.72
27.91
30.63
158.30

128.29
2.73
28.05
30.78
159.07

23.99%
23.99%

23.99%
23.99%

23.99%
23.99%

1.93%
(1.67)%
(1.67)%

1.92%
(1.66)%
(1.66)%

1.92%
(1.66)%
(1.66)%

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
6.

FINIANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)
1

Per share amounts are calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.
2
Total returns are calculated for each class based on the change in net asset value per share during
the year. An individual investor’s return may vary from these returns based on the timing of capital
transactions.
3
Average net assets are measured by using the class’ monthly average net assets adjusted for capital
subscriptions and redemptions.
7.

RELATED PARTIES
The Fund considers the Investment Manager, its principal owners, members of management, and
the Board of Directors, as well as entities under common control, to be related parties to the Fund.
Amounts due from and due to related parties are generally settled in the normal course of business
without formal payment terms.
The Fund pays the Investment Manager a management fee and a performance fee, as outlined in
Note 4. In the year 2019 the total management fee was US$278,335, with US$28,022 payable at
year-end and the total performance fee was US$31,704, with US$31,704 payable at year-end.

8.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
Ecofin Limited was renamed to Ecofin Advisors Limited on 10 January 2019. A supplement to the
prospectus of Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited (Formerly known as Ecofin
Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited) dated May 2019 issued.

9.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END
During the period 1 January 2020 to 3 August 2020 which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued, total redemptions amounted to US$8,554,444.
Effective 9 July 2020, Ecofin Advisors UK Limited (Ecofin Limited has been renamed Ecofin
Advisors Limited)
Since the financial year end we have seen the development of the coronavirus Covid-19 outbreak
initially in China and now reaching most continents. At present it is not possible to assess the detailed
impact, of this emerging risk, on the companies in the portfolio but there is growing concern about
the impact on the world economy. There has been a significant correction in the financial markets
in the past few weeks. The Directors and the Investment Manager continue to watch the efforts of
governments to contain the spread of the virus and monitor the economic impact on the companies
in the portfolio.

10.

INDEMNIFICATIONS
Under the offshore feeder organizational documents, its officers and directors are indemnified against
certain liabilities arising out of the performance of their duties to the offshore feeder. In addition, in
the normal course of business, the offshore feeder may enter into contracts that provide general
indemnification to other parties. The offshore feeder’s maximum exposure under these arrangements
is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made against the offshore feeder that
have not yet occurred, and may not occur. However, the offshore feeder has not had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

11.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were authorised for release by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2020.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors
Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Master Fund Limited (the “Fund”),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as of December 31, 2019, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund at
December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young
Dublin
August 3, 2020

A - 21

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITES
As of 31 December 2019
2019
US$

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Securities owned, at fair value (cost: $55,806,589)
Derivative contracts, at fair value
Interest receivable
Dividends receivable

12,167,461
63,645,113
70,825
18,628
163,528

Total assets

76,065,555

Liabilities
Derivative contracts, at fair value
Interest payable
Administration fees payable
Audit fees payable
Directors’ fees payable
Other payables and accrued expenses

93,523
5,780
45,157
45,406
8,843
94,622

Total liabilities

293,331

Net assets
Net asset value per share
A Master Sub-Fund Ordinary Shares
Number of shares outstanding

75,772,224

B Master Sub-Fund Ordinary Shares
Number of shares outstanding

$158.95
218,136.96

$164.53
249,798.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As at 31 December 2019

Securities Owned

Cost US$ Quantity

Fair Value
US$

% of Net
Asset Value

Listed equities
Australia
Utilities
Spark Infrastructure Group
Total Australia (cost: $1,350,349)
Belgium
Utilities
Elia System Operator Sa/Nv
Total Belgium (cost: $1,277,232)
Canada
Energy
Innergex Renewable Energy
Transalta Renewables Inc
Utilities
Algonquin Power & Utilities
Boralex Inc -A
Total Canada (cost: $5,614,871)
China
Energy
China Longyuan Power Group-H
Utilities
Huadian Fuxin Energy Corp -H
Total China (cost: $2,946,065)
Denmark
Utilities
Orsted A/S
Total Denmark (cost: $2,590,014)
Germany
Energy
Encavis Ag
Total Germany (cost: $1,069,047)

1,350,349

903,814

1,327,852
1,327,852

1.75%
1.75%

1,277,232

14,681

1,303,522
1,303,522

1.72%
1.72%

1,882,492
1,086,878

186,920
117,133

2,430,284
1,401,893

3.21%
1.85%

1,843,960
801,541

187,597
48,341

2,657,534
911,834
7,401,545

3.51%
1.20%
9.77%

1,093,670 1,856,203

1,174,450

1.55%

1,852,395 8,874,717

1,810,981
2,985,431

2.39%
3.94%

2,590,014

30,748

3,182,420
3,182,420

4.20%
4.20%

1,069,047

154,717

1,630,760
1,630,760

2.15%
2.15%

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
A - 23

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

Securities Owned

Fair Value
US$

% of Net Asset
Value

254,701

1,702,260
1,702,260

2.25%
2.25%

924,196

81,461

1,150,446
1,150,446

1.52%
1.52%

2,823,245
1,327,195

730,879
435,265

3,170,071
1,328,951
4,499,022

4.18%
1.76%
5.94%

2,817,944
1,691,070

391,158
65,496

4,030,707
1,728,439
5,759,146

5.32%
2.28%
7.60%

2,166,641

28,499

2,101,336
2,101,336

2.77%
2.77%

2,161,281
1,830,573

3,303,582
3,533,600

2,161,673
1,911,090
4,072,763

2.85%
2.53%
5.38%

Cost US$

Quantity

1,616,168

Listed equities
Italy
Utilities
Terna Spa
Total Italy (cost: $1,616,168)
Norway
Energy
Scatec Solar Asa
Total Norway (cost: $924,196)
Portugal
Utilities
Edp-Energias De Portugal Sa
Redes Energeticas Nacionais
Total Portugal (cost: $4,150,440)
Spain
Utilities
Iberdrola Sa
Atlantica Yield Plc
Total Spain (cost: $4,509,014)
Switzerland
Energy
Bkw Ag
Total Switzerland (cost: $2,166,641)
Thailand
Energy
Spcg Pcl
Bcpg Pcl-Foreign
Total Thailand (cost: $3,991,854)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

Securities Owned (continued)
United Kingdom
Financial
Greencoat Uk Wind Plc

Cost US$

Quantity

985,798

584,169

Total United Kingdom
(cost: $985,798)
United States
Energy
Nextera Energy Partners Lp
Sunrun Inc
Terraform Power Inc - A
Industrial
Covanta Holding Corp
Utilities
Avangrid Inc
Edison International
Exelon Corp
Nextera Energy Inc
Public Service Enterprise Gp
Total United States
(cost: $22,614,901)

Fair Value
US$

% of Net
Asset Value

1,163,912

1.54%

1,163,912

1.54%

1,557,007
2,330,580
2,543,292

34,174
147,713
210,532

1,799,261
2,039,917
3,240,087

2.37%
2.69%
4.28%

4,941,215

331,055

4,912,856

6.48%

1,098,136
1,580,391
3,285,969
2,958,716
2,319,595

21,670
23,433
79,574
17,462
44,716

1,108,637
1,767,083
3,627,779
4,228,598
2,640,480

1.46%
2.33%
4.79%
5.58%
3.48%

25,364,698

33.47%

63,645,113

84.00%

Total Listed Equities
(cost: $55,806,589)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Contracts for Difference - Assets

Quantity

Contracts for Difference
France
Utilities
Public Service Enterprise Gp
India
Utilities
Power Grid Corp Of India Ltd Ms Swap

3,309
3,309

0.00%
0.00%

1,248,323

67,516
67,516

0.09%
0.09%

70,825

0.09%

Quantity

United Kingdom
Utilities
National Grid Plc Ms Swap
Sse Plc Cs Swap
National Grid Plc Ms Swap

219,344
48,078
57,063

Total Contracts for difference - Liabilities

Fair Value
US$

(62,183)
(14,331)
(17,009)
(93,523)
(93,523)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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% of Net
Asset Value

184,225

Total Contracts for difference

Contracts for Difference - Liabilities

Fair Value
US$

% of Net
Asset Value

(0.08)%
(0.02)%
(0.02)%
(0.12)%
(0.12)%

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
As at 31 December 2019

2019
US$
Investment income
Gross dividend income
Less: withholding tax
Interest income
Other income

2,575,270
(565,449)
181,424
325,697

Total investment income

2,516,942

Operating expenses
Interest expense
Total operating expenses

190,753
190,753

Non-operating expenses
Administration fees
Other expenses
Research fees
Audit fees
Directors’ fees
Legal fees
Total non-operating expenses

147,526
91,332
133,272
61,215
20,658
10,322
464,325

Total expenses

655,078

Net investment income
Net realised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
Net realized gains from sale of securities
Net realized gains from sale of derivatives
Net realized gains from foreign currency related transactions
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
Net change in unrealised gains from securities
Net change in unrealised loss from derivatives
Net change in unrealised loss from foreign currency related transactions
Increase in net assets from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1,861,864
3,112,729
618,894
153,075
9,552,908
(79,966)
(7,511)
13,350,129
15,211,993

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
2019
US$

Net assets at beginning of the year

60,340,443

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations
Net investment income
Net realised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
Net unrealised gain on investments, derivative contracts and foreign exchange
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

1,861,864
3,884,698
9,465,431
15,211,993

Capital transactions
Issue of shares
Redemption of shares
Net increase in net assets resulting from capital transactions

750,747
(530,959)
219,788
75,772,224

Net assets at end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
2019
US$
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets from operations

15,211,993

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets from operating activities:
Net realized gains from sale of securities
Net change in unrealised gains from securities
Net change in unrealised loss from derivatives
Purchase of securities owned
Proceeds on sale of securities owned
Dividends receivable
Interest receivable
Other assets and prepaid expenses
Amounts due to brokers
Interest payable
Administration fees payable
Audit fees payable
Directors’ fees payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Redemption of shares

(3,112,729)
(9,552,908)
79,966
(40,939,979)
41,811,928
(46,139)
(10,440)
42,827
(441,686)
1,687
314
1,960
(128)
(2,292)
3,044,374

750,747
(530,959)

Net cash provided by financing activities

219,788

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Cash equivalents

3,264,162
8,903,299
12,167,461
12,167,461
12,167,461

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid

(189,066)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
1.

ORGANISATION
The Tortoise Global Renewable Infrastructure Master Fund Limited (the “Master Fund”) was incorporated
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 2 November 2015 as an exempted company under the
provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and was registered as a regulated
mutual fund under Cayman Law on 2 November 2015. The Master Fund commenced operations on 4
November 2015.
The Master Fund is part of a “master-feeder” structure with two other entities, Tortoise Global Renewable
Infrastructure Fund Limited (the “Offshore Feeder”) and Tortoise Global Renewable Infrastructure Fund
LP (the “Partnership”), which act as feeder funds. Both feeder funds invest substantially all of their assets
in the Master Fund. Additional feeder funds may be created in the future, but otherwise it is not anticipated
that there will be any other investors in the Master Fund.
The Master Fund has the power to organize the Master Fund’s assets and liabilities into sub-funds and to
allocate profits and losses attributable to the sub-funds to different classes. Effective 14 December 2017,
the Master Fund has created two sub-funds, the “A Master Sub-Fund” and the “B Master Sub-Fund”. The
Offshore Feeder invests solely in the A Master Sub-Fund and the Partnership invests in the A Master SubFund and the B Master Sub-Fund. Additional sub-funds may be established in the future.
Sub Fund B was created to invest in a separate strategy to Sub Fund A. This separate strategy did not
launch and as result Sub Fund A and Sub Fund B invest in the same portfolio of investments and therefore
has achieved similar returns.
The A Master Sub-Fund’s investment objective is to generate long-term positive returns on equity
investments, derived principally from a combination of capital appreciation and dividend payments. The
Master Fund will principally focus its investment activities towards companies who are developers, owners
and operators, in full or in part, of renewable electricity technology plants and systems, and related
infrastructure investment. The Master Fund will be invested in a widely diversified manner and in a range
of both developed and emerging markets, commensurate with investment criteria.
The B Master Sub-Fund will be invested in such investment or investments as are agreed with the investors
holding B Master Sub-Fund ordinary shares from time to time which may include investments in other
investment funds managed or advised by the Investment Manager. The investment funds which the B
Master Sub-Fund may be invested in may pursue similar investment strategies to that employed by the
A Master Sub-Fund.
The Master Fund will invest primarily in equity and equity-related securities of companies in the
‘Renewable Infrastructure Universe’ which are listed or traded on a variety of global stock exchanges.
In addition to traditional corporate structures, the Master Fund may invest in limited partnerships, to the
extent that they are fully taxable as "subchapter C corporations" (or equivalent outside the U.S.). The
Master Fund may also invest in listed renewable infrastructure funds, which are generally ‘closed-end
funds’, which house a collection of cash-flow producing assets. The Master Fund may also write covered
(but not uncovered) options regarding names in the Renewable Investment Universe and may retain cash
or cash equivalents for use as collateral or pending reinvestment.
Investment Manager Registration
Effective 21 July 2014, Ecofin Advisors Limited (Ecofin Limited has been renamed Ecofin Advisors
Limited) was authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority.
The Fund is managed by Ecofin Advisors Limited (the U.K. Investment Manager is registered with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment advisor under the Investment Advisors Act
of 1940.
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TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“US GAAP”). The Fund is an investment company and follows the accounting
and reporting guidance in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) Topic 946, Financial Services-Investment Companies.

(b)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
classified at fair value through statement of operations that have been measured at fair value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires the Directors to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The Directors believe that the estimates utilised in preparing the financial
statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Investment valuation
The fair value of the Master Fund’s assets and liabilities that qualify as financial instruments under ASC
825, Financial Instruments (“ASC 825”).
The value of securities including shares which are quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange will
be based on the last available price or, if appropriate, on the average price on the stock exchange which
is normally the principal market of such securities, and each security traded on any other regulated market
will be valued in a manner as similar as possible to that provided for quoted securities. OTC financial
derivatives shall be priced based on third party counterparty marks which are based on industry standard
models and inputs.

(c)

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and to settle the liability simultaneously.

(d)

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The performance of the Fund is measured and reported to the investors in US$. The Board of Directors
considers the US$ as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions. The financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Fund’s
functional and presentation currency.
(ii) Foreign currency transactions
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US dollar are translated into US
dollars at the closing rates of exchange at each period end. Transactions during the period, including
purchases and sales of securities, income and expenses, are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency translation gains and losses and derivative contracts and
foreign exchange are included in realised and unrealised gain and loss on investments.

(e)

Receivables and payables
Receivables and payables recognised in the financial statements on an accruals basis.

(f)

Dividend and Other Income
Dividend and other income are accrued as earned and are recognised on an accrual basis as incurred.

(g)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
instruments with original maturities of three months or less, and are net of margin debt balances.
A - 31

TORTOISE GLOBAL RENEWABLES INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
Restricted cash is subject to a legal or contractual restriction by third parties as well as a restriction as to
withdrawal or use, including restrictions that require the funds to be used for a specified purpose and
restriction that limit the purpose for which the funds can be used. The Master Fund considers cash pledged
as collateral for securities sold short as cash collateral posted with counterparties for derivative contracts
to be restricted cash, these balances are included within Due from/to brokers. The Master Fund held no
restricted cash as at 31 December 2019.

(h)

Amounts due from and due to brokers
Amounts due from and due to brokers represent cash and cash collateral with the Master Fund’s clearing
brokers and various counterparties and amounts receivable for securities sold and payable for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities date.
These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, if any. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the carrying amount of the financial instrument upon initial recognition. A provision
for impairment of amounts due from brokers is established when there is objective evidence that the
Master Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due from the relevant broker.

(i)

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Operations on an accrual basis. Interest
is accrued on a daily basis.

(j)

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the Statement of Operations on an accruals basis.

(k)

Dividend income
Dividends are posted to the Statement of Operations on the dates on which the relevant securities are
listed as “ex-dividend”. Income is shown gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes, which are
disclosed separately in the Statement of Operations, and net of any tax credits.

(l)

Income taxes
The Fund does not record a provision for U.S. federal, state, or local income taxes because the holders
of redeemable participating shares report their share of the Fund's income or loss on their income tax
returns. The Fund files an income tax return in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and may file income tax
returns in various U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. The Fund is required to determine whether its tax
positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority,
based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit recognized is measured as the largest amount
of benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with
the relevant taxing authorities. Based on its analysis, the Fund has determined that it has not incurred any
liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of 31 December 2019. The Fund does not expect that its
assessment regarding unrecognized tax benefits will materially change over the next twelve months.
However, the Fund's conclusions may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based on factors
including, but not limited to, questioning the timing and amount of deductions, the nexus of income
among various tax jurisdictions, compliance with U.S. federal, U.S. state and foreign tax laws, and changes
in the administrative practices and precedents of the relevant taxing authorities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Recent accounting pronouncements
In August, 2018, The FASB issued Accounting Standard Update 2018-13, Fair Value measurement (Topic
820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement,
which changes the fair value measurement disclosure requirements of ASC 820. For non-pubic entities
such as the Fund, the amendments involve the elimination of certain disclosure requirements of ASC 820.
For non-public entities such as the Fund, the amendments involve the elimination of certain disclosure
requirements of ASC 820. These include transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Fund’s policy for the timing of transfers between levels, the valuation processes for Level 3 fair value
measurements, and the changes in unrealised gains and losses for the period included in the earnings for
recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the reporting period and the roll-forward of
Level 3 fair value measurements. For public business entities that are SEC filers that are not smaller
reporting companies (“SRC’s”), the amendments in this update are effective for fiscal year beginning
after 15 December 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other public business
entities, the amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 December 2022,
including interim periods within those fiscal years.. Early adoption is permitted. This standard update has
been early adopted. The adoption of this accounting standard update has had no material effect on the
financial statements.

(n)

New accounting pronouncements
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18 Statement of Cash flows (Topic 230): Restricted
Cash ("ASU 2016-18"). The ASU 2016-18 amendments require that a statement of cash flows explain
the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as
restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The new guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years
beginning after 15 December 2019 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. The Directors do
not expect the pronouncement to have any impact on the Fund.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

New accounting pronouncements (continued)
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which revises guidance for the accounting for
credit losses on financial instruments within its scope. The new standard introduces an approach, based
on expected losses, to estimate credit losses on certain types of financial instruments and modifies the
impairment model for available-for-sale debt securities. The guidance will be effective for private
companies for annual and interim periods beginning after 15 December 2021, with early adoption
permitted only from 15 December 2019, including interim periods within the fiscal year. Entities are
required to apply the standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of
the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is adopted. The Fund is currently assessing
the impact that this pronouncement will have on the financial statements.

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
Financial instruments at fair value
2019
US$
63,645,113
70,825
63,715,938

Listed equity securities
Contracts for difference (Note 4)

Total financial assets

63,715,938

The valuation of the Master Fund’s financial instruments is ultimately the responsibility of the Directors,
as stated in the Prospectus.
ASC 820 requires disclosures relating to fair value using a three - level fair value hierarchy.
Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Master Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including inputs in markets that are not
considered active.
Level 3 Valuation requires inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in
its entirety.
At 31 December 2019, there were no unlisted instruments held by the Master Fund.
The following tables summarise the valuation of the Master Fund’s investments by the fair value hierarchy
levels as of 31 December 2019.
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3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

31 December 2019
Financial instruments at fair value
Investments, at fair value
Equity securities
Contracts for difference

Total US$

Level 1
US$

Level 2
US$

Level 3
US$

63,645,113
70,825

63,645,113
-

70,825

-

Total

63,715,938

63,645,113

70,825

-

-

-

(93,523)
(93,523)

-

Investments, at fair value
Contracts for difference
Total

In determining an instrument’s placement within the hierarchy, the Directors separate the Master Fund’s
investment portfolio into two categories: investments and derivative instruments. Each of these categories
can further be divided between financial assets or financial liabilities.
Investments
Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within Level
1. This includes active listed equity securities. The Directors do not adjust the quoted price for such
instruments, even in situations where the Master Fund holds a large position and a sale could reasonably
impact the quoted price.
Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified
within Level 2. These include less liquid equities securities and debt securities. As Level 2 investments
include equity and debt securities that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer
restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally
based on available market information.
The Master fund did not have any Level 3 investments as at 31 December 2019.
Derivative instruments
Derivative instruments can be exchange-traded or privately negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”).
Exchange-traded derivatives, such as futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts, are typically
classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy depending on whether or not they are
deemed to be actively traded.
OTC derivatives, including forwards, options and contracts for difference are valued by the Directors
using observable inputs, such as quotations received from the counterparty, dealers or brokers, whenever
available and considered reliable. In instances where models are used, the value of an OTC derivative
depends upon the contractual terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the instrument as well as the
availability and reliability of observable inputs. Such inputs include market prices for reference securities,
yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs. Certain
OTC derivatives, such as options, swaps and contracts for difference, have inputs which can generally
be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified within Level 2.
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4.

DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS
Typically, derivative contracts serve as components of the Master Fund’s investment strategy and are
utilised primarily to structure and hedge investments, to enhance performance and to reduce risk to the
Master Fund. The derivative contracts that the Master Fund holds or issues are contracts for difference.
The Master Fund records its derivative activities on a mark-to-market basis. Fair values are determined
by using quoted market prices, or prices sourced from a reputable broker/counterparty in the case of nonexchange traded instruments.
As of 31 December 2019, the derivative contracts held by the Master Fund’s Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at fair value are detailed below:
Fair Value

2019
Assets
US$
70,825
70,825

Contracts for difference
Total

2019
Liabilities
US$
(93,523)
(93,523)

The notional value of derivative contracts at 31 December 2019 was as follows:

2019
Assets US$
10,127,825
10,127,825

Notional value
Contracts for difference
Total

2019
Liabilities
US$
-

Contracts for difference
Contracts for difference (“CFDs”) represent agreements that obligate two parties to exchange cash flows
at specified intervals based upon or calculated by reference to changes in specified prices or rates for a
specified amount of an underlying asset or otherwise deemed notional amount. The payment flows are
usually netted against each other, with the difference being paid by one party to the other. Therefore
amounts required for the future satisfaction of the CFD may be greater or less than the amount recorded.
The ultimate gain or loss depends upon the price at which the underlying financial instrument of the CFD
is valued at the CFD’s settlement date and is included in the Statement of Operations.
5.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO BROKERS
Margin accounts represent cash deposits with brokers, transferred as collateral against valuation margins
on swaps. Margin debt balances are collateralised by the Master Fund’s securities and cash held at the
brokers. See accounting policy in Note 2(h). As of 31 December 2019, there were no margin balances or
cash items held in collateral accounts included in due from/to brokers.

6.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
The Master Fund was incorporated with an authorised share capital of US$500,000 divided into
50,000,000 A Master Sub-Fund and B Master Sub-Fund ordinary shares of a par value of US$0.01 each.
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6.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
A Master Sub-Fund ordinary shares are issued in respect of A Master Sub-Fund and B Master Sub-Fund
ordinary shares are issued in respect of B Master Sub-Fund.
Redeemable participating shares
The net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares are at all times equal to the net
asset value of the Master Fund.
The movement in the number of redeemable participating shares was as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2019
Issued
Transferred
Redeemed
Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2019
Issued
Transferred
Redeemed
Allocated charge resulting from operations
Balance at 31 December 2019

A Master Sub-Fund Ordinary
shares
246,173
5,551
0
(1,926)
249,799

B Master SubFund Ordinary
shares
219,866
0
0
(1,729)
218,137

A Master Sub-Fund
Ordinary
shares
US$
32,400,864
750,747
0
(284,669)
8,231,910
41,098,852

B Master SubFund Ordinary
shares
US$
27,939,579
0
0
(246,290)
6,980,083
34,673,372

Redeemable participating shares may be redeemed on each dealing date or such other date or dates as the
Directors shall from time to time determine at the net asset value per share as at the valuation day
immediately preceding the relevant redemption day. The shareholder must request such redemption at
least 30 days prior to the dealing date or such other day as the Directors may determine.
Redeemable participating shares carry the right to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting
of the Master Fund. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by the Master
Fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled to a return of capital based on the net asset value per
share of the Master Fund.
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7.

ADMINISTRATION FEES
SS&C Fund Services Ireland Limited (the “Administrator”) receives a fee from the Master Fund of 0.09%
per annum of the net asset value of the Master Fund, before deduction of that month's administration,
management and performance fees. The administration fee is calculated as at each valuation day and is
payable monthly in arrears, subject to a minimum fee of US$105,000 per annum.
The Administrator also receives fees in respect of the provision of corporate secretarial services and audit
assistance to the Master Fund, the Offshore Feeder and the Partnership. The administration fee for the
period amounted to US$147,526 out of which US$45,157 was payable at year-end.
Depositary services fee
Citi Depositary Services Ireland Limited (the “Depositary Services Provider”) provides certain depositary
services to the Fund pursuant to the Article 36 Services Agreement. The depositary services fee is payable
at the Master Fund level. Total depositary services fee amounted to US$27,986, the depositary services
fee payable at 31 December 2019 is US$14,071.

8.

OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK
Contracts for difference result in an under-statement of financial position risk because the full notional
value of the contracts is not recognised in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities (see also Note 4).

9.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The risks associated with an investment in the Master Fund are set out in the Prospectus and any
Supplements to the Prospectus, which describe the investment objective, investment policies and
operations of the Master Fund and set out the basis on which investors may subscribe for, or redeem,
shares in the Master Fund. In addition to those risks, the Master Fund is exposed to the risk that a company
in which it has invested may be subject to unforeseen litigation or be the victim of fraud or a similar
prejudicial act which could have a detrimental effect on the Master Fund and, as a consequence, on the
value ascribed to it by the market or by the Directors.
As an investment company pursuing a strategy in the global energy sector, the Master Fund buys, sells
and holds financial assets, and makes use of financial derivative instruments in order to take advantage
of anticipated changes in the valuation of companies and in financial markets. This exposes the Master
Fund to a variety of operational and financial risks. The principal financial risks to which the Master Fund
is exposed are market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
The Board of Directors of the Master Fund are ultimately responsible for the operations of the Master
Fund but have delegated the management of the Master Fund’s assets and liabilities to the Investment
Manager. The Directors set guidelines for the Master Fund’s strategy and its tolerance for risk and meet
regularly to address issues affecting the Master Fund, to review its performance and to monitor the
Investment Manager’s management of risk.
The Master Fund’s assets and liabilities consist of financial instruments, cash, and the short-term debtors
and creditors that arise from the Master Fund’s investment activities. The financial instruments in which
the Master Fund invests consist primarily of equity and equity-related securities and financial derivative
instruments. The financial derivative instruments consist primarily of contracts for difference and forward
foreign exchange contracts. The Master Fund uses financial derivative instruments to make investments
and to take positions in an efficient manner, to manage and to hedge risks associated with its investment
activities and to hedge its currency exposures.
The Investment Manager uses a variety of systems and analytical techniques to monitor and manage the
Master Fund’s risk exposures. These systems include a proprietary system which uses multi- factor
regression analysis to estimate the effect on the Master Fund’s investment portfolio of movements in
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
variables which the Investment Manager believes have a significant influence on company valuations
such as commodity prices and interest rates; calculates beta-adjusted exposures; and evaluates the impact
of proposed investments on the overall risk of the Master Fund’s investment portfolio.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the Master Fund’s investment portfolio will fluctuate in response
to developments in the markets for financial instruments (price risk), foreign currencies (currency risk),
and government debt (interest rate risk). As the Master Fund pursues an equity strategy and invests
primarily in equity and equity-related securities and financial derivative instruments, the Master Fund’s
principal market risk is price risk.
Price risk
The Investment Adviser monitors the price risk of the Master Fund’s investment portfolio by using the
Capital Asset Pricing Model to compute the beta-adjusted exposure of the portfolio to equity markets, by
measuring the volatility of individual investments and by using a value-at-risk analysis.
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the Master Fund’s investments, and its other assets and liabilities,
will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Master Fund invests globally and, as
a result, its investment portfolio is comprised of securities and other financial instruments denominated
in a variety of currencies. As a result, the Master Fund is subject to currency risk as the value of the Master
Fund’s assets and liabilities may be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.
It is the Master Fund’s policy to hedge, wherever practicable, the foreign currency risk associated with
its investment activities back into its functional and reporting currency, the US dollar. The Investment
Manager uses “spot FX” to hedge its foreign currency denominated financial assets, liabilities and firm
commitments. It is not always possible for the Investment Manager to completely hedge the Master Fund’s
currency risk, either because of the pattern of the Master Fund’s trading activity or because the cost to
do so with respect to some foreign currencies would, in the view of the Investment Manager, be excessive.
As a result, the Master Fund will typically have a net exposure to some foreign currencies.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the Master Fund’s investments could fluctuate due to changes
in interest rates; that is, in policy interest rates set by monetary authorities and in the price of government
debt. The Master Fund invests principally in equity and equity-related financial instruments and not in
bonds or other debt instruments and, as a result, the Master Fund may not be materially exposed to
significant interest rate risk.
The interest rates the Master Fund earns on its cash balances and pays on its borrowings are, however,
based on short-term interest rates, and movements in these rates will affect the Master Fund’s return on
its cash balances and its borrowing costs.
Financial assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate that resets as market rates change are exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial assets, such as equity investments, and liabilities which neither
pay interest nor have a maturity date are not exposed to interest rate risk. As the Master fund may not be
materially exposed to significant interest rate risk, interest rate sensitivity is not material.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that a company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. In the case of the Master Fund, liquidity risk arises principally through its exposure to
monthly redemptions of participating shares by investors or through lenders of money or securities to the
Master Fund seeking immediate or accelerated repayment under their terms of business with the Master
Fund. Either, or both, of these events could theoretically force the Master Fund to liquidate its investments
in financial instruments for considerations less than their fair values.
In comparison, holders of redeemable participating shares in the Master Fund are required, under the
terms of their subscription, to provide the Master Fund with 3 business days' notice of their intention to
redeem any of their shares and such redemptions are processed only on the regular weekly dealing days
on which the Master Fund issues and redeems shares.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Master Fund is not directly exposed to significant credit risk
through its investment activities because it invests primarily in equity and equity-related financial
instruments, as opposed to debt instruments, and because it deals with reputable brokers and all purchases
or sales of financial instruments are only settled against delivery or payment.
The Master Fund's exposure to credit risk arises principally through its exposure to prime brokers, which
may provide custodial, margin financing, clearing, settlement, stock borrowing and foreign exchange
facilities to the Master Fund, as well as acting as counterparties to the Master Fund's investments in
financial derivative instruments. During 2019, the Master Fund had a prime brokerage agreement with
Morgan Stanley.
Under the terms of its prime brokerage agreement, the prime broker holds the Master Fund's assets in
separate accounts as a custodian. It has the right to lend, pledge or re-hypothecate 100% of those assets
as security for its own borrowings. The Master Fund's cash balances are held in brokerage accounts, not
in custodial accounts, but are subject to client money protection to the extent possible. To the extent that
cash is treated as client money, it should be unavailable to a prime broker or its creditors in the event of
the prime broker's insolvency.
The Master Fund's gross credit exposure to its prime broker is, theoretically, the value of any assets that
have been moved into brokerage accounts, plus any cash balances held by the prime broker in brokerage
accounts that are not subject to client money protection, plus the net unrealised profit on any over-thecounter derivative transactions entered into with the prime broker. At 31 December 2019, out of total
cash balances of US$12.17 million, approximately US$Nil million was subject to client money protection.
At 31 December 2019, the actual credit exposure of the Master Fund to its prime broker was US$0.13
million. The Master Fund was a general creditor of its prime broker with respect to these amounts. This
consisted of exposure of approximately US$0.13 million to Morgan Stanley.
The Master Fund has entered into master netting arrangements with its prime broker which have the effect
of limiting the Master Fund's risk exposure to it. Although master netting arrangements do not permit an
offset of Statement of Financial Position assets and liabilities unless certain conditions for offsetting
apply, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced as all contracts with the counterparty
are terminated and settled on a net basis if an event of default occurs.
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The Master Fund has the right to change the prime brokerage and custodian arrangements described above
or to appoint additional or alternative prime brokers and custodians without giving prior notice to
shareholders, although shareholders will be notified of any changes in these arrangements.
The Master Fund is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. These
recognized assets and liabilities are derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set-off criteria: the amounts owed
by the Master Fund to another party are determinable, the Master Fund has the right to set-off the amounts
owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the Master Fund intends to set-off on a net basis, and
the Master Fund right of set-off is enforceable at law.
The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable mater netting arrangements or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are offset
in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and net of the related collateral received/pledged by the Master
Fund as of 31 December 2019.

10.

RELATED PARTIES
The Fund considers the Investment Manager, its principal owners, members of management, and the
Board of Directors, as well as entities under common control, to be related parties to the Fund. Amounts
due from and due to related parties are generally settled in the normal course of business without formal
payment terms.
The Feeder Funds pays the Investment Manager a management fee and a performance fee, the details of
the calculation and payment of these fees are outlined in the Feeder financial statements.
Directors’ remuneration
The members of the Board of Directors are listed on page 2 of these financial statements. In the year 2019
the total remuneration of the Directors was US$20,658, with US$8,843 payable at year-end.

11.

FINIANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The following represents the per share operating performance, ratios to average net assets and other
information for the year ended 31 December 2019:
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A Master SubFund Ordinary
shares

B Master SubFund Ordinary
shares

Per share operating performance 1
Net asset value, beginning of year
Net investment income
Realized and change in unrealized gain
Total from Operational Activities
Net asset value, end of year
Total return 2

131.62
4.01
28.90
32.91
164.53
25.00%

127.08
3.91
27.96
31.87
158.95
25.08%

Ratios to average net assets 3
Investment income
Expenses
Net investment gains

2.64%
(0.81)%
1.83%

2.69%
(0.97)%
1.72%

1

Per share amounts are calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.
2

Total return is calculated based on the change in net asset value per share during the year. An individual
investor’s return may vary from these returns based on the timing of capital transactions.
3

Average net assets are measured by using the monthly average net assets adjusted for capital subscriptions
and redemptions. An individual investor’s ratio to average net assets may vary from those stated above due
to the timing of capital transactions.
12.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
Ecofin Limited was renamed to Tortoise Advisors UK Limited on 10 January 2019. Supplement to the
prospectus of Tortoise Global Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited (Formerly known as Ecofin Global
Renewables Infrastructure Fund Limited) dated May 2019 issued.

13.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END
During the period 1 January 2020 to 3 August 2020 which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued, total redemptions in the Master Fund amounted to US$8,554,444.
Since the financial year end we have seen the development of the coronavirus Covid-19 outbreak initially
in China and now reaching most continents. At present it is not possible to assess the detailed impact, of
this emerging risk, on the companies in the portfolio but there is growing concern about the impact on
the world economy. There has been a significant correction in the financial markets in the past few weeks.
The Directors and the Investment Manager continue to watch the efforts of governments to contain the
spread of the virus and monitor the economic impact on the companies in the portfolio.
Effective 9 July 2020, Ecofin Advisors UK Limited (Ecofin Limited has been renamed Ecofin Advisors
Limited)
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END
On 2 June 2020 the Board of Directors approved the resolutions to restructure Tortoise Global Renewables
Infrastructure Master Fund Limited to a new formed open-ended US 1940 Act Fund to be undertaken
during 2020. The Master Fund and the Feeders will subsequently be liquidated and dissolved.

14.

INDEMNIFICATIONS
Under the Master Fund’s organizational documents, its officers and directors are indemnified against
certain liabilities arising out of the performance of their duties to the Master Fund. In addition, in the
normal course of business, the Master Fund may enter into contracts that provide general
indemnification to other parties. The Master Fund’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is
unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Master Fund that have not
yet occurred, and may not occur. However, the Master Fund has not had prior claims or losses pursuant
to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

15.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were authorised for release by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2020.
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